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NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC., NEW DELHI

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICSI) was set up in 1995 as a section 8 Company
(erstwhile Section 25 Company) under National Informatics Cenfre, Ministry of Electronics and
Information Technology, Government of India to provide total ICT solutions to Ministries,
Departments, Organizationsin the Central Government, State Governments, UTsand P S Us.

Vision
"Achieve leadership position in the technology enablement of India and other developing
counfries thereby conftributing effectively to accelerate socio-economic growth”.

Mission

"To promofe and provide transparent value added Information and Communication
Technology on end to end solutions including procurement services and business solutions to
customers at competitive prices with afocus on socio-economic development".

Objectives

To provide the economic, scientific, technological, social and cultural development of India
by promoting the utilization of InNformation Technology, Computer-Communication Networks,
Informatics etc. by a spinoff of the services, fechnologies, infrastructure and expertise
developed by the National Informatics centre of the Government of India including its
computer-communication network, NICNET and associated infrastructure and services.

To promote further development of services, technologies, infrastructure and expertise to
supplement what NIC has developed, in ordertoincrease NIC's revenue earning capacity.

To develop and promote value added computer and computer-communications services
over the basic infrastructure and services developed by NIC including NICNET.

In furtherance of these objectives, NICSI has been providing following Products & services to
Ministries, Departments, Organizationsin the Central Government, state governments, UTs and
PSUs etc.:

= Data Analytics

m  Website Development
= Rollout Services

= Manpower Services

= Data Centre Services
= Productization

= Video-conferencing

= |T. Consultancy

= Call Centre Services

= Training Services

NICSl is truly a Total ICT solutions
Company in the Service of the Nation.

"




NICSI:

Is truly a total ICT Solutions Company
in the Service of the Nation.

Creating Synergy for Technology
Diffusion in e-governance.

Networks people in Government,
Industry & academia to permeate
the technology benefits to the
remotest part of India.

Harnessing Information &
Communication Technologies.
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3. w9 B O forg ofeRd uTed (BTH) B W AR H ) ORE W R @ 918 9% YO B W 48 BT U B
@ USlIpd BrTerd § ST ]I fadT ST ARy |

fere ded @ foIU 3R SHa TR® |

0/ —
(er=it <)
Fu wfeg

(TAHM. T 31700)

W As el
fafer : 18—12—2020




25dt aifties 311 Asd

el

Udg gRT G(d far a1 & b TeMe Shidfcad Hex Aidiyd Shiunes (TIRSHITHaNS) &1 2541 diiid 379 d3d,
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I IRRER,
IS <Dl Pl 31 ATE 2020 BT FA Y O 99 & oIy oi@r wiferd deAl Td ol uRiedl &l Ruie & A1

fraeret @t Raie

e ST Hex AU $PMUNCS (‘BUAl’) & PRIGR Td Haed WR gediad] aifie RUiE Uga R gU 98d

IRI=TAT 81 JEI 2 |
MY HUAT 7T 29 TR 2020 BT FhIATgdd 25 9§ R & forg &

¥ 2018—19 T Tl ¥, 31 AT 2020 BT FATG 8¢ 9¥ & forg =i aRomei &1 |RME, 36 TR &

@) fxi ke
(e el %)
®E | faawo 2019-20 2018-19
@ |sm
1 IEEI 19,435.75 19,473.36
2 | ¥ar vd |gant 96,192.85 95,479.47
3 | ST /3T G 10,302.89 9,080.50
7 (@) 125,931.49 124,033.33
@ |==
1 |=8e 17,829.00 24,139.51
2 | yar vd wEan 79,126.55 85,252.84
3 | BHEIRAT BT da9 vd W 856.31 1,092.63
4 | Ed 1,037.41
5 | U 8,605.14 5,086.44
6 | @d 5,177.70 18,248.79
7 (@) 112,632.11 133,820.21
W D g I/ @) @) — @) 13,299.37 (9,786.87)
6 || T 422317 (1263.53)
7 | o @1 e/ (@) 9076.20 (8523.35)

* QSIS [STel SfaEReT © HaeT =g <7 99 2018—19 H 5,804.99 &g %. AR fa<T a9 201920 H 26.79 G <.

NG
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(@ITRfET AIfSH) @1 &R BT 39 ISR Ao o o

IR e

IR [T T %

50 PRI

w™R Th

T o]

7%

[IRATSHT T HRIGIT BRI T, A IRATAT BT oI HH BT © IT 50 PRIS 0. &
RIS Y& & AT UHEAIvHens (Fral) |wifad u9ma & A1 ddal 7% &1 &% | AdTer
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SE 7 39 9HSId W SaR—H=Terdl AfAfa @mEva=il) &1 Ted fhar ® fonad ffaRaa wnfaer &

1 |afg, SO aregey
2 | e e HATCE [NTT & | a1 S9e Ui Sl Wgeh died X | A @ 7 8 | 9

3 | \fa AiRee! iR SRiwH HEaadd #3761 996 I S 6gw 9 N6 9 A6 | 95w
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4 | faRes afea, N Mt a1 9 afafafy S dgd afva ¥ 9 i @ 9 & qa
5 |9 smawgdar U A1 IE & |fya fe o faes e @ war o | 2|
6 | |YH AT TABDHR (THIR]/ MoU), SIS AT BT Ao Feraar Uar oAl |

fo<ia va IR—foxig AMGS a1 ARsiiaT Soe J™IQT Selag el Ud a1 Hreiifie! §37ea & Arad | Sidig
DI WS W USel TTRASHIVHINS §RT 310 fqwrds Hsel & dwel IRd o i & |

ST d3pI, [T Selagid! Ud Fa-T Heifie! H3Te / T H! iR TaSwIgHsns & ARaRT SuReIfy
BT €, § AMesl W T4l dRa) 8 3R gHsiar Siod § oedi o [HuiRa dxat 2|

T AITAINE 3R golagiaT vd gadT Wenfiid) #5ed & o aHsidr e 1R gxdler fhar S 2
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@) & 9§ g P A AT

HHEIT T & IR Sdig Y ARFT e s

i D IER R WD R

2018-19 e

2017-18 N —

2016-17 ST

2015-16 S

2014-15 S

2013-14 95 @

(i) < & RaaE IBfeud TMGSl W aRafdd FeuH—faT a¥ 201920 & forg g SO+

o UBd qul & oIl H BiSA T TN I /Y, TH] 3R PR, NG, RAMES Uaw # uRIISHIRA BT |
H glg (% SH) (8 31P): (—) 6.74%

(2018—19 H 193 & HPIdel 2019—20 H 180 URASTIY U< §S)

J AU IUTE] UG ATl Bl PO (8 3ih) : 8

oI5 /AT / D MR U /e | fUed 9§ & gee $—wTanv gRAHR @ dwen # ufaerd gfg (%)
: (10 3f®) : (—) 18.24%
(2018—19 @ 2395 @ HbIdel 2019—20 H 1958 URATGATG {Hefl)

o HUSH (FPhdl) I RG] Bl W& & WU H AR U< (Y§) (&A1 o7 4.) (8 37d) : 60

o AT ¥ oG ferd & ©U # Hex Ah Uil B |el UATfelicad d o (10 3id) : 0.17%
6) faxr af 201920 # T W& wfofferi

T 9 eqs (T gRAor)

A 2010 H YO B TS TADYA URATSTAT Pl geldgii-io! Td Ja-1 HERe] A (MeitY) ERT ST 5990
IRIS T, B AN | 10 1 Pl @ & oy AR far M1 o1 | el 39 URASHT &1 BRI Goidl
2 Sl TamSHITgas s Wuld $ Wi Ud UeTd B+ H Wl B Vel © | RISl 9= Tfd BT Sler
BRI ead MU BT © Sl Ioa RIET07 Ud M ATl B, I drd S AAEA] & {7707, fersor
Tq RO BT WeH a9 B oY T GER | SIS | I8 TSl & ffell dal R M 31 drfaefadl 3
YBIATT BR FEANTHS AJALT, <erTdl PeraAl e & W) gfaar <M, Il /Da AT Yozl d bl &
RITIAT XA | fa 99 201920 & IR, TAATSAIVHINE DI 59 URIIST & oY gelas e Td o Hreifid!
HATST (MeitY) ¥ 27464 BRI SUU el 91| 31.032020 dF H{A 405070 IR W A & o | BTAlfD
gelagi=ia Td AT Ueiifia] #31ad (MeitY) §RT U6 T URATSHT H fORAR fdHam a1 3R gaadi fa<ig anrd
% d8d Ud ay A1 A9 2021 dd & g 991 fear Ty o |

el T, ool § TREATERTE STeT HeR (TIee)

foeell & sl we Rerd Uil srmygfe fear— 11| gfaer & e WRer) furl oik S9a deHl &l
YT Uee JiAeT & A1 Hag & &R I8 o | a9 & aRE ARl gare vd dbedgdd gedl e |
TAATEHITHIE 7 FASS AU & I $hg & HB o Bl qu¥s B 21 39 1 & o0 § 191.81 IR
T & SHfed @9 H ¥ fUod 4 981 § T 17881 IRIS $. W [bY ST & 2 |
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®)

& TR, el § rer Jex

TASTSHITAATE HT el TR H U+ STl HeR 2 | 397 62 X & R & 45 Yo Ge—go @l Ug W Ry
U & 3R 9Bl b VT IMARP SMavhdet @ v v v 8| I8 I WRer darert / a8k S9
ATl BT SHd STl & H HATY TaT™H PR I&T & | BRI 53 BIS A DI AT A TAISHITHINE o FATSS
SHRCTIR © 1T T 16—20 N BT U fhar & (A1fy 5 auf # 45 $RIs $. CAPEX 3R 8 #RI$ . OPEX)

TS BT YaIZaR # 50 Va4 dTell ST Hex B | TS HIUHINS o 97.76 IS ©. &l oNTd A 14 a9 #
FATSS G wTe o1 | 399 9 O v 201920 # 4552 IR T, fUwel ¥ 520 RIS TUI @H fHY Y 3R
D] B 35.95 RIS SUI AfAST § WA fHU ST | 1T & 36 X Bl W TANSHITHIS §RT ITHIT 228 BRIS
T, DI AN | FATSS SHRCTR B A1 IS fhar STt 8 (W 5 9§ # 3 =R # 211 &RIs %. CAPEX
3R 17 e 5. OPEX) |

TRTERATEaTE Saawic der (Ren og)

SITHARAT & JATSEIUTD, AR UTh, fIcet] & AN T WR, 417 THECIH & A1, R SToAwic Hex uRaArsTaii
& GAT® Ud FAYE HrIadd g SUANTGHAIAT Bl SR Hag Yar dR 8l 2 |

I RIS

fod ad 2019—20 & ARM, THRMSHITHINE BT AT TG 1958 8 URAGHN A, 374 | £ 39 PR &
() s @ ga denfar Faad (MeitY) S el aRaeE

Y & TR, TIRMSHITANE o Selagia Td a1 Hreiffral dared (MeitY) | el fafi= aRaremeil & ded
AT 39 gHR SR -

RIS ST

MR AeTH qramdfed SuRerf gomelt (TEduuss / AEBAS)

AT GATH @l BT [dbrt (AgHAYE / CMF)

e (NICNET) @1 gRefm Hael=

THCIAHl &g & 1T GRET A AU Ud <90 GIE0T g I RITa]

ATSaR JRET IUTE 3Meard gq giawmsi &1 f[awiR

IRA H a9 HRIFIT H FEANT A & ol dad1se oM Heid

9 ARTE IHRUT, AFDHIDHROT Td Seeg3dl (W3C) sfear sRmfea

AfehT oA HaTeE Ud SHgdE HrIEdd (ETf) / Wi-vfded T U eTgHell ShlHee

IRA AR & oy S—Hel A2

HRA AR D (Y S—HeT SWRGFIR DI GRIT BHRAT

TISITATYT (NDSAP) & folU fue TTa=ivie TTel wchiM IR HRAT 3R I deTdT a1

I STel Hex R IS 779 TIRTR

fefrea sfear vrmy 2 & agd s—<ifRucd

Tl
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(if) fawmnt /et & URASH (seagifa vd aer Hefiah warerd & sreran)

famT /e e @t faaRor

RIS B
i B C190040NWND | sfifieedl g1 warfora i &1¢ uRaiomr sifafke®
< T C190396GNND | gqprdw Tt (eCourts MMP) &R fafiT et @t @iig
SR fagga faawor faem farfa, S190787GNR) | SR fagg faawor faem faff. & faf avqgell @ @i
(E—TrR)
IRT & fizd vd AereramRiegd of | C1913256NND | vyra & fdaes 1d #ererarmiied ($7) §RT wead aedail
AT (6) EAIRCRIE
afor feeel TR OfRm @1 emgdY | C191481GNND | < feyor fyeel TvR e @ ot favmTes fore fafeT awgeit
o Pl TR
QT@'{[ TRJeTo] W C191593GNND QT@'{[ TRJeo] W D %{Q DI
RISTh ShI afdara forfay, S191733MPR) | rotaptey gwr afdrr farfly gRr sveniRar & fgfs
grel  gHAEeeE Wk Rycterg | C191952GNND | ety ATgaR RefT S99=a99ds, TSI GReTT Uy Aferdrera
sy Us RIaIRET e (3fte / (TATRHTH /NSCS) ¥ fafr=T awgeli @ ©RIg

DHRISTI), R TSR <Rem
D, 1A GReT GRS Alerarerd

(TATHAITH / NSCS)

aed URagd wd <ot Hater | C191856GNND | e uRaest vd oMt #arera  fafi=T aegett a9 @i
(TaIPpa T e SIee)

7. TASTEEITHeTg (NICSI) # 4T AR FAIT RIS HRem
SIS ITE™ JART (@ 6 <)

YIS &7 322U <fErT URRITE, arbid!, difae SMReT ofe IS Ud SfaRRISERT JToIRI § TS / TS A IUI3S
AlfedR Ul & IUTQIHRUT, AFADHIDHROT UG I Pl GiaeTod a9 & | Ids ol uRaemr gg fager
HATSTT W AN U B BR1T | AT AHSIIATBRI BT difh 3AdT f[Adhr UHes & dufc | YRT fhar Sirgam |

Hex sife vfavrei Bk Ster wfafeas (Wi / CEDA)

STel UATfIfecad & &3 H fARIvsdr Ud IpedT &I R d9ax 3+1d YATelfead /7 afT erdmeli # il o
3R S STeaguiguled UM | I8 Ifod <ed, THdl &I Ugar o), SYh [Jvsidl vd Sffed Hifaerd amai ol
B BT H A B dlel ARl Bl [1geh B T WRI IR WRGRI [GHET Bl Joreirgel Srer gt Afdad
ST AT |

FATSS IS99 U9 Srel Yex fvmw f3faem

TS HITHINS BT UTeh, YOI UG Ya-ear H Uil 9 FoTSs Hal § V&1 © | 909 Folrss diadd Ud Afasy H
G U4 J4TdT Jeg BT GAREd B @ oy g Ao @ o= @1 1S 2
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(8) faxfra af 2019—20 F = fawaTg

01.04.2019 ¥ 31. | 01.04.2018 ¥
032020 (€. #) |31.03.2019 (4. #)
(@) I g A3 URATSTRI | 1. TR B GG > 35
T AR e 2. J99TSC / AfediR STduHe 135 66
3. HHARI 677 1120
4. Jeqas 45 72
5. AT GRATGAN (BTSAR, HUTRR iR 400 492
HHAN 3N BT fAeTax)
6. 3 IR (THUATH /A0y / $—Hel 371fe) 633 610
Hel 1915 2395
(@) JHC—aR BRI A 01.04.2019 ¥ 31.03.2020 01.04.2018 ¥ 31.03.2019
(St / WOs) faaor: S fahg SRIRT I g SRIT
TG P .| (TR T, H ) [Ty B H. | (@RS T 7 )
SN 6743 73819 7348 785.96
fafaer 135 58.36 100 176.60
TeaPp 259 35.55 369 5423
Seppe 26 18141 28 8.64
IV — 147 10.19 121 5.83
RN afife 152 438 133 297
R 674 4784 442 39.23
Jedls Seouiie 167 71.78 150 10058
ST (GeM) 327 109.97 347 213.73
Serff S s 156 2318 122 19.15
8786 1280.85 9160 1406.92
(7T) AHE—aR WHMAT AT 01.04.2019 ¥ 31.03.2020 | 01.04.2018 ¥ 31.03.2019
(Grarrg) faavor: O T e | oy | o R | R
NS HE (RS T. H) | ToEHNG | (@RS o A)
HUAT 3989 718.62 5227 949.08
fafaer 60 49.40 49 94.07
IN— 239 4098 446 130.42
—— 6 469 3 090
IE— 68 9.44 65 594
e e 1671 5.49 156 7.64
THUHTH 2130 109.17 1596 136.09
ST Sqee 236 115.08 205 124.73
ST (GeM) 77 173.63 98 129.99
g 6966 1226.50 7845 1578.86
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(@) =g g Mfaerd 01.042019 ¥ 31.|01.042018 & 31.
032020 (. #) | 032019 (H. #)
gl (Mfdaren o wv=n 10 19
Aifra fAfagren @1 dw 00 01
gl 10 20
SRSEEIRIISIEE VAL 01.042019 ¥ 31.|01.042018 § 31.
032020 (€. #) | 032019 (% #)
At faqmT / ARTeA1 & ATeT UAaMS HIUwame 55 51
g1 fby v

OREZEN

R & o0 H A 03.03.1998 BT S TS SARRIEAT & ARIH § AR §RT WPHd HHAN] WHRA & AJAR
TRMSAITHRNTS # B & fgRs thengell § S°e uel & Wi sReml, TR | ReeHa), g & smear
UR I ST |

31 A1 2020 BT TAARAT A UASMSHIGHAE H MM dTel HHATRAT BT ol AT 29 o |

(10) w¥TIRET @1 favor
HUAT BT DIy A HHAN], Hu (FIRE wd vdgeds o1 aa4) 799, 2014 & 799 5(2) & ded FuiRa 9a9 dHm 4
JNfeH I TS U PR ET AT |

(11) BT B IS R (Bivare \rre Refafaferd)

T SHFCad Hex Afawd &, (TTRMSHITHINS) T &1RT 8 HUA & (Jadi &1RT 25 HUAT) | TAATGHITHIATS BT 3£ Y
JMEAICT AP U Theild Bl g Tal o1 Ud AU o, IfE BT IT 3= 3MHGAT Bl 37U SeAT & [y TANT HRAT
UG U e Bl fhedl ff TbR BT e 7 <1 B

26 TaHIR 2016 PI AIS 1 37U 991 o H HIYHAR TN BT oA fHar o, e ded - f&ar 1m &

o TN ARAFIH, 2013 B FTAR TAMEHITHANE gRT BT O arell TRARMRAT & IR # g arelt Argwang ey
AT TG e DI IHD! G BRAT;

*  BUNI R B W arell TAfAfERl W fby S arel @d @1 IR B FHIET Ud G HRAT;

o TII—FHT TR BT I HIUEAR AT B S BT

e THI-—|HY W Mowd Hed gRT #oR fbU S & d1e I1 oiT Faerd ded e < HeHsR Affd grT Sfee
HHEN S aTell Big 1 31 a1 |
TAATSAITATS & DUl Afrg AUHR ARl & afea & wd § B bl |

HTHAR FAfT BT 966 & HRA H IqD AWl D ol G & Yh—ags Gaw (39 U fogrs #§ Ffzd & s
DI U FHC B T 947 a1 SIe) a1 ] Ay, S W i 8l R ol |

IS 1 28 SIFARI 2020 BT AT BT T3 3G 11241 o6 H HYANR AT &1 gite faar o, s fFrfeaRad
TSR o
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®E. | SR U Ug
1, Si. STIEIY fHs, WY Afd, geldgid gd o Heiiel q3rerd arege
2 S AR AT, SIeol, TS ES)
3. N o AR, SISioll, TSl NESS|
4, £ T Srel, SIS, TSl ES)

B ARTIH 2013 BT TRT 135 & UG U 31T UG & ATAR, SIFT AN 81, fad 99 2019—20 H TAANSHITHINS
FRT AITHRIR Tfafafal R 39 TR 40 d”g S0 @d fhy 7w

@ ©. 9)
o of N qd g5 M usl 3 I8 § oA | usdl 3 ANt ¥ oA Yg a™ T 2%
g a™
2016—17 107.02
2017—18 50.65 19.94 0.40
2018—19 (97.86)

S SR, 2013 & IFFA! VIIdT 7 4. (viii), ST HUFRT §RT I8 HIVHJNR IRl DI QT HRA B [oIY DI S
qrell AR & IR H FArT 2, 3 Il @ A W qan © [P by AR §RT GEISe—aYe f[add d ed
Bg UG Al 1 DIY H AN HRAT HITH’R I AFT ST |

WRd # Y HRAT aRd (Bifde—19) & TR, fva w@Rey Hi7e (Sguasil / WHO) RT 84 AR 9IfYd &<+ ud
BRUNE BRI AT gRT f&HAI® 23 AT 2020 ST AHRT GRUA 9. 10 /2020 & ARIH A IR IR §RT 39 AfRIfId
JTIST A S BT {077, PI I Y I8 W Bl © b Bifds—19 & U AUHAR [ BT el fHa1 Sirr AvAsiR
Ty & d8d fy M arel @9 & A T

39D I(AE], YR WRBR 7 Bl 1 R @1 3mura Rafd a1 dae o Rafd & ywifad R &7 I8d Ue™ &-" &
oy armard Rl # wem=H= ANTRS W Ud 180 BN (WTH $JH B/ PM CARES Fund) &1 ITYAT &7 | TEI9R,
g BT B H I T arem @i i ITe™ duAT AffTH, 2013 & d8d AITHIR &I AT ST |

g® ITTAl, HRURS B HATST & Afed 0 goifd sNHa (RGRT W) 7 SRARS B #3A1ed & Jad1se
% A ¥ UITH SIH B H SERAT & AT ARG $HH Bl U &I 8, $FH WGd A8l Dl T3 AIYHSIR R, IfS
L &1, AT 8 |l B |

SWRIh @ 37T, YITH HIH B H AN & W HUA1 DI <1 9arg 7Y RIgd /8e /wR a9 @y &

@) 3t B N Hu FYAaw FuiRT o=y | it ==y dron st we 3 <<t 8, R o1 aret auf # Hsaemr
TRl & #e H qEfTd fhar o gadr 21 3R

(@) 31 A1 2020 TP GIGH HIH B H {HAT T BIS W TS AR IMAFTH, 1961 & T8 8031 (80G) BN BT
BT UTH BN | 1 3T 2020 A Ryt ST Ul 1 g8 o e argem fwsl= gRIT HR )1 H g1 g1 g1
o |

SRR & HEAIOR, U o 31.03.2020 BT GTH BIH BE H 040 FRIS T. BT AN [HAT AT 3R 26 [ 2020 Bl

AIvHsmR AAfT @1 g3 dod ¥ AT © AWl gRT 3R 29 S 2020 BT e Hel @l g8 90 H v dd &

WS gRT 39! gfte ol T8 off |
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(12) BURE A

PHIANT Ta-d e ®© | Farferd AEArIS ufhar 8 S ol W6 & §is gd dfasT &I 9 gq dikidg
2| 9 AW & U g ufiegdr & | AfdEargel Eaide Mo o vd R wRe gHkEd fear S g |
TRISUIURTS H, BRI HU-I & ATH B (6T Td IR Jeee If+ard & | 89R feduRe! &1 favard s1Rie &xe

IR I 1Y @A & oy I8 wewqul & |
faxr af 2019—20 # AT A TE AL AN 5P AR AW 5B
P30 fa<ig ¥ 2019—20 faqie N

1. | 1109 9rS 9o 30-07-2019 | geragiasr vd <qae Wenfie #ared, selagiad
TR DET 3. 4009, TIAT TA, 6, TSNS BIFcids, el TS,
3 faeell —110003.

2. [111d 91 d5b 25:09-2019 | geragifa ud o Wenfier #Arer, golagiad fFradd
AT HeT . 4009, TNAT O, 6, WIS HIFeiad, el IS,
EERECS

3. [112d) 91S Yo 28-01-2020 | geragiar vd g@e Wenfiel #Arey, selagivad fFaan
TR D& 3. 4009, TIAT T, 6, TSI PIFcid, el <,
EERGISI

4. | 24dF 91ffp 9 dob 26-09-2019 | goragiran vd <gEe Wenfe #Ared, selagiad faan
AT PeT 3. 4009, TIAT T, 6, AIOAT BIeidsd, Al TS,
EERECS

5. |24 aifffe o dow zfiia | 30-09-2019 | goracifan wd o denfial w3rer, goagiad Madd
AT PeT 3. 4009, TAT TA, 6, AN BIFeidd, A TS,
3 faeei—110003.

6. |INERY 3MH Joh 30-10-2019 | <rsfyy <= faee @g, U— ife, Woiell divciad, d IS,
a3 faeell — 110003

7. | SATIRYT 3MH d8h 10-12-2019 |3y g fasme &g, U— <cifds, IoNel divelad, ol <Ts,
3 faeell — 110003

& < 9rs I 11341 §8& 31 A 2020, HIAAR, DI J[NTT B S dlell & Ifbd <97 H Difde—19 & IR &
PR 25 AT 2020 ¥ 3ATD Y Y AlBSIST & HROT IJJITT a6l DI S T |

(13) aTdEr Gffy

TEh gl w@IfE drell RGN wgde fafics duHl 89 & A1, S AfAFRE, 2013 @ GORT 177 & d8d, $H HUN
(Freere Aed & 98¢ U4 S9d AMABR) a9, 2014 & 99 6 & A1 UQT ST, HUAl & foIv i@ afafa

ST BRAT ATID o] AT | BIAID, Fawd Al o 26 fTHIR 2016 DI AT 37U 99d1 ISP H, G HT3ii

B L H A Y, TARSHITHINS DI I Ud SI@Toxier Jrall &l Wier & ol Jamusie amifa &1 e faha
IR gH¥=a fear fe vaenswivaems FMufRa faxia frmi vd faf sl &1 ared 9 | TeswiIsss & U+l |fd

oraraRen aRfy & aftg & w0 § B BN |

28.01.2020 I 11241 4o H, dIS -1 IAMIRIeT AT BT gvied fhar e Frefalad dewr o
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P ¥M 9 YA g

1 sTAfT ST 3RTST, TATH 3R THY, Selagia! d a1 Hreifiia #3ed (MeitY) JreTer
2 ST ST 357, WYeh AfE, Seldeie! Ud Jar HrEniia §3rad (MeitY) NES
3 3 AT I, SIS, TSl NS
4 s eMfES 37EHg, SISioll, UHaTgHl GES

ST AT BT 541 96d 24—07—2020 BT Bz AT, [T 31 A, 2020 BT FHAG U IY B AlND oRIT—ARIT UR
e fam 17 o 3R e Hed Ud UIRURSD] & FHe IR DR D AT Bl g ol |

(14) o= fFeee! gRT Yo

FHUN B Bu (el o YR vd drgdn) a9, 2014 @ GRT 149(4) IR 99 4 & dEd Wdd el o s
B P ATIIDAT el o SAfTT Pis =IO &l B TS 2|

(15) ©RT 178 @ SU—YRT (3) B Tga IFgaT FEIRT A Y AFGS, HBRIAS VI, TF fews o wd=ar & 7
el wha el IR T 909 ) S o A

qui W@ arell WRGRI Uigde faffics Sl 89 & A1, SUHl Bl du+l AR, 2013 &1 gRT 178(1); HUN (@€
DI 96F UG 9D IMAGR) 94, 2014 & 99 6 & T8d MG TG Ia= AT IR Huh rfIfm, 2013 & g7
178(5) & ded ROURS Hee AMRY a9 @7 MaegHhar ¢ |

(16) oM TENE—9 (MGT—9) ¥ T Re+f &1 AR
HUT AR, 2013 BT GRT 92(3) AR SN (U6 vd w=meae) 99, 2014 & 99 12(1) & IR BH THOIC
(MGT) 9 @nfy a1ffes Ret &1 aR ey # fear T 7|

(17) fa of @ AT BN U9 9IS RAIE A R & 9 faxig Rerfay & wifda o arer wgget aRads w9 wfieg
g

Fu & T af & ward g, s o< faaxer |afda 2 ik Ruid a1 fafyr & = v &1 Ag@yef aRady =&
g & A1 ufdegard 2 @ 1§ R s @ o Refa wwfad &)

(18) PIRER N wPpfr # yRad=
HUA B BRIGR B THT § IS gRad= T8l g 2|

(19) wRAT A@TT TF B IR fa 9 201920 F7 T A=A
fora ad 2019—20 & fory aTfffer oRaT MR <@id AM® & ATAR dIR fHar T 7 |

(20) St wE, TP WA U4 fIe G O & =
Sl GRETUT UG TbiIh] FHGY UR DRI 81 © | [aQeh a1 9 o 781 g3 o iR a9 & SR $u-l A faqeh ga1
H e WY e fbar o |

21) Fut AR, 2013 B URT 186 B TET VNI, TREY AT e &1 fqawor
T 99 & SR, BUAT 7 DI FUT Tal AT /RS Bl @/ faer & fean
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(22) <R vEr | AF—

HefT vl | SIgee AT G BT fAaver Hul (o) M, 2014 & B geldi—2 (AOC—2) ¥ &IRT 188 I IU—&IRT
(1) ¥ fafde 8

fog af & RM fhr U G vt dH—<F AwE oFed R WR fhy U Ud ARl g9y o |

AMAFTIH BT gRT 134 BT IT—GRT (3) & TS (W) Td HUA (elkam) ™, 2014 & 99 8(2) & AR

1. foe F—<F R W T U 7Y gl 1 @EReedl AT o —ad B f[daR: g

2. e OF—a JMER WR fHY AU el A1 FaRensi 1 di—ad P [daRT: I

(3) fram! a1 URTEET AT ARG GRT TIRT AS@YUT A Sl ATHRI WM & qof U9 A F i &
ATl B FAaIdT HR dHd 8

TR 9¥ & SR FRMe! a1 =rATerdl AT ARHR0T §RT UHT DIs ASdYUl Qe UIRa Tl fhar a1 e wu=
P AMBRI TRAT B ol Ud I § Hu=l &1 G- garfad & |

(24) wERES FUI
31 91 2020 Th, BN Bl Bls TE—FD HU-I ol ¢ |

(25) EAED

YRA & (5% Ud HeTi@URIeTd gIRT HU-l SATIH, 2013 BI &1RT 139 S T8d, 31 A 2020 DI FATK Y Y & oIy
THIMSAITHS & Wl Bl IETINIET & oIy A 31dTed Us AT (CR0604), TTES JTbTSce, |79, 7dT ddl, fRdTer™
B39, 23, BN, T3 fIeeli—110001 BT HARS o wWietd & wu § g fobar 11 o |

(26) fRT® @1 TRE HoF
HUT ITAIH, 2013 BT IR 134 (3) () & TS FAWHAT B AAR, BUAI & QDb HSdA 7 IR & b

F) NS AE—SIET JIR BT H AUl Al 9 Haed Sfd fdaRer & /1 AN eRdid AT Bl Tl il
T

w) fod af & 99 B WR B $ ARl OR 3R S Mfe @ RN HUHl & ot iR B BT Hear vd e
WU WA B D AT BUN S Rl 7 AT ogiep Aicrdl Bl =g fhar vd S ] fdhan iR v ooy
fore vd e wy o S vd fadeyet &

M) BN B IREURTE B GREAT Ud GRIATES] Td T THR Bl AIHAATS BT AT Ud ST Il o & oy
el 1 39 IR & WTauHl & AR U d@ied Rabls @ BT I Td 9w =Tel T,

H) el 9 AMER W & MR WR dIf¥d oIE—SiaT dIR fahar o @ik

g eEel 7 du gRT ure fhy 9 arel *nidRe O fEer FeiRa fhe o sik 9 ordRe faxim feizor
g o Td YHTdT TRID A B BR 2 o |

) el 7 AR M 9l |l BIEl & UaEEl B uTerd gRed e)A @ oy Ifd gonforal dAR @ off
AR 9 yonferai uat off vd ywrdl dRid | dM o) @l off |
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@7) P

TSI Ud Solagitat IR o Wl J91ad (MeitY) 9T @g SR 50 WRGR & #a1erdl / fawrt / dwrer gd
AGSIE &5 © SUHHN NS gRT U Bl AU T AEANT, FERIAT Ud ANTGIA BT 9T MR b Bl 2 | e
Hed, YRA & FRE® U9 A-TelaTiRIeTd iR SIRATOIeTd! &1 S96 A8ANT & fog +ff 3 € | 918 31 A, St
Td YD BT, D! FRAIR TAT & oIt pag 21 IS S & T W iR HHAIRAT & Fafia Tl &1 gv9arg
afed a8 fid | TR $_ar 2 |

AN gpfifea der Affay §@. @
fRye ded & forw ik S e @

g0/—

I T3 ol
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B . THeiid-9
¥ Resd o1 arR

31.03.2020 &1 FHQ §¢ fo=ig oy aa

HUAT IRAFRH 2013 BT IRT 92(3) AR HU (Ve TG o)
9 2014 & A 12(1) & AR

I OofieRoT §a o faawor
i) | HremSeA Y74899SIUcT119950UIUCT1072045
i) | gofreor fafer 29.08.1995
iii) | YA BT AW TS sHrfead Hex afdis gauRfes
iv) | B @Y St/ Su—srofy RIS LT A g, geldgii-ed! Ud par Srenfie! faumT, e

Td o1 W #3976, YR SRR & A0 wrgde fofics arT
25 (319 GRT 8 BU) BUI

USTipe braferd ol Iel Ud Hush fdavor

T . 2 3R 3, 697 T, LIS €TaR, 15,
AhToll HTHT I, T8 fSecii—110066
BT : 91—11—26105054, 26105193

vi) | gAEg dU T A1 TRl BEl
vii) | Beraraa RRRER) IR SRR Toic &l BGl
M, g1 vd Hua faver, afe &
. S P &I A Tfafartrr
BU B Bl PREAR H 10% IT ITH A& BT ARG B dTell T RATAATIDb AR & gR H FART SITYI:
i T SRT /ATt IS/ |al ol TN D FA
o @ 9 3R faawor ™ g 4 Dre FRISR 3T %
1 | I HiegeH — TERR IR ATedw — 16.81
2 | SEIfRh, Tedd AR 3 - 83.19
. RS, st sk wearh Fufrai
®E. | BYAI BT AR G AT | WONEYA /SNYeAq | BifesT /e iR | eiRa -t 3 N RT
weartt wfrera
1 PIg Bl
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IV. ¥R BT Yo (g et @ ufdea @ wu o 3 IR goit &1 fFawo)
() ofiar =R BfesT

IRRERD] A Ao

9 3 ge § ailRa W H weEw

a§ @ T W 9iRd IR 3 G&

e

feforeer

B

Eix| AMye
IR BT
%

[RISE ]

B

ol
IR BT

%

T B

% H

. Uried

(1) IRA™A

(@) FfeTTd / TaUh
(@D IR
(MR RBR (FRBR)
(@M@
SEEVACEIEEIE]
(@)@rg e

U= (@) (1)

SEERR
SR (@) ()

@) = @)r@)E)

geE (@) o A BT

200000

200000

200000

200000

100 I

100 T

200000

200000

200000

200000

100

100

g Aeeie e
(afses IREfesT)

1. ORI
D) A B
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2 IR- HRIma
%) e M
) AR
i) facen
Q) aafeal
)1 g %, & @ AWRd
32T Yol R gTell iR EIVGE]
IRRYRPB
i) 1 9IRGB, | AAB Bl
JFfAfed ofer Yol I@= arelt
FRAT IRRURG
) 3 (9
S-%d (@)@)
T WG fFeaerd e
(@)=@)1)+(@)e) o
T. MR 3R &R 3
fog ARt (@ReTE) grr S e
CIIG R
Fol AT (H+E+T) 3= | 200000 | 200000 | 100 3= | 200000 | 200000 | 100 I
(i) TR 9 FRER
pe | TRER at & omea § Rt af & sid 3§ freerd
P 9H
. IR P i IR P | 9§ B RE
wia | T2 Rohty | wmiw | I3 | Ry | e
wor | SO | aRe ¥t | wem | BTN | aiRe Rt | ge R
% & % ° & % a5 %
TAATSH
1 AT W YR 200000 100 gl 200000 100 Mgl N
P Tt
3| 200000 100 ¥ | 200000 100 P B
(i) Y @ fRRiT # wRadw (@R $15 aRads 7 gom 2 O Foam FAq)
P T & R F R 7§ @ IRA T FFREd
1 IR H IO D F[A IR FTH B F[A
e IR BT % Riicsf IR BT %
2 | ye A
3 |af & RE WEeR @ R § fafer
IR ghg /1, g/ B BT BRI (G _
3MGe / ARV /a9 /e sfqac) FIE ARAT T
anfe) samg |
4 |99 @ g W
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(v) ¥ =H IRERDT P IREIfST F1 Yo (Fewred, Hee’i vd GDRs 3R ADRs SR&I & 3fcman):

9. ¢ B IR H R ¥ 3 SRM S feer
M 10 ITeRD! # & TS D g IR B ST B FA IR B I B oA
T IRT BT % T IRT BT %
q9 ® N H
9§ & SRE WHeR P fTReN |
IR gy /BN, ghE/ FH B BRO (G
JMded / BWaR/ 99/ e gfdad) AN e
JMfe) 9y |
Y & 3fd | (AT AT BF @ fafdy wR, Al
Y & SR 37T gY B)
v) vl ok g=1 neud Fifie 1 e
H. 9§ & I A R e 7§ @ IRA Fad e
RS e vd SRl & oy IR P I D A IR B DI D A
e | IR T % Riicsf IR BT %
99 P ARV F
9§ & R TR B RN # fafdr
IR g/ o, afg / N & RO (S
JMMde / BRI/ dIFd / WIe gfdaet
Jnfe) 9y |
q¥ & 3fd A
V. ORI
THRT /AT TS T HU B FEORTAT A YA 9F T
w: azur“" T IrgRfr T H FOTIEA
o1 a9 ASQ @1 g H FURRAT
i) gererT
i) 3T ST ol I & fbar T
i) Tt =t wifs <7 =81
g (i+ii+Hiii)
fod a¥ @ SRME FoRRadr § gRad=
.. Ifg
. AN, el
€ IRac
fo af @ ofd § Fonrar
i) Heterd

i) < =TS offdpeT YA T8l fobar
iii) @1 =TT Afed < @1

AT (HiiHil)
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VI. ficeral 14 4= wduag FHaRal &1 a4
®. ¥y fove, pi-sifae el 6k /a1 yeuel o1 a9

IR IRBR GRT XL LT S g (TS & Head § TRneiivaas & ugde s orr 25 $u1 (319
gRT 8 HUAN) & ©U H Haidd far a1 2| SUN & GRAT & AARIH & A6 59() B ATAR R & Ul &

3R | UHARMSH! & HEIFQRd §RT UHaSw! & SUgt SNl &I Jay faere g frar S |

.
.

a9 faaRor

TR/ SYCIS! / Vaed T A

& 7 FAR s
(01.04.2019 ¥ 13.02.2020)

2 yeia gAR e

(14.02.2020 ¥ 31.03.2020)

Pl G
®. )

BA T

(®) M- AR, 1961 DI &RT 17(1)
# ffed graeam™l & SgaR 94

(@) IMI—hx IfATTIH, 1961 BT TRT 17(2)
% AR IR Giawsii &1 e

(1) M- JAAFTIH, 1961 BT TRT 17(3)
% d8d 99 & 98t A

36.81 <Y 2. 4.10 <Y .

40.91 <9 .

e fddeg

e gfdad

HHIE
— M D % B wT H
— 31, 9dTu..

g, HUIT g
B (P)
AAFTH & JTAR AfSdan AT

3= frerel a1 ad7

w.9.

qaT BT faaRor

1. @ad fAeere

918 /afAfq @1 dedl H AT oF B W|@ax
CIENE

A, pUAT 91

grr (1)

2. 37 IR-FRAGR 3D

s /Ay o1 Jodi # BT o & @d =
EIEKE]

Y, pUAT 917

T (2)

A @)=(1+2)

FA THD I

M & FFER Fo IfHad A

SINE]
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1. THE) / Med / SILIE @ IAATAT Y HEHH FHAMRG! BT A

EA a9 BT fa=or T YERID HHANT BUHT R
4t firfrer gaR £t T O
(01.042019 ¥ 04. | (16.122019 & Ll
08.2019) 31.03.2020)
1 | @a 94 348 TG 3. 287 919G 3. 6.35 TG .

(@) MI—dx AT, 1961 @ arT 17(1) H fAfRq
Tl & ATAR I

() IMI—PR IARAFTH, 1961 B gRT 17(2) & ATAR
JfaRes giaermsil &1 o

(1) 3MI—x AT, 1961 B ORT 17(3) B T&d dad
% qel A

e famea
e gfdad
EL NG .
_ D % D T d e
— 317, 9]

S |3, FHUAT ga

B
ViIl. e g5/ @/ afagft
PR o IRfEE & | g fRaver | @ g e yTfdrERoT Iy o¥ afie
RTY i/ won/ @yt | Rt/ Tiigadt / T
R &1 fawo IR (fa=or <)
fdd <
Xl A
afagfef
. 37T Y ISR
el <<
ot A
gfagfef
AT SPRfead Hex afdae 59 &
fve Fea 3 fog ok S IR 9
B0,/ —
e
WM : 8 feel
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A SHIRcEA A2 A= sdRuRfes (fees:i)
form o 2019-20 & fosw forarat @t RA1E @ uflRf3re

faT 9 2019—20 P AT THIMSHITHE P WAl W G AT TS I, ACS IJhSec gRI
Henfae @ wErer P Rod 3 Rt &1 SR

o ol fewoft

TSGR B ST

fave g (Fforeras sfaffes) &1 emR

1. BN T 01 GTS 2017 ¥ 31 AN 2020 P, A
Wdd ol gRT e 3fifse #xiv {991 ERP 3rdbrsfeT

o af 2018—19 & oIy TARMEHIYHE & WAl R oRkdT YRIeT
R & ATAR, TARMSHITHANE o, SARUT AU B Ud

AfedIR &1 TN fhar| s Jolmell & Iwifdd wiHl
% BRI WRAE o@idd AM® w2 (Ind AS Financial
Statements) # §d U uREURME /<F<Ral iR /a1

§q oIy S dTel Yob & aR H qdr 8 AMel Bl (& id
14.11.2019 B foRI U5 & ATH o vASIagdl He=ery & dwe
TS/ AT | 39 978 13.02.2020 AR 08.05.2020 Bl THT ATHA I

I /T TR YHIG, Jfe Pis &, O aaqH= H SFBT Ul
T g1 A9 A8 © |

GO forRd A & AAd A QIR Meeed &l RS
e |l Y | BTeAlf, 3 I YACIagAl Fenerd | ®Is SR
81 fAer 7 &R gafery, fiHi® 07.07.2020 &1 BT e 4. 3
(1) /2020—JRITA. & ARIH A 9T Yol §RT SIRU Il
HIFCAIR & AATI T TS HITHINS H Yo AT aTs T | FAfT
SR ST fshar SN 2 |

2. R IR A, GuRy, &= Td SYHROT, IoRG 37,
TR fered, HHaiRAl &1 Ry T 1fiw / faswan &t
gfe / IUIRTHAT Y BT G, [Asdr ye= 9@ TR
SR SR D UfHAT, ST /AT 3 AegH B SIRY

JURT, ¥ Ud SUBRY, NoRd  IffFRgd, WG IAeIRd,
iRl & feu g & /fagmarei @ gfe /Sudnraat
ST /AT 3 A¥H & SINY AT8d gRT AE 4 § Sr

YEdh gRT Y 9 § ST HAT Ud IH1 T B a¥qell, &
ANfId TAYT & FeeT § Ul § qoaE SfaRe =,
§9D A & AHR Td TP & AR BT A1 |
(e " 2)

HIAT UG IHRIT B qGell, & Hifdd FAUT & Haeg H BuHl
H acHe SffaRe R gonferl & a¥ & SR Asiqd a1
AT B | BTeTifb BIfAS—19 AThSIST B BRI, 3 ATHA H WIfd
3ehd o I8 B | Fee Wi #§ Refy # guR g & &9
aft Tfafafdat o v SIReR & faar S |

3. AR T (A1 19), AR UG (IS 10), STADBRN A
e arel M (e eIl ura uRATSTHRI )
(Are 21), FAT g9 T A (1S 20), GR&T A < ([
18), MYfcramdiall oI A (AT 9 3R 15) 3R IUHTHIRIT
A e arel geF—wEar (Al 21) ¥ Hefda o, af
P AT B9 WX U fhU ST /9Tt 819 3R /a1 gk
Ao g9¢ 9 @ g & fowamia g 0 gfic ud
g BT, IREIR™II-SHaRAl iR /AT M /=Y WX
gqTg, JfS HIS &1, AT IGAE H SHBT Ul T Ul FHa
T8 2|

31.032020 I&F &I FH1T R & oy @R g o SR &
feg g 2| vt/ wTeHr anfe @ U uF Ry faar S
fFrafia el & ofs e forg aga g wfdfhar fell & |
TSRS oY gl Rived # g9 w@anford awA @
uforar § g difs = wfafafdal &1 dopral v Sfaa ale 9
R fHar ST 6 |
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4. UTEDT I WIS BIF dTel 1,24,647.66 G U & HeH
H IR iy A9d o< dee § e |, 21 @ forg
Ay T fhar SIraT ® | eI @ral dF FEelT | uar
Tl b U &8 UTEd & o R, 99 & I 84 W), 3 a8
[ A1 3O | IHRT & | 379 W RIAR AR AT+
&3 & IUHH (NTHY) R AR AR & FAedl 4 for
T ® 3R BUAl gRT fAff=T i # SrelT—3relT &l <’
T ARE MhIsel W Aty S # fder o) faar w2

3H T P M H NG R b SUNRHT I e arel
IfAH &1 TN T fhar a7 iR S |rafey ST H faer
PR 3T T, veed B U U AfH g araRit @Y, &R
T SUEIHT & A1 fhy Y ergdy @ Frmi vd el &
IR TR FHE B Pl Feghdl & | W &% U A
A M gwrasl, srgddl 3R fIeRvll & 9 8 W g
T # Hehia Amel &1, 39 9RE B faR & gRumReaHy
IR / HeIRAT IR /AT M/ TR TS dTell
T 9T BT IH H TdT o 9T G99 T8 © |

THIMEHIUEaNE &l A= WReN faumTi / Hiret / ardvifae
g3 P SEHl W BRI AV WRIE 3Ny fAed &1 S9 onewl |
e TR B @ B @ 918, THnEiITEs | i
orgT e faaRer R far ok Hdfta Suartedl & Wt
e a1 AfaR<h e & Raai g=RIRT &7 gfayfed &1 S |9
AT IFH TE TS DI g FARIRT BT Aradl B db AR f&am
T A | BTG BB STANTHARN 1 6 faaver a9 ofdT o
AW H A FEl W9 Y SR ST @ ARl Bl T8 NI
Y A THNSHIUNANE & URT © | BTeAifh, oA@TaRIe &l i
D AR, TAASAIYAAE U AHAl Bl FrIfFdhar & AR W)
|l BT 3R STea—d—lea @d T8l §g GFRIRT SUANTDHA

DI AT B BT TA B |

5. TPy U o ¥ Fefa wora, S ol 496.91 g
T & T9 fby MU o, o 99 2019—20 # Mg Ud U
Grar & =T 7ai # {0 Y o, 5% 3rTel fad av (e
2020—21) H &1 foham T RS9 HROT ™ STaeRem &1
T T8l B T |

TAD! I8 |, X & folT 531.69 ARG BUY P MHEAT Td
T | IISTd H 531.69 Rg B0 P BT fexarg TS

Rae # fafed W@l & IR # gemEgwens 9 fag ad
2020—21 ¥ 3T B T | QT WeTd BT I BT 4TS F Tl
[ERIES I

6. 3 U4 &Y WA Bl AIC A, 66 B AaH H, fasharsll gRr
ITAT™ ST 9 U S/ <X A ST f6T S & BRor fa
UG 201920 B WRAI— IGih AP Bl ed H &0l
eI fU MU e & Jaror o7 goi A He—aAh Afharall
BT UTel &1 b1 ST e |

59 UBR & fddll I \eH SMEGRI §RT a6 H ol
foy o= & e A RAfET safsr & <of fhar )
IRFURT / SRIRAT 3R /AT AR /T R A b o)
I oo fPU 99 & T &, FERAmTE aRAERN W,
Rard &1 oM arenl Afr W fAawdret g1 I s &8t
fPU S9 & BROT, T e T ST AHhdT § |

IHY TR STAST ST R 3R Red ¥R & dRoT fUwe a9 #
Y TS Faret & oIy dexi I f9d o & de—aifw fafdr iR
PHRAT At 81 ST © |

7. BUN 7 FEAYYT of@id i (e 2 (VII) & Hed
H ™ g9 R, R & BRAiaReT @ FHT UgaT
Py S @1 qomy axgall @ 9! W e aret ora &1
Td AN® A UEA S & e H SU (R ofgid
A1) R 2015 gRT RS "Suh1si & el 3y |
e aret IoRE” R R ogidd #9196 (Ind AS) 115
BT UTer 8} fhar | Raré & 7 emAes, 81 3iR ®u=r
31 aREuRRET / <Al R, IRA ogidT 7196 115 B
Iy H VoRg B UgdE H 39 UM b dad H udl
ST U | T8 R

TSRS B AT b IR, avgell B R B forg arer
ATd FHI I 39 ToTRd BT Ul 77 ofchl = | fa<T a9 2019—20
& forg faxfra werd IR R FHT U 7 AR IRATT <l
HHEGI & AW TaUE U maeahdiel &1 fafdedd uraq fear
2 3R I8 oG UgAH R URAT oRdih AP 18 gRT afofd
AT STIETRUM & SNR 2 | Tanuwansg 3 $arvdt RiveH
¥ 50 wEferd fbu oM @1 ufshar § 2 arfe o ittt
qchTel vd I ad A g B S D |
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o w® 19

1. Alc 9. 46 & fory wed omfya fBar Srar & fOrH | 39 AMel TR 27.12.2018 B UASSHITHRNS & Fawid Hsd &
Y & IR Selagi«a! Td GaT Ui #arerd, o | 1084} d8& # faar fear war o | faRga fer—fawet & T 9
vrenfal faarr & ke W fad af 2018—19 & T | S ISR AR BT o

HUHl BT Gl A Bl Agdg (bl TIT AR T

. . _ > TASNgEdl, ool 3R UASRY, qaveRr, Jifsen & forg
’ 2@%@??@ Pl / SeHiel e @ \H:; TAIMSATTHRNS ST YRS Yot SThISe a1 Adhell 8
ANTT & 7% WX AR fham a7 | s9d URVITHRGwY '
@ AR I %@Wﬁwwﬁﬁ?ﬁw > TS, v, el oY TSR, YA, i & e
. . T o J & O drell STl Wex Ag—fa=urg Jqareil | 8 drell
¥ BUA B AT TSI H BIHl HHY 378 3R 5B U9

B N Y o Q- maﬁuwlﬁd qRATS #&(T) & ded |rsm fear
> 39 S BT JAN QA 8 A Sel Yex Bl giarel
AREHRN @ JNUSUH &Y 3R S99 & forv foham SIe;

> TRMEHTHSTE gRT TR IR $—drae afad &
o0 RN ® @Y S R@ aAHE 60 YeRT B STeTTal YIS
AT AT B I=AA B W1, TAG GRINT JeH &
fog ofR 31 Ve Sirs |l |

> o 9 2018—19 & 9% A TRMEHTHRNE 7 TaSRigad
P 3MUSUH Wd & v ufay a¥ 8 wRIs $uy @ &1 B |
i a9 e a1t oRa | BT 60 YBT3 THTSHT gIRT
A fHU ST aTel 8T BT & BI9 aTell 3IHEHT BT WAt
3MTSYH d Pl GRT R AR 7R SIeT Hex ol gHardl
O B S | BT SIreT |

> TARISHIgHaNs, SIRIh AFGs! & AR, o< 99 2018—19
@ T iR /A1 A ST & I W B Tt
WY W 7% BT IRET AR iR a4 ol |

TITE TS 91 §RT BT AR UfhaT & SR 01,
04.2018 @ STTAR ITIAT IMRFST AR iR N IR of W& 2 |

2- B9 WRAII—oldidhd AHd O $U9 & AIc ¥, 40 UR | THRMSHITH3NS §RT A% a¥ 2003 3R 2000 # #wTofl BT
2 e @R RSrad el o o9, 78 el & | @9, 93 e Rod tHdRIRT & B3 daf IR W¥Q Y i
NI & Y H 931.50 oG TUY & Hded /WM oG | 4. 2 3R 3 & fory vy 9 Hagq /Wi o9 (Cged
(ersed $8) 9§ & WA &M db TSIaRYT &g ifad o7 | | $1S) U & forw grengivwang war o) W& ¥ 39 9R #,
TAIMEAUE3NTS & UAST 9 fadid 17.07.2020 &I forg oz &
HETH W TR & HIUHS! Bl A BT Th gR B STHemRT
& 2| TS Tes Afasy # off 59 Aol R TR B are
T B BRIATE! SR T |

aR® forig el & ufd RAd R s @ (@fawrs iftfe)

d- 9 A9 T T/ Yfte FifE gqD HROT IHTAT Y | 31.03.2020 TH UV FARIRT I Ffd A9 gfe 75 oINT o g
# W@yl Tord FATHI B Fhd B e 2 | Tt /et enfe @1 U uE SR T fRafad ufshar
g dIfd 59 9 98d 4 afdfshar o el ¢ |
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[ I @1 veeE d& RS a9 HRAT i SHD
I9E 9 I deRI ¥ JHEE B WRUS T PR UM DI
AT BT HhT

orEToRIe @t fewelt @1 A B forar AT ® &R gerr wes
d& TR (M) B RAfT &1 FHem & T | D MR
R, Yol & Raamp avRifd, s forg Aifieras safsr awra
g TS 8, B 9o /SN fhar ST | weengiiwans e
SRl RiveA # 39 aarfera fhy o= @t wfthar # € arfes o=
Tfafafral & da vd Sfad e @ 4R fHar 97 9@ |

X- SUaer A & Fufad rgafd SuanT & 99+ & forg

STINTHAT fIRT / FTeT TS HIVARNS &l Soldei~d Ars H

UTEdl /AT gRT dusl & §6 @ # AT/ seideid
HEIH I WOl T8 &R BT orRaid:

g BEAIART YA © | BTelifd U IAfSdier urafadi @xie amesr
A Gag ©, olfdba A= yarl & qraeje IS0 I |/ 3T Al
e & | orEr e & fewell B Al wx form war g 8k
U geRIRT & §9=a g WA 3 iR 1fde s g g |
T TAIMSATTHATS Al TR Tl dR Ad | BTedifh, 21.07.2020
I NUHTHTd & ArgH 9 e arell geRIfT & AHel | W
€] I @T ST 3R 3= SR & U Hansiugas o
dpi H geRIRT STell T8 &, S99 AU B |

% UTERl ¥ 9P T )i A ARH B el d ITDI

AToRIeT @1 fewoft & Jie wx o T @ 3R SudRhRl 3R

BTl 3T BT ifh VAT 7 B I UTed! IR dexi &
IRH I FHRT < H A QU Teld AT B Gl 7; AR

dS | U gRIRT @7 agelt A1 Fuee =g vias # &R &1fde
TN fhT T |

M- wuRy, W 3R SUBRUN &1 Hifde I e

gREURIT @1, S9d ORI/ Aued feu 9= & Gey | Sfud

ORI, BRI Td IWRRH & THCIdIOl TR Heeayol
THTg g bl B |

faavor & rer FeiRa ooft # RelS < O W8T 8 | 39 e,
TS HITHATE JE&ATS (THUT 3R TATTSRI |HA) AR IHDI
STHIT ShIedl B, Udd O 9§ & Jar 8+ W), 3 Al
qrefl Afafa g1 i aR¥guRml & Wifds aQmas fBar < <&r
g1 9P ITTdl, UASISUITHsTS H U | Tod B TS
3R 31.03.2020 T GRIIT / IIFUART BN BT ST Fabl aGAT DI
SIQH3IR H QU Y yraei & SR A / e -+ &
gfshar et &l B |

p- HU A AN Ud I I DI TS A THI B 36
gfshanatl gd e sraeRor (BT wi<ie) &1 ured Fal
forar 2|

AT TR SHUFST ST B IR Red Brsad &) @ forv fuwer
Y dex} gRT ST TS 13N BT ATATT U PR B oIU he—3Nh
fofer feriRa e srfvard & wmar 21

I A% faeel

AT SHfeqd Her Ofdad 5@ @
fRye ded @ forw ik S e @

g0/ —
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

Huelt 3ifgfergar 2013 & grer 8 & dgd HIed TThIE BT UHA IGOTH

@Rar R

gfReafri

o REuRm

AU, FIH 3R IS
HURT & ITANT BT ARTHR
3 3 AR
foir |ufr:

T

3 fo<ir |ufer
RANTT PR AR ()
3= W AUk
EIGEEIND

foeira Hufr:

YR U

b TG Tha HHDE
SW (@) &I BIS TR d§@ deid
= iy <t
a1, FR i (3)
3 qAHE FURRT
FA Ao
el AR <Farg
gfaady

MEECINENCR]

=g sl
LAY

HIeMTET: 7489914 cT1995TTUIT072045

31.03.2020 99 3T

ferequfy
&

O© 00 ~N O

10
11
12
13
14
15

16
17

T o H
31 9/, 2020 31 W, 2019
b T
4,692.75 5,405.80
1892470
4,356.78 7.065.05
107.08 701.43
49459 458.50
4,309.46 3,516.83
1164.64 167748
18,987.52 17.398.08
74,608.42 62.678.42
76.137.47 87.350.17
4,060.72 4,479.16
1414829 14,034.31
29,515.90 2498422
2,51,508.32  2,29,749.45
200.00 200.00
59,014.02 4993782
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@RaR R

LILIIEUEIY
[ERIRECUELY
3= faxia <ueTd
], SFETY
faxfa <gamg
MR <
e 3R oY STl BT Bl BT AT
e 3R Y T @ ITAMT 3T DI ol AT Y
SRR CRIDECURIY
SRS S UL
TTeRIT
T F v I
gl & foy Ag@qul of@id= Aifaar va fewofiar
Wer fewfordt f=ia faarol &1 S w1 2 |

AN Y T g9RI RUIE & AR

YA U8 TRl
RSB ARCECI AR
HYT GOITHRUT AT 00240591
80/ — 80,/ —
&g | weid AR fa
ARER ey fAeerd
JEIAT ¥, 539439 SI3TSTH: 08710751
80/ —
= 9
CABIRSIED
THITH: 31700
I ;A8 ool
fadi® : 29.07.2020

feool 31 W, 2020 31 W, 2019

& G G

18 16,669.42 40.46
19

817.14 466.66

23591.47 34,465.51

20 3,.804.85 1,466.94

21 1,47,336.90 1,43,097.54

22 7452 7452

2,51,508.32  2,29,749.45

WA FPhifeay Hex Afdfle 56 3
ey ded @ fov 3R S99 e 9§

80,/ —
<. o AR
areget
SIS 02677079

80,/ —
AP AT
THY /Y
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

(Ut sifgferaar 2013 % grer 8 & dad HTed TTPHIE PI IUHH)

HTEY: Y7489981T1995TTIIT072045
31 W/ 2020 @1 WATK 8¢ 99 @ oY MY Y9 =g o

3 orar A
. =RaR Ry oot 31 W, 2020 B 31 T, 2019 B
| 4. A gorr a4 A< gorr a4
I
I AT 9 Y 23 1,15,628.59 1,14,952.83
1l 3T A 24 10,302.89 9,080.50
W e sm (+) 1,25,931.48 1,24,033.33
IV =
IEEIRCIECAIRCRI 25 17,829.00 24,139.51
HGT AN g 79,126.55 85,252.84
HHARI At I 26 856.31 1,092.63
IENRSIRI] 27 1,037.41
FeUET Td FORe @ 28 8,605.14 5,086.44
3T Y 29 5177.70 18,248.79
o @ (V) 1,12,632.11 1,33,820.21
V 3= @ am/ (@) (1-v) 13,299.37 (9,786.87)
Y/ J—p— 4,223.17 (1,263.53)
(1) IoH H 482017 75237
(2) ImefId o (792.63) (3,662.45)
(3) UBl & Ul BT HR FHARIIG / (Ffcrela) 195.63 1,646.55
VIl o e @ o @ g s/ (@) (V-vi) 9,076.20 (8,523.35)
VIl arg w9s &
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& e fewol 31 91, 2020 &1 31 A, 2019 B
3 4. A g af A g a¥
IX  oafy & forw ga e o (6T / (@) Wi ok ad @ Ry e 9,076.20 (8,523.35)
AUh 3(T)
X oy sfdt IR oy @ 3R wiefie o 100 %)
(1) R @ F) 30 453810 (4261.67)
(2) SIS (3. ) 30 4,538.10 (4,261.67)
Gl @ foly #gcqul oikgie il v fewfor 2
o fewforyr faxig sl &1 aif= fewar 21
39 Y qo g R & R A SHPifcad dex AfdiieT 56 @
AT TS TR e Aed @ forg iR S99 e ¥
JST TETHR
HYAT TOITHROT AT 00240541
80,/ — 80/ — g0/ —
g W weid AR e €. o FAR
RIEC yder feere areger
JEIAT ¥, 539439 TI3TSTA: 08710751 SIRMTST: 02677079
80,/ — 80,/ —
Liba RS AP G
HY Ffa THU /AT
TfIUg: 31700
M : T3 Aol
fadid : 20.07.2020
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Aeelet SBiAteaR e AfafH= g

Pucl aifgfererar 2013 o g1er 8 & dad WIeT TEHIE BT SUH)

HITETA: J74899S10c11995YTUY072045
31 9T 2020 THE YATE HAT

3 oraEr
@RaR Rard 31 W4, 2020 B 31 A, 2019 B
AT ol I AT o I
"ot Tl | THe yaw
G4 llﬁ ARy / @1f) 3R SRR 7Y 13,299.37 (9,786.87)
@ forg grie:
TUER R TV @ 8,605.14 5,086.44
HURy, |9 IR TR BT 9 R a9/ (31) (2.37) (1.49)
fa<frr amTa 1,037.41
ST | I (8,161.28) (6,644.77)
e ol & fofg wqens /- (ggf) (1,454.25) 9,588.17
T &b Reefrd e/ (gs) (451.32) 1,712.20
R I% Td ATH IR S B Racs e 0.41 120.04
Pt Uolt TRad & Ud 1 ware AR/ (@re) 12,873.11 73.71
& forg Ao
IR W § () /FH (135.20) 184891
T 3R AT Ud 3= uReulrdl # (gfg) /HHr (4,322.32) (546.63)
@AMUR ¥ T4 3 el § gfy / (@) (8.405.61) 2,726.05
Harerl 9 fiem arer Tae 9.98 4,102.04
3G DR I (4,820.17) (752.37)
fUoe auf & ol oMy &R (195.63) (1,646.55)
ST3TSY AT ¥ HefE qdadi a¥ b1 arel (4,766.01)
warer TR ¥ 3g To1 v/ (@Rafe) (@) (5,005.82) (3,062.88)
faer Tffafey & og wa®
Jrad gR¥ATRMEl & WRIg (2,823.15) (8,582.47)
THSRIR # # fager 11,212.70 27,374.20
araet aReuRRN & fag 2.63 6.59
faepremel= Syt <ufrat
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ISR 8,543.65 6,644.77

wareH TfakeEl ¥ gg Toe A/ @Rak) (@) 16,935.82 25,443.10
i sl & s warE
TSl bl HITATT
i wfoffeal & gg o vars / (sfats) (m)
q5q U4 dhe wHaE 7 g g/ (@) [@+3+) 11,930.00 22,380.22
9 B IRA A THS TG TP I 62,678.42 40,298.21
9§ P TG BN R THE U DS GHPE 74,608.42 62,678.42
ferafy
1) a9 & FE B9 IR 99 e 3R AT BT bi § Adhg vd 99 Ay F e wR far w7 ) e 59 yeR

&

@RaR Raré 31 99, 2020 ® 31 WG, 2019 B

| g I FaTa gl I
THG U9 THG qHBE

Joi # 99 32,287.27 28,395.00
3Ty Erdr 0.50 0.50
I §% 9y
Trafer sEr 42,320.65 3428292
74,608.42 62,678.42
39 Y qo g R & R AT SHPifcad dex afdfieT 56 @
P AYATA TS T it Hed & forg ok S ™% ¥
JST TETHR
HYAT GOITHROT AT 00240541
80,/ — 80,/ — 80/ —
g W weid AR e €. o AR
ATEER ey s JreTeT
ARl 9. 539439 SIBMSU: 08710751 SI/TST: 02677079
80,/ — 80,/ —
Ll RS | ANUH AT
HuAT Afa THU /AT
THIT: 31700
I : A8 feeel
fedi® : 29.07.2020
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AAA SHIATEEH Aer AR S

(Ut sifgferaar 2013 % grer 8 & dad HTed TTPHIE PI IUHH)

HTEY: Y7489981T1995TTIIT072045
31 W& 2020 B TAG gY 9§ @ fog sfeadt # uRadw wem

F. 100 %./— U IR & 19, Feupigd AR GaE &Y 77 IR & fog st I gon

3 o §
@iRaR fawor | Ruhd | e R
1 3 2018 d® 16 200.00
99§ & SR gRad= -
31 919 2019 TP 16 200.00
99§ & SR URad= -
31 91 2020 TP 16 200.00
@ 37 St (Ruh 17 <w)
3 o #
&RaR faaRor IRfga it sk Ry oFy gt sfaEd
YR 3
31 914 2018 dH 63,682.39 63,682.39
U UA @& 3TTdT SRSy UR3ASHT o Fafd saret (fewoh 4, 54 <) (3,351.27) (3,351.27)
STy aRATSTT THeU A Hdfad &l (fewrell 4, 54 <) (1,414.74) (1,414.74)
gdacif auf & forg ewer (fewoft «, 57 <) (455.22) (455.22)
31 Hrd 2018 TP (JriSfeatiad) 58,461.16 58,461.16
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7€ TP 9
31 AE 2020 BT 880.31 287.55 033 86838 2,656.18 4,692.75
31 AT 2019 BT 925.59 37692 0.50 137712 272567 5,405.80
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4 — RN & YA @7 IRPR

R <@t §
&RIR fa=or wHafy & SRRT B [
SRHR

1 3T 2019 TP 21,285.61 2128561
TR

MYer

31 W 2020 BY 21,285.61 21,285.61
EANICE]

99 & foro FEoreeH b 2,360.92 2,360.92
31 A1 2020 BT 2,360.92 2,360.92
& 37

31 Wd 2020 B 18,924.70 18,924.70
5. 39 I HuRkrai

X ey #

@RIR faa=or KSILTED G
AR

1 31T 2018 BI 7,738.80 7,738.80
LERIS 7,136.91 7,136.91
fge™

31 A1 2019 BT 14,875.70 14,875.70
LERIS 2,707.60 2,707.60
foem - -
31 914 2020 B 17,583.31 17,583.31
EAUNICE]

1 3T 2018 Bl 4,045.12 4,045.12
¥ & forg Forened o 3,765.53 3,765.53
R ¥ g8 wh - -
fge™

31 9/ 2019 B 7.810.65 7,810.65
¥ & oy FURIEA Yo 5,415.88 5,415.88
R W gg wh

foem

31 914 2020 B 13,226.53 13,226.53
& TP I,

31 914 2020 B 4,356.78 4,356.78
31 914 2019 B 7,065.06 7,065.06




feweh . 6 : T

X wrar #
@RAR fawor I
31 AId 2020 B 31 A1 2019 BY
FRET SR
gfefa—IT2d, T JHT 11 107.08 701.43
Rl 107.08 701.43
&1 <—IT] YR ST Pl YAATSYeT & HR—Yd ge fed <X (Uod ay 10.85%) Ui 99 &1 SUINT PR ITd aaar
Hod § A A I forr war B
feuht €. 7— o= faxhg aRRduREi
X @@ §
RAR faawor Il
31 AId 2020 B 31 ATd 2019 BY
et o
12 W18 & 3 &) aRuaadr aafy arel Ja ST 291.60 291.60
W A TR SUIford TSl
SUIRSa <rs 202.99 166.90
T 494.59 458.50
¥ RS & forg AR @ 77 |rafey s
8.  IRIfT ax
Y & oY 3 IR I & Jg9 °gch
F.  IY UG g ol
X w3
2RAR fawor 31 ATd 2020 Y 31 A1 2019 BY
O |3 1 By ds
A 3T IR Yo 482017 75237
Uod 99 & IAAN M PR H ARSI 195.63 1,646.55
IR o
IART A AT 3R SRART 3R H gRaci (792.63) (3,662.45)
AT Td g orar # RS @) TE 31T aR @ 4,223.17 (1,263.53)
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(i) | 3T IS A (3NATE) T
a¥ & IR ARASTE # ugdr fby T #al W et s B
Bl 4,223.17 (1,263.53)
. 31 A9 2019 3R 31 AE 2020 P GG Y AT a6 & forg o) = iR A@idT AN &1 T TAT ARA B IR,
IN
R @ 3
SRaR e 31 91 2020 B | 31 AT 2019 BV
ST Ao W PR qd el A 13,299.37 (9,786.87)
§2 B go! URASHT ¥ R Yd 311
I R W [ AGiFT I 13,299.37 (9,786.87)
YR & HAET(h MY HR TR 39.944% ( 31 AT 2019% 34.944%) WR 4,647.33 (3,419.93)
e 991 & aanE M IR B Hew § FHe 195.63 1,646.55
PR b AXBNI JJE
B UK 3
=g aRufrdr (646.70)
R IR @ oy T8 F1 oM AT A 26.90 509.85
T S BR S 31.75% (31 HIE 2019: 12.91%) W 4,223.17 (1,263.53)
T vd g orEr ¥ RUIE @) e A1 aR Gy 4,223.17 (1,263.53)
g5 fby O 9o BRI & oIy Mg R
L 422317 (1,263.53)
T S R
IreIfia w) frefaReg & dafa & T wrar &
FRaR faawor o dic I TG I FAA
31 ATd 2020 BV | 31 W 2019 B | 31 WA 2020 BT | 31 AIE 2019 B
= ST B R @R TeuEm 455.88 (20.10) (475.98) (304.80)
wfewer swoif & forg wraem 3,387.86 3,455.43 67.56 (3,351.11)
HHAN & A @ ol I
HuRrdl & YA BT AR Y UeT gy 465.72 (465.72)
QRET ST (ARURT) BT gaHE Heaim 81.51 81.51 (6.54)
Il W 4/ (3) (792.63) (3,662.45)
e Tl o s/ @) 4,309.46 3,516.83
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Yo 9 ¥ 39 yeR feEmrr T

T o |
@RER AT 31 9/ 2020 B | 31 A/ 2019 BV
RN R TRFURET 4309.46 3,536.93
MR HR TIATY 20.10
reIfEa o) aREuRdn / (Qge), S 4,309.46 3,516.83
feud | 9 — o= IRl Wulwr
T omaEr |
@ReER e 31 A1E 2020 B 31 9™ 2019 &Y
IRV, ST T ST Tl qAAT WY 3BT AT TT
IR UST g 640.41
JMyfiadiall @ 31 1,164.64 1,037.07
T 1,164.64 1,677.48
feaoft €. 10 — =MUR W
T o |
=RaR fawor 31 919 2020 B 31 919 2019 @Y
SrgRfard, sreet w T 18,987.52 17,398.08
JgRIed, Afeve /= Tt 8,435.35 9,889.60
B Ifewe Foil & foru vmaem= (8,435.35) (9,889.60)
gl 18,987.52 17,398.08

* fa< 99 2018—19 & 9,889.60 TG 3. Hed & Wl U & oY UIaem= &I {49 ay 2019—20 & IR gRafid &R
f&am o | 39S aretrn, fO av 201920 & IR doiw i ey, fewoh 4. 58 <, W 3 a9 9§ A | FHR
Hfewer 0l & oIy 5% PI &R BT 99T 8,435.35 G %. & WG By ¢ o |
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11 — Fog IR The THHE

X @ ¥
@RaR faa=or aTe], IREaR™T
31 91 2020 Y 31 919 2019 Y
o & o
EENRCIn] 32,287.27 28,395.00
3
ST T 0.50 0.50
AEf ST (ol gRudadr 3fafyr 3 A8 | HH)* 42,320.65 34,282.92
g 74,608.42 62,678.42
*&& o1 @l @ d6 99 T
12 — THQ T4 ThE TPl & Il §8 9
X ¥
@RaR faawor 1o, ARt
31 WA 2020 BT | 31 HIE 2019 B
GIEIEESC 73,239.18 83,073.38
d% TRET & oy AR 41 Arafy s 2,898.29 4,276.79
T 76,137.47 87,350.17
et €. 13— =g o<y wufri
R wrar ¥
@RaR faawor Te, IREaRt
31 W1 2020 B | 31 AIE 2019 P
WEf o W SR e
T =TT 4,060.72 4,479.16
T 4,060.72 4,479.16
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14 — A &R IREURET (TE)

X dmar ¥

@RAR f3aRor 31 ATd 2020 PY 31 A1d 2019 Y
M R T (F§ I 7877.62 &g %. (fUSl a9 10,454.36) 15,951.21 15,680.86
DH:

I HR yraEE (Ree ure 81 gai) (1,802.91) (1,646.55)
(fewoh 4. 64 <)

Cac| 14,148.29 14,034.31
15— =g 91| uReufrai

R @ #§

@RAR fa=or 31 W4 2020 PY 31 AG 2019 B
UoivT AR & Sretrar S

HHaIRGl Bt e

JIRIETd, 3T |HT T 33.12 36.11
B (%) 33.12 36.11
= 3w

JGRI&Td, 3T /11 T

IR W ST iR = 28,559.12 21,103.62
Uie &g 2.41 336.28
I AT PR 3.21
T (@) 28,561.53 21,443.11
Jyfefematatt @1 s 2,182.13 5,217.21
CH

yfifaatell & AfiF ¥ W (EEITT &/ SRiT) 1,260.88 1,712.20
(feraeft 4. 59 )

g () 921.25 3,505.01
Tl AT (FHEGHT) 29,515.90 24,984.22
TNt AR TR BT AR
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% o ¥

ERaR faavor 31 W 2020 Y 31 AG 2019 B
AT AR I IR /LT ( 1996—97 H 2013—14) 117.91 120.71
PRI AT 2000—2001 TR TIEITH 2.54 2.54
ik

i o e @ forg yaum Rws 8 forar ) 117.91 117.70

TR W Aied & forg e (Rwe 78 fosam ) 2.54 234

(Feruqelt <. 64 )
ol 321
16 — gfaEdl IR gon

X arar #
@RIR faaRor 31 A4 2020 B 31 W14 2019 B
Fferpa
200,000 (frsel a¥ 200,000) 100 /— UfT sfdadl IRR 200.00 200.00
T, WeHspIge SR quicn T fear
200,000 (fUse a¥ 200,000) 100 /— ¥fr gfaadt TRR 200.00 200.00
Tl 200.00 200.00
F.  ITERS W YA (6% W AVS IR @ I IWRERS & 3awor w9a)
IRl & T 31 ATE 2020 BT 31 A" 2019 BY
e gy o (%) iR gfaacy AR (%)
IR A 4 IR A E.

SN, TS B HEgw W URT B Uiy 1,99,995 99.9975 1,99,995 99.9975
) v fAerd Rig 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
s e e 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
o U de e 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
o ey =g 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
i aTR T AT 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Ll 200,000.00 100.00 200,000.00 100.00

*RT IRBR B RB I g1RdT fHar 2|
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(@) Ruid Py o a0 98 B A R T BN W IR B THRT A T ARG

T o ¥
=RAR faaRor 31 A/ 2020 B 31 A/ 2019 B
& LIEl & LIl
T & Y § IR I 200,000.00 200.00| 200,000.00| 200.00
AT BR—ay & IR SN fBY 7T /R / (a9 TRIS TY)
a9 & ofd § gHET IR 200,000.00 200.00| 200,000.00| 200.00

7. 3R IWRI & iR SRR, T AR ufey

FHU S U AaC! IWRE BT UH o 2 9 Tl IRR &1 g7 100/ — 5. 2| SfAES W F IIS 9REG U aie

I IR BT 8PaR 2 |

| 31 99 2020 ¥ QXA U @ Ui 9 9 @y A, T A U A 999 IR AR A 11 9 & T8 & rear e
3 99 & fog g W IR A | 59 STeaT, SR IEf & SR @ W IR #T avw E @dieT |

17 — 39 i)

R wrar ¥
@RAR faaRor 31 9| 2020 BT | 31 WE 2019 Bl
I T G G P AR SR
EINEENL 49,937.82 63,682.39
@ IEfy IR &1 W
UdUA & 7Tl SISy Wiolde ¥ e <ol (fewef 9. 54 <) (3,351.27)
SIS Miolde UAhyA o Fafed «arer (fewoft 4. 54 <) (1,414.74)
gaqdi aul @ fory geue™ (fewoft 6. 57 <) (455.22)
TIH R IRMS Ay 49,937.82 58,461.16
AT PR— a¥ & forv 3rferey / () 9,076.20 (8,523.35)
T 59,014.02 49,937.82
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18— g fRig <9ad

T o |

=RAR faaRor Y
31 9T 2020 BT 31 A1 2019 &

JReAT T < 39.46 40.46
JET <Iarg 16,629.96
Rt 16,669.42 40.46
19— @R I

T o |
N 31 9™ 2020 B 31 AT 2019 &
AR <
e UG ofg STl BT Bl IHRIT 817.14 466.66
eI UG g ST & AATal 3 BT f[A THIAT 23,591.47 34,465.51
L] 24,408.60 34,932.17
oot 4. 46 <
20 39 fo<fg <gad

T o |
FRAR f3aRor T,

31 9™ 2020 BT 31 A1E 2019 &

T STHT <9 1,193.26 931.11
B G oy 207.87 274.45
app o 0.00 19.00
EEUETRIIY 2,161.34
qﬁw g (gg‘g‘f:[ ézﬁ W)* 242.38 242.38
Ex| 3,804.85 1,466.94

*eele 9 RS & Raare fAamar o wfaemor
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21 — I IAAM A

T o §
=RaR fawor 31 919 2020 B 31 91E 2019 &
I
TP ghraT 3N BN 8,587.10 1,450.60
SRR I T 31| 1,24,647.66 1,11,852.71
SRR O T 3T T 14102.14 29,518.24
BHRUNT FHEfSTh IANET I - 276.00
7 1,47,336.90 1,43,097.54
22 — YTEEH

T o i
=RIR faavor it

31 9Td 2020 BT 31 91E 2019 B
Y ST & forg vraere (Rwoh 4. 44 <) 7452 7452
E| 74.52 74.52
23 HaTdd 9§ oG

T o |

=RIR faRor 31 A1E 2020 & 31 91E 2019 &Y
AT o I | gom 9

el O o

el Y I 18,908.56 19,433.70

Jareil oY far 96,192.85 95,479.47

g () 1,15,101.41 1,14,913.17

Y AT NSTd

ENIRIREI g 527.19 39.66

B (@) 527.19 39.66

Harer ¥ g Tord (@) (@) 1,15,628.59 1,14,952.83
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24— I A

X wraEn &
@RaR faawor 31 9 2020 Y 31 /14 2019 Y
AT g I | g I

AT A A 8,530.90 9,094.45
i

SR IR (TTTT & 3relTan) W TS 397.49 587.22
U T TRITSTIRBI TR 1ol (ST Ferdd) 27.87 77.45
GRET ST R BT BT 51.96
a1 RS A 291.78 598.77
wfewe o7 (fewofl 4. 58 <) 1,454.25

smyfifedtatl @ iR (srrmrfoa / wHrafom) (feweh 4. 59 451.32

<)

10,302.89 9,080.50
25— f3s w1 o &N
X @ ¥
@RaR faavor 31 W€ 2020 Y 31 WE 2019 Y
| g 9 TR gl 9y

G-

SRR 16,476.12 17,145.55
HrreaR 1,326.09 1,188.97
RTET SraeRaT BT HaE 26.79 5,804.99
T 17,829.00 24,139.51
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26— HIAN! A I

T o ¥
=RAR faaRor 31 |/ 2020 BT 31 9/ 2019 @Y
AT g I AT g I
qI_ R = 824.43 1,057.11
HHART HeATOT 31.87 35.52
Bl 856.31 1,092.63
27 fohg ara
% o ¥
<RAR faaRor 31 91 2020 BT 31 91 2019 &Y
| g a9 | g a9
UET SIATS DI FAG B TR gAT ATl A 1,037.41
Bl 1,037.41
28— BN 3R FUNET T
T o ¥
@RaR faaror 31 919 2020 BT 31 914 2019 B
AT g I§ | g I
Ay, d 3R SudRor (fewol &, 3 <) 828.34 1,320.91
HURT ITANT BT AR (fewol 4. 4 =) 2,360.92
o o |uREr (R @ 5 <) 5,415.88 3,765.53
HA 8,605.14 5,086.44
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20— I IGg

X o |
@RIR faaRor 31 A1 2020 B 31 ATd 2019 BY
AT gom I AT gorr I

JETRIE Yeb (feoh 4. 39 <) 8.06 722
% gob 12.00 429
IS B d8H BT AY 043 0.20
fpard &R wa—uf3eg 2.67 1494
IR Aqel= 8.15 8.22
SHOEC! (@d 98- =T 8IT) 18.95 28.42
THAT /AR / SRR &g 41.28 133.99
SIRY ER 48.29 41.14
qrEq Td 5.85 771
HIRANT AHINTG STREIRE &g 40.00 176.00
SIS e & foy Sora 117 229
wferer o 9,588.17
faSTell &R o g 706.78 561.75
AT o 3.08 7.04
BT BT 3R ATH—ABTS Yoob 377.24 327.70
SICIGRENDIE 4.40 437
P HATT YR IR e IR IUGR ( T T84 HIAT B8I) 1.28
TSR] UG qed{shr Yoob 1.03 1.43
I Tl 9.70 8.83
BT @d 2,569.28 1,804.48
Prafery fxrar 30.21 2,186.94
o7 7 we 5.71 6.98
URIaR Ud WRTHEN gedh 234.33 221.08
fovrar &% vd o 994 9.94
A UG G—IETq 363.73 59797
AT B (G g8 HRAT BI) 30.49
S fwr uow 30827 27337
cforeq wd 38.70 42.72
AT Fd 326.46 31592
rEF-ugTd 1.59 1.69
Jmyfeferdiat @ 1M (TR T / FHmEnford) 1,712.20
Y Bx /A urau= 0.21 117.70
Segdldl R EEITd g 0.20 234
fel 5177.70 18,248.79

fasTel vd uri god AR TTSHHINT Ud Ah—awTE Yodh! & A # AU 71U rivs gg ufgfd & a1 & &
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30— i 3R I

X wmar 3§

ERAR vy 31 AId 2020 BY 31 A 2019 PY
AT g ¥ AT g

Afr IR
SRS SRuRG! & farg ey 9,076.20 (8,523.35)
SIFET WRRT BT ARG ad F=T 2,00,000 2,00,000
i IR I I (S, H) 4,538.10 (4,261.67)
At IR SRICs I (3. H) 4,538.10 (4,261.67)
afd MR ST g 100.00 100.00
313 qoa e
() seflar foxia @

T e §
ZRAR vy feaoft 4. 31 W1 2020 PY 31 A1 2019 PY

THAETE | ORI | THAES | ORI
AN AN

i aReufmi
ATIR I 10 18,987.52 17,398.08
e T b qHPE 1" 74,608.42 62,678.42
JPhe Ud ddhe THGE P IfcAal db Y 12 76,137.47 87,350.17
SuIRia &t (are) 13 4,060.72 4,479.16
GRETT ST 6 107.08 701.43
ARy S 7 291.60 291.60
ST @ (Remh) 7 202.99 166.90
o faxig aRuRmai -| 1,74395.80 -| 1,73,065.76
=i gag
AR o 19 24,408.60 3493217
s i 37 (@me)) 18 3,804.85 1,466.94
a1 faci SuaTd (o) 20 16,669.42 40.46
Fo i Saa -| 4488288 -l 36439.56
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(ii) Sfor qou uaTgHH
T foxig e S9e SRd Jeoa &) 9ga @1 Sl & A7 TdheidRvl fhar Sar &, 39 UdR aiiad (Y od 8—
TR 1: T oIl URAURRT a7 <aamsll & foly Afhy IoiRl 3§ Igd ((rEmrifG) Jed

R 22 AP e e folt AdH WR BT $9Ye, Sl Sfd Hed A R Ag@yul Y9G STed &, d Jce Al
el vy A faearofg 2

TR 3: i daiid e foly <JAqH WR &1 g7Ye, S Id e 719 R Ag@yol g91d Sfefd &, 98 ey
qOIR 3ffdel W 3menRa T2 2 |
Y & IRM WR 1, WR 2 3R WR 3 & 91 HIs SR 78] gl 7 |

b U e AHBEN, AR U], F= YT, AT—HITh K0I, DUR «d U4 (=g e =i <aar & oy yee &
JATHAT B FTAR §77b I I 9 IG—WME AR b ITH SRR 2 Sl 98 88 b g1 ARl B AT—dbI oD
gReadr & HR B |

FU & —ifeld AT GRe ST &l Ifad ed & MuRY g Tdhe vae (SRuw) faf &1 g &) e
AT B, 399 B &% BT JAN fBar Srar & S Rurd fBy S &1 /@ & |\ 8 IR deiR 0T &) Bl fafdfdd
FRAT © | UfTUel & 0T SIIRgA |H ST TG & FAMY & HROT g5 Srad el YaTgHd § WR 3 SFId 43
it # g7 e 2

32 fri Sfew wdem @ stw ol AAfti
FU &y R ARl § MR <, GRET ST, AT 99 ST IR SHAR) SIdTd 31Tl & | du & g faxia
R¥uREl § SR U, R S, Araf ST g dared 9 WY e arel Ade ud @ 9 e # |

HUAT IIOTR SIIRGH, 0T GIRGH 3R dReldl SIRGH & 3EfIF & | HU-1 Yeuq §9 SIRGHl BT Ueel Bl & | BUl &
IR Tdee BT Qe Fed o1 9HdT U BT © o fa<ig SiRaH 3k wue @ forg Sfd fa<ia siRaw e
FRET TR WY < 2 | 8ol Ul & TeeF Bl AT BT 2 fb w1 &1 o siikew wfafaferar sfra ifqat
Td UishATell §RT WA © 3R BUT &l Il Td SIRgA Ieedl & AR A<l SRaAl &I 98I, Sws AT 31R
IGT gefg fmar Srar 2 | gde S ey § IRgd $ W IS SIRgH & Feee 3g Sifaal @l aHieT dRar § &R
U WAy <ar 21

. 99R SR

ISR SIIRGA T SIRgH & ST 9ardl & 6 Uah foxig oA &7 9ids & 9dhs ydTg &l 3o 4o H JoiR i § 8
drel YRG! & PR IAR—AGE BT | FIGIR SIRGH H 9 bR & SIRGH Bl o— A6l &R SIRgH, T S gd
3= e SR | faxirr A \rafy SRl wWd areiR SiiRed gRT IIfad B 2 |

| A

TSl &) SIRGA 98 SIgd © o U o=l Aed &1 Sfa g a1 w1l Fas ¥aTs H 9ok &l &)1 | aRkadd &
HRY IAR—AGIT BT | ATGTR TS &I H B dlel R & BRUT BUAI BT SIRIH G WU A BUAI gIRT dabi A
fpy U Arafdy SRl | HEfSd 8 1 du & AEfey ST Af¥Ed ) W @ S ® | $9felY MR of@id AFd (Ind
AS) 107 # TRYIT &rel <) SIRgA @ e 981 & difh IOk &arel <= # uRads 89 & SR 9 A I@—@1q
JIRT 71 & WY Adhe varE # Bl JeR & 95ea BN |

@ e g1 dageeeran
faeell gar SiRew g SiiRew & forad Ay &= d uRads & SRl A9dl Tdhe Ja18 & Id Jod § SAR—AGd Bl
2| Aifsew gReuRrl vd qgamel & Sfud 1o § dRads & srer el ga1 Siked daeefiaar & &Rer Bu &1
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IR Yd o™ AT BT 21 S Bl faeeft ga1 SiRew @1 wawr 72 aife sHa o {6l geR @) 318 ) faqeh
qaT Hifad aREURT a1 a1 721 © |

. 3o SRk

Fo GIRaT I8 W™ & s ufcmer wusl & ufr oot a1l &1 fded o) & onqaef X&dm & | Ul &7 kol
SIReA J& /U ¥ THS U9 AHs FHdEl], TR U Td FRORIYE dFTd W Al 78 ki aReuRel | g9rfad € |
HUHT AR SUARHIRN UG 31 Hfuell & Q¥ IR ok d910 [GdT & 3R 9 SIFDRI BT 39 0T SIIRgd STy
# ofie Bl B |

T SIRGHT Y&e
U fA=fRad @ 3R WR S1Uferd skor g1fY Urae= eRdl &
T SNReH FITHROT BT MR nfdra F=or 'Y BT JraET=
FOT SNfaw &9 dhS UG e HAGE], s AT Td 31 12 918 & K0T eI &1 IHT
o 9y
FoT IIREw 7egw ORI, 0T 3R 3= fa<i Jrofiae Jrufara =T g1 a1 12 A8 B
gReEuRrat FOT B BT IHIS

U ST ATURS AEIA § M PR I8, IAD IAER R, T [0 gREURT R go IR d9 f[GaR fbar Sin 2 o
e 41 e § fAwe IBaT ®

T e §
T S @RIR =y 31 W 2020 PN 31 AT 2019 PY
T SIRgH 9 The UG e GHGE, db Sl Td I db 1,51,240.48 1,50,487.09
ML
T SIRGH FeTH IR U, 0T @R 3y foirg uRquRrat 23,155.32 22,578.66

AR T BT GHEO
MR 9 307 SIRgH & FAeayol Hagul & a1 IRd & faf= =af § hol 91 dem § SwRhT B © |
JUTERT 0T BN & foTg ST SIRGA WTaer™, HU= SIH a7 8 12 A8 & (7Y 0T 81 &1 3fUell Hell o |

X wrar ¥
@RaR faeRor Hod YG—@E R | AR For w1 | snfd gE vo-~ama i
31 91 2020 &Y
AR 27,422.87 (8,435.35) 18,987.52
31 W€ 2019 B
AR it 27,287.68 (9,889.60) 17,398.08
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B JIaET ST FHRISTH—3TSa S 9T 81

3 ot
TN AR W AR AT

31 91 2018 &Y T W 303.28
9y & IRM TRE I g 8 $I ggar / (Ir<i) 9,586.32
9T @I H ST

31 A9 2019 &I &I 9l 9,889.60
9§ & SRE G § g8 B B ggEr/ (<) (1,454.25)
¥ @ H SIeT

31 91 2020 @Y T WA 8,435.35
M. e shfdew

ORIl SIRgH g8 SIRgH Bl & fOraH Uil DI U S [N <arsii A SS! aMIcdl bl qRT bR H YR bl
AT AT TedT 2 52 Adhe a1 3 i aReuferal & wegd & @1 far S \ahdr 81 | aReddl & d&ed 9 Hul
ST B, el d& |94 81, I8 FHAREd &1 © 5 SHS U (U <Al & < B & 9 uAf| Al 81 | Heea
PUA & TRAAT DI R 3R APal Td AUET Tha Haig & AER R THe FHBS & Il AFAM TR ToR ]

2| dul Frg & Aol dToR &I axeldl &l &9 § Y&l 2 |

A arfereT H SreeTaTe B RfEd YIdEl IR Ul B R SId1RAT B aRudddr UIbigel Bl AR 2 |

T ot §
ATWR | 39F (391296 195§ | s5aui & ES |
e H
31 AT 2020 BT FATE T
Iy
24,408.60 : - : | 2440860
AR I
. 164351 54033| 162100| 647955| 1018987 | 2047427
=7 faxir <oamd
26,052.11 54033 1,621.00| 6,479.55| 10,189.87 | 44,882.88
BT
31 WIE 2019 B GHIG gl ¥
34,4655 - - - | 3446551
MR <
_ 146694 . - 404 -1 1507,
arey iy < 466.9 0.46 507.39
35,932.45 - - 40.46 -| 3597291
BT
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FUT & Yol FaET AET BT Ieed Ig GHRad -1 & b SU & U diddg 1Al B SMaeIdhdai I T HR
% o qaT< aReTar SRl 991’2 | HUAl SERAT DI YRT R UG ool U §91¢ R& & oY Yot |xesT H aRadd

DI AEWIBAT B BT o AR & AIHBIAD Tha JdT8 AMATIBATHAT IR ToR T 2 |

FUI e Rerfoal # uRad= o1 <w@d gy o gofl |amT &7 dee iR Sad geiifaa e ol 8 | goiTa
AT BT Y G AT FARITT R @ [y O IRRERBT DT AT & A H TR B Fhdl &, Yol
qIIq PR Dbl &, Tha b (oY Y YA TRI PR Al &, N bl Al &, g 2RI GIILT § APl © AT o1 SfeIa
g1 VAT 3 gevte Tfafafer R el € |

31 A 2020 DI FAC 8T IY & QRE Ieedl, Al A1 Albarsii § BIg uRac= 8l fHar Tar o |

R orar #
ERAR faRor 31 A/ 2020 BT 31 91 2019 BY

SR

TR < 24,408.60 34,932.17
I T 1,67,885.69 1,44,679.46
HH— FAhe Ud dbha FHDE (74,608.42) (62,678.42)
s = 1,17,685.88 1,16,933.21
gl et 59,214.02 50,137.82
goil SR g T 1,76,899.89 1,67,071.02
frafT Y= (%) 66.53% 69.99%

34. agie Ay § ol

A f3T 7Y BT BIS B BUN 7 T @M & forg, 39 fRig woe § wRqd oiRaidh N &I SRR o], fowam 2|
FHUT 7T 1 A 2019 B URMS ITART Y | IRA oRdidma A9F (Ind AS) 116 BT AR fwar & | uRomaasy,
R & @ 1 B TSN & AFAR UET el & foy 1ol eRkaiep =ifa # uRac fam 2

DO A FNRT YA IRAT BT ITINT B ARART oldid A9 (Ind AS) 116 T o1 far e dga ufcenid
MY TR RS SUANT BT AR U9Tg 1 1T 2019 F AT 1T |

X @
31 1€ 2019 I UST Ufdgag 28,674.62
gfg / (HH1): IeT el & U H YHeifdhd e
gig / (HH): TR /99 & A8 H FHrIoH 874.32
1 3T 2019 HT UYST SIATT 29,548.94
qoH™ ISl QAATY 2,296.97
R g7 IIaTg 27,251.97
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21,283.61 G YUY P URAURTAT & SYART BT AfTBR TG 20,050.86 ARG B. Bl UST IARN BT 1 A 2019 I

AT &) TS |
AR oRgTh= A (Ind AS) 116 DI AUATT & HRUT @i A H R & 99d 59 THR o

T ey #
oy, HIH R SUBRT H HH
ugr <uar H gig 18,791.30
SUANT & PR H gl 18,924.70
SR R aReuRral # gfg /& 465.72
=T ama | gig /@ 1,037.41
qouE™ ¥ gig /A 2,360.92
35, UET
USSR 8F & AT
@) uRYuREl & SwarT & AfeR F 9fy

X ey #
RAR =T 31 W1 2020 PY
IRAURT & STANT BT JRHR, e Fuly & B o 18,924.70
@) RAfET saf & Tra g9 R WIRT & SWRT & IR o1 T 3 JITER I@-—TE 1

X o #

@RaR e oy 1 goft 2 A

1 31T 2019 Bl Y 21,285.61 21,285.61
9y & oy HeTe™ Yob 2,360.92 2,360.92
31 A1 2020 $T IY 18,924.70 18,924.70
@M  uET <R P IRudEar fagewo

X @ #
IRugadr faveyer — Igeuie Bevfed Aag yarg 31 A9 2020
TS 99 A HH 2,161.34
TS A uig 9y 9,552.17
g auf o 1S 15,021.93
Bl B T gET <Y 26,735.44
o ofie & wfder ver Sgag
dlef 2,161.34
AT 16,629.96




@ o e § SfeaRaa ewRifd

X amrar #
@Rar faaRor 2019-20
el QI3 IR <ol 1,037.41
UgT SIARIl B A9 H wMfEe T8 By U TR ugr YIdE
URIGURRI & JAHR & IU—Ugl IR <7 H §g A
FT—pIeld Jel ¥ ST = 30.21

BlIS PR

B daTell FURRN B IS W WG 2, B Hod dlel GURR @ Acu—dIied Ug Pl

(€) g varE wF # SfewlRaa g= Il
ugl & fo gl e dfedis W3 2,206.97 <G 2. B |

36. ITHRAD TTATY

Jof oie fIfY & AR, U gRT STANTHARN ®I &1 WM dTell AhAse IR & Had # MMHRAS Saarsi =)
femR &1 far a1 € ife aRareEmRel & forg smafd fhy 7T Wi SusRT FHI—a9a IR fasarsii / smyfdadrei 4

TuHAT (AMC) & T8d ®eR By Y 8, aRET SEfY & 91 |

TS IS B TS IMHRTd <TG, SURRH & IR, 39 JPKN & —

3 oy ¥
2RaR fawor 31 W 2020 OF | 31 AT 2019 TB
Hudl & Rt aal B FEoT AL T T 104.58 99.66
TR 1864.94 1848.84
M TR AT (FERT 99 2012—13) 14.89
T HR AT (PR 9§ 2015-16) 350.60 350.60
| 2335.01 2299.10

IRRH B U B grge= =781 fbu v & waifd ydud &1 a1 & & afos § ff 18 ardfae gar /9 =8f gnfl |

37. wfEgaN

BN 7 IMYfTHaiall & AT fy T T I77eel iR AHSidl @ MR R MRS axgail & W¥IG Ud 918 Bl 7afy
H Harsil BT @M IO Bl ARG SIds 7 | S UGl ®f §eAd Al & IR [T fhar S AT © |
gTelifs, HUAl F MaRd RIS & foIw 31 AT 2020 TF VA oRa Ufidgad 116,68 o %. (Uoer a9 23.23
A %) AT | s feral, RfEa A /Red” # ¥ Uy U goinTg @ 39 TBR g
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% o ¥

. ¥. | &RaR faavor 31 A1F 2020 T | 31 WG 2019 9B

1 TRTeT TeT ¥ey, YameR 3594.88 4,696.00

2 TS FATSS AT BT Hae 3779.52 5,386.00

3 fSRgac 20— feRrea sfear uga @ orars 1380.21 1,407.00
T 8754.61 11,489.00

38. U AR, 2013 B FTHA ||| D T8d A Td FI W B NIR B 29 @AY el & g0 5(viii)
# & ¥ e & R

i C-FIMR W M & Jou: Y (Usel 9 =1 %./ PYRs- NIL)
i facel go1 @ g (eREe AR w):

% o ¥
=RaR fagvor 31 9 2020 9T 31 91 2019 HY
|AGT BT FHIG ol a9
AT — HHART (facw) TP H A8 TP W &l
Bl Bo Tl B el
i, faeEl gaT W oMy (aeRe R W)® Y S, (Uwel av IR 3./ PY Rs- Nil)
39. AEYAEP BT qaT*
T o ¥
ERAR favor 31 9TE 2020 BT 31 919 2019 9V
| g ¥ A g a¥
PR AQTONIET Yoh & A1 AQIRIETD BT Yodb 6.36 6.36
I PR SRITIRIET 0.85 0.85
SO (GST) oramasie 0.85
w4t @ Rff &g 1.91 1.91
A 9.97 9.12

*AN BRI BT BISHR | $HD 3rATdl, A= aRAreRI & oy gHofieRer $R1 gg 1.91 arg 3. (Uwel av (PY) 3.20
G %) B A fbar T S H&fed aRarerei o We g g |

40. IRAH AGiHd MG (Ind-As) 19 — ‘THARI AN B AFAR THEIHROT

i. ufes A § aFee

Ffh HUN & HHARI, 3 A 1998 DI AT H IR WBR BT ARG & AR UAASAl 4, 3 UG & AT
AR WR AT © el Sl H [l R &l wiasy (Y Jreer 781 8 | S99 da= 9 Ids q18 |fas (i, g9
fo R <R SR ARPR & (ANl & JFJAR UH A18 HI [ordl Sl & 3R IH ARl Bl Hol a1 Sr
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2 Wi TP ™SR TR T 8 X7 ST 2 | 39 YR, du-l R 9faey A 7 § wHarRal & fodn
YR & YA DR DI Dl alded 8l o |

ii.  3gHY IAT

T HHARY, 3 AT 1998 DI [N H AR WBR DI LA & AFAR TANS A | UAFGRE W AR &, Saehrer
A 3R (FRT HHARI @ 99 & oy MEiRT &1 & SR), HU §RT YD FeI 0T /UG Bl STl
2 3R R 39 AR 31 THRMSHl &I A9l f&ar SIar 2| Sy U W DY Idq / ThAIhRYT & YIar ol
IS AT TET 2|

ii. YA sive™

Tfdh HHAR), 3 A 1998 BT Y § MRT AR @1 AR & JITAR TSl 9 ufdgie w g ue
3 (W HHaRT & da- & forg MeiRT R & SHR), U RT HHANI & @I H YD FelT T/
UG Bl ST & 3R R IF RART BT YANGH! DI WSl [&AT ST © | S U WR U T & YIar ol
HIg AT TEl © |

iv. Iegd

T HHARI, 3 ATE 1998 BT [T H ARG WRBR BI JERIEAT B AFAR TAATSAT I FARYRE U= 2, Sl B
UBR & T=GC! BT YA PR Bl SRR T8l & il AP Td G a8 9 TSNSl gRT a8+ [ddT ST
=l

41. GERIT U& BT AHSIHRIT

Heferd vett &1 g
&l b1 M ey
3 AT {AR A8 (g ) TR Y& BT (14.02.2020 Th)
1 TRId HAR e (Teer fFaeras) 17.02.2020 ¥ &I U&= HHI
i Rrer FAR (HUi @) T UGG HHT (04.08.2019 TP)
s A1 SIF (Bu-T Afa) 16.12.2019 W &I H&&d HHI
e uell & W1 o< : —
T o ®
& BT A e B uHfa 31 A9 2020 ® | 31 AE 2019 B
|G gorr ¥ |G g Y
o T GAR s e e 36.81 38.61
o yorid ol Gaeray dde 4.10 NIL
2 AR HAR EECEIREGRE 3.48 9.33
oy oty @\;{ Sy e 2.87 NIL
q 47.26 47.94

el uell $r 31 A 2020 GF <F AR 219 AE %, (Ao 9§ 250 G T)
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42. 9RNY AGHT 995 (Ind AS)— 108 “HaTe €S/ Operating Segments’ ¥ Hafd Y&HEIHRoT

FHU G drEifier @S # dHad faeell # ddlpd e 9 WAl I&H aX W | 39 $Had Uh @s A9d 8,
o weAl # YR d@id AMd (Ind AS)—108 “HaTel- &S/ Operating Segments’ & TR ®Is THCIHIUT el
foram T B |

43.  Aws—a@ (doi) B g
faf=1 A5l & T8d Abs—ara (@) gie = IRy fHy U | IR B g ¥

44,  wHUY 9H /@i o (erged $s) a1 IR—Frerea

PHUHT 99 HHL: 2003 MR 2001 H FE A, 2 3R 3, BST T, TAIRGT AR, HIbrol BT @, 78 facell § A9
TR forfice & @NieT o | ETdife s AUl uF /Wi fderg & forw 931,50 o (Uwet 9y 931.50 ag %)
Ul BT YA BUAl 1 R QAT o7 oifbd BUAl & By IR RY BRI W W AR §RT USIBRUT &1 BHRIAT
AT | 39 Al IR AN ORI 1 Fafid wu 9 are feemn S %87 7| g9fery, Wi St & forw 7451 g
(ot af 7451 ARG %.) ST BT URMG Fae™ o< sl | fear T 2 3Rk faves <l afe &1, 9 & forw
e e iR 9 uofigd 2

45, HEEF @I QT A, GG SRIER ¥ g9 IR, 7o 3R SiH 3R AR e 1 5y e s-9—a0
g IR W 9 TA¢ T T, SHD W BT AR

46, TATETHES (MSMED) SRR, 2008 Y €IRT 22 & TET FPHEIHROT
R wran ¥
E| &RaR faavor 31 W 2020 TP | 31 HE 2019 TF
|
1 |9 S9RITY &R I a1t &1 YT fodl smafciaat &1 7 faar wrar & 817.14 466.66
2 | JMYfeiepdl BT I &I ST aTell RO & ATl GeH, o 3R 7euH I Mgl NGl
I Ifafad, 2006, F URT 16 & JTAR WIGAR §RT YA Bl S
CISICIC AN
3 | ged, oY 3R AeuH STM e Jffafrad, 2006 @& ded FEiRd &rst &l Nl Nl
Sirs fae Yarar | B drell <81 1 3/afe & fory S 3R < =ref [
4 | SUIfid =areT Ud 3res 99 NS NSl
5 | MM aut # 1, ged, ofg IR #7eaw QeM fasr 1™, 2006 @1 ORT Nl N
23 & d8d ekl AT Td & FUeH gg el IR SR 3R < 8, 39
Y T 59 Tb SRR 3T AT B IRGT H BIC SEAl BT YA B
fe=m T &1
47. 9RAY AGiHT 7S (IND AS) — 36 TREIRT BT JHET & ITAR THCIIHT

IRAR olRdid A® (IND AS)—36 "URHURT BT JHar, & AR, a7 a9 2019—20 & IRM, de TR Rerd srer
Hex, el Ut Rerd weel Ser Wer & Aol H UHeS delles Aidid & HaHd” 3k el ure H Sdefudc
Hex R 99 BT <@d gY, Sl BUAl & U The M dlell ShIedl & URAURTT & JHAT BI AThal fbar I,
3R ST e el YR & I BT Ul 81 deldl © |
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48. faTi 20.11.2000 P S AT ¥, 815—100 / NICSI/2009-DS & Raeired e aRAwFmRl @ forg ora
GO (SR / ToNaTR) (THSTERATHE §RT 31.03.2017 Bl BIST 3R DoT ERT UERAT 741 3R §69& g DOT &
A Yob T4 WagA Yo BT LA

UFRMSATTHS 7 31.03.2017 BT DoT olgd RS PR AT o7 3iR DoT 7 S WHR R forar o1 | DoT gRT fay 71y
AMETBPR—TF & AR, TANSHITHINE 1 Dl 59 A F HIRIT I UR 31.03.2017 TP DI YOI A5HA Yodh /
WIeH e BT IAE B f3AT 2| S AATET I[E A / TISRIRUG | e arell g==ifdn +ff e 718 2| gretifos,
T I ol Ee drter S 7 R $Ul & IoRa BT @ B ol THSMSIITHNE W AT AT ', U8
AT gelagiial Ud a1 Hreifiia! #37erd (MeitY) =1 SIS (DoT) & A ISR o7 |

& 17.07.2020 BT foE U5 & wegd ¥ UgH T oGl R3S BRI SIBIET 7 dsdd Yod AR WagH ISTANT
oo B forg THTEANTHSNE & Raeims et 7T el (are Mfew) @ oo o forar & (RAT® 11.06.2020 BT ¥RA
& AFER GIE BIE gRT RY 7T Bel &R fAd1® 17.07.2020 BT DoT OM ¥, 12—25 /2019—LFP & 3MER WR) | fadi®
20.07.2020 &I foT€ UF & ARIH ¥ UAATGUITHATE §RT daJaR UIUSS! ol@l Sl bl o af g |

49. TABTT URASHI W e oM (Rmas gob)

TASUA IRATSHT TR 19.07.2011 DI AT Bl T3 Sod WRIT AT B 98F & BRI & AR, TAbTA URATTAT
@ ded fhT S arel @d WR 1% & AdTe o™ ofF & oIy Selgia! Ud o WeiiRial #31ed (MeitY) @& Uaiad
foxia foamT (FEuwe!) A ORIy oAl T Jaeded oI | 26.07.2019 I TARNSHIVHINE &I oRATIxIe AT o
AT g3 @l 98, Selgia d Ga-T Hielfira! #3Terd & dobleid AfIR® Aftd 16 faxi Heear o sfegerdT,
H, 39 Al WR T4l B T, 3R Heqd A1 W1 {6 fe tAaeT wkra T 5990 FRIS %, WM o, Bl gl D!
Td Il RS JA B IMSUhS! §RT YT H Hel AT I8 ol (TIASHINHAE Bl 1% U godh Afed)
IR SeIGiFaT vd gadr el FAed & AJRNT & MUR IR ARRIS gRT gdiad $R Qa1 a7 o, g9fely
ISTHE! B FEART ¥ FHSl W R W AR 6T S @) IS SMavghdr T | 1 30.07.2019 BT UHAEATHINE B
e deat @1 AT g8 11041 4% # 39 Alc B forar 17 o |

50. ¥ SIS HeR Wiolde, I U, fieel W 3 /2

gelagial Td GaT Hrelfiie #ATe 3R TAesHl & < AEaNT | wRd SIel Her, ARAT U, el @ I
B T3 o 3R TET G, 2011 F BH HAT Yo HR QAT AT | W o7 IRfa gRy fdhy 1Y SgAed & o dR
THATERATRSNE Bl, oA 2 9uf B forg, 800 OIRG B, W I BT Feleld @ g BRAT AT| $H Gellel A Bl
T B B AU TASMSHITHINE ¥ Bl 3dfed 60 Yb I e b1 off | gTcfifdh THamsdivdans < 2 99f &
e ¥ FAT I ] FARAT HIAT SR T, FeAagi=dbl Ud FAAT U] e o, 01—04—2014 H 39 91 D
R A1 of 1, faRIy Ud Rg—<amd / Tl SRR d1 I@—X@d /TR SIaEE Sl US UH S & A8 WR
800 ARG . TH I STl Hex, ITH! UTh, fieel] R AG—dR HATd- & BRI 3R TS 319+ IuleRT TaelT
A TARMSHITHATS T faotell v Siotel Yoo / Hifcih YReT Ve BISHBIUT Yot /el Yoo /IAG Yoo / ATh D
Iobl W TANEATHNE gRT by S arel @ o) wfegfel, amw # vesngivasns g1 by S drel 39 @t &
are, 37 91 Yol & 3% Yo DI AFAYRT BT | Jamear § e STeT Hex wWifid dRA @& A1 TSRS
IR TARMEHT =1 $9& Ud ¥Md SIel U, WM U, fIeell & Hared Ud Yeed =g |Hsidl fhar | 27.12.2018 &I
THRMSHITHRITE & fAeere e & SmAfora &1 75 108df 95& # 39 WR AR fawar 1 iR 01 3iiel 2018 | gdamdy
g9 & A1 3H 39 UHR HoRI ol Te—

o TARSHIVHRTS TS U 3R Ya-gar SIel Wex & (oY T A Ulolde Yol ABISC a1 Aeball o |

e 3 GEI T IIEl WXl W DI—AldId Al (F8—IF HaQ) & ARIH | B dlell 3 & JRarfdd gRIror]
AEl & TEd @1 ST |

* Y BT WANT 39 IMI SIeT Hedl WR 3NUSTH T 3IR el adwadl & I+ WR fhar S |
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. TRRISHIVARNS §RT TS Ul R BI—dIdhId Afdd & foly SUINT H U ST Y8 IdHE 60 Xb & 3efrar
TASTSH! A dTel 991 & folg 3MUsSTd Wl I [T HR 3R gHATE! adve & I=194 7g 4l udi e
Iffa a7 & 1T 3R Y oA B Adhd! B |

. fog 99 2018—19 3R TP 91 ATH U & IJVSUH W & Hg H TAMSHIUHAS Ui 99 800 IRg ST W
& BT | BT 60 Vb IR TS gRT AT fhU T4 dTet 3R Vb & Aegq | 814 dlell iy 3HE-T
BT ITANT AVSYA T AR JAATET JTEEAT & I~ H far g |

. TAIMSHITATE facd 9 2018—19 3R IHS I1¢ HIUT MNTSYH Wd W a1 gRT fhy 7Y IFAIGT & TRAR AU
7% AT AT 3R B o |

TEIIR THRMSHITHaNs + o a¥ 2019—20 # w¥Mat STeT Hexl R My vd e fuiRa fear 21

5. TRMSE § ARIFMIRG W AT THenHivEaTs @ ARGl o Tecr

®O I af 2010-11 ¥ 2013—14 B RE THAEA W URIGRe W vHensiTaRTE # ey wH=iRat & forg
TSNS HITHINE & HAT Ml & IMMER R YAl & A8 H 189 SIRT %. & &R BT Uiyl @1 2 | HUH -1 17.05.2006
Pl ad Hed BI gs 4991 dod H AT a1 FIHl & AR 39 GERIRT B gyl o off, S Sigdl / Sraidre
feenfcen ik WRiTE ARl el & o1 ey 81 o1 | $9% 18 39 Wal Al $1 11.11.2014 PI TAATS AT
ERT R B] THRMEH / SAagifa Td a1 SN #aerd &7 §o7 a1 | 9IS & w9l & AR axgell fheat &
DI ST, TAMSHTHINS o A5, 2015 H HHATRIl & I A IR BT GAUNG PR ol o | 39 agell & R
HHARAT T A faeell Swa =Iad § Re Jfaar IRR &) IR 3ered o fedid 09.06.2015 &I 3T U ‘ameer
@ HAEH W, HAIRA] ¥ GHRIRT 9Ge W AP /T T <, del R 3ifH Bl B S aid! 2 | MRERSR,
AR faeell S=a =Imred A, f3F1® 18.03.2016 &1 Y 0+ Hhael # der {3, Far waf S aaA rderadra &l
TS AITHATS | UFGRh 8 amdas bl IR Bl & 3R IIR Yacrl fadbed faar| 59 f[Aded &1 AR o
SR T | ISR et & weier fbar o ok g9 91 R fare =€ @ 6 yrendiivwand & gof oM iR sw
By g HeeE or] %@ | U uRRefal 6, war wal | agema ey O @d @ S gt R & a¥gell T8l @
ST el | TEJER, RTara! 1 2010 I Ugel WIST H WA & g HHanRal I A7 51 W 2010 & AMEH AL a1
B, 39, ufafgie wdf | ofde & 1 eIl @ € axge @Y oAl 7 | orfie Sw Wi da st B

Slag I Td a1 Hreifiia] #31ad (MeitY) =, 316 14.07.2016 &1 fo U39 & ARIH ¥ UARARUITHIAE &I e
fean f a8 W HaRal I Affie—am &) aygel w9 W R g ale & R foram @1 feAt®
29.07.2016 P! ol UF & ARIH ¥ UANGHITHINS -1 Solagi-dhl Td o Wl §aTer &I qarn & aaad e
% IFAR UAATGUITHAE - TSIl & A # HHANRAl Bl fby MY ARTRBG—TAE DI gl oI ufshar bR 4 o
R &1 B 3R T IR # 29.07.2016 BT UE FHrAferd @I o I far A on, fwd aw gfua fear war o fF uw
AR IR, 2016 HTE B A A DI S T | TAASHITHSNE GIRT 9 AHGA! DI 16.08.2016 DI Feldrei+eb! Y LT
U] HATe & ¥l URgd fhar =1 o7 |

T B dTel BHATRAT 7 TSNS & i 29.07.2016 & HIRAT BRI QY & AR Il Ufhar &
R 9 g% By 9 & Raems A ool S <Iarerd H S[EaAE ATeT JRR @I, RTHH U digaens 31k
golagidl Td GaaT Uil FaTer, Qi &I & Ufdardl 9T 7 o7 | gelagi-idl Td gaar Qe Farer
Al R R I faar far iR feie 17.03.2017 &7 &1 M fewd) & Aread I UHISATHANE BT - feeeh
Sod SR R 39 AWl TR 18.03.2016 &1 fhy 7Y fofg &7 ureld & & Aallg €1 | golagif=e ud @
Ul #37erd & fenfrdell @ MR WR UAeMSHITHsg 7 fa-id 21.03.2017 BT UH HIIT AR OIRY fhar o
TS / TSNS HoaRal §RT fhT 7Y AR <ral o) axfelt 7TEH oy ST iR axgell ST g XbA dr 3
el FHI H AT ATAHIRAT B1 amad FR AU S &7 Seoi@ o | degaR, Tfaanedl o A faeedl S=a =mder
I 23.03.2017 BT BT T8 Gdls H AP 21.03.2017 & BRI ATQY BT ARIAMN TS R fu o & R H g |
D 918 JTHAT ATIHT BT R B &7 a7 @R gfcarfeal o1 fadid 21.03.2017 & HTATAT MR BT YHTAT B
BT e 3T AT | THTEHIgHanE o degAR BRIAE! Bl AR YRS @fh I ITH el Tg IBH a1 B o |

78|



9 419, 9RA & RIS U9 AeTeRdl Wied Hraiad §RT 998 H U & T8 U+ Ruic— A/, 2014 H FA< ¢ ay
$ RUE—dbg AR (HAR UG a1 e &85)—2015 &1 4. 55" § A HAT| 9099 H I8 FE9 dl Al o]
|y (God) & U9 B |

SISl Td FIAT W] HATe 1 SR & IIJAR 9Rd & =% Ud AeTeldl Wied Hraied & ga-r af
off | 398 A9 faoell Swa =ITed & Aol o O enfae fhar a7 o) s9 915 YRd & 5e Ud Herean
WS FRET 7 AT IeTerd & Fof 3t iy ok gHemsiivaens Jar frm § deies | WRER B AR @
gfey /Y | AT SrETed @ Ao @1 Ui aRa © FRIE® Td 8Tl WRIeTd Bty d SUde BT of TS ofl, 3R
I gfad fear T o & grenEiuwens war A # Wi &7 A ol ff AR @ fIaReiE 21 39 UeR,
WRBR F TSI dT () & Helee uR HoRl &g AFel 31 91 dld oikdl AAfd & I e 2 | #Ha
P Refd fUoer av SR & 2

52.  GRMRYl ¥ ARFMYRE W oY THengHivHeg SHaRAl o1 aRareHr sicars

UGS okl BRIy A Aol oRITaNie fewol) & JER R YHATSAIUHSNS o TaeR, 2014 H FeEH B U1 URATSTT
rcaTed feenfder THET / Selagia! Td gadr Wenfirdl #arerd & 4ol o7 | gfh 39 W ARl el el o,
THRMSHIVHRNS o a 2013—14 & 919 U7 HHATRAT BT IRATTT UIcHTEd B I el B Il 2 | 39fey, fad
¥ 201920 & forg 39 A5 # Hay # PIS yraw™ e a1 W 7|

53. UNSHl ¥ ARIMRe W yaensigwens # oy wHeilRal &1 uRase v iR smara faswrr W

HU T TS A UGS R UL AITHAE H MY HHATRAT BT 01.07.2007 I 31.03.2014 B A & SR
aRaET W H 49 ARG T, SR AT fIxmr w1 § 17 g B B AfdG R BT T fHAr &1 B T 47,
052006 dI BU B WP Hed DI g 4941 o ¥ AFAIGT AT AT & AR $H G=RIRT BT YA fBar o S
IRT WRBR & 9 & ogwy T8l 8| 37 Ja1 1 & Fee &G 11.11.2014 B TARIMSHITHINS & THSMSH! /
golagial T o Hreifie! #31ad &I 9ol -1 o7 | 39 dMc | gfafhar @ udie & | graifd, Fees dsd @l
ARl & STJHR, TSSHITHaNs - fa 99 2018—19 # g1 Wl & foy WRaR) sl &1 uree fan | amer R Rerfa
ool ad o7 &1 7 |

54. HERIAT IS URAIGHRI P IHYH FIEFRIN R AT

THRNSHIUHaNTS 9 fad ad 2019—20 ¥ WAl AJaM URIGHRA # aRAfdd AR W Tl HI T0ET a9 4
TATEAITINE 7 R <ol SR R Arafy S (Qwel) BT ofl, S SR @Y 3R AT 9§ 2018—19 S 31.03.2018,
fa a¥ 2018—19 3R o a¥ 2019—20 @ @Y & fory Hdfa aRAS & IS @AT—98 # fIvsd & TR B
Ioerg o, 1 1 g

X o #
rafer TIBRA URASHT | 3 SHEY IREISTHT A
31.03.2018 d&® 1414.74 3351.27 4766.01
foa 9§ 2018—19 & foruw 77.45 535.60 613.05
foT 9§ 2019—20 & foruw 27.87 397.49 425.36

55. WETEAT IS URAGHR H @reT 3 ARl W GiSE o FEied § ARaEr gws T A6t (S19e
3iffe )

foT a9 2011—2012 T, HUAl AT FAH I URAHRI & forg A arefll g==IR1 &1 o/ e uradl & I W)
JUARHT I AT AR A1 &) ol 3R TEJAR AUYTH FRIRT UR IRTAT FRAT Bl (b FHR BT ATl T8l (37 17 |
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s HSe A, 21—12—2011 BT g8 9% B IR, WIAGIDh &F D db H q9d W1 H AN AT &R B JIAR
FHI—FHY TR AT FSTIAT URATSATS H ST 3WRYTh FARIRT UR 3T1Sid TSl I TUMT 3R ITIAT B Bl HoR]
| TEFAR BUA 7 TS DI TOFT DI AT ATASTD &F & bl § 990 W IR AN ATl & W 3R AT LRI
BT GERINT A0 BT SIafch ST TRA gRT FeiRa FRATl 3R 3@l & JJAR, TRl g URITSTHRIT & 3TRh
Y IR ST AR TS DI add HIT ST & | ATl [l 5 fa<T 99 2016—17 T AihTd URATSHT g fau
Y TSl DI WIHR PR R 8 3R 594 A SRR URIGHEN 991 8 gl © AR IAd! RAa—{hde &R fear T
2| BT, U §RT TRGR DI IS AR GRATSTRI H HH ST Bl 7ol Fefd AT (TR1) ST Hrafad
H Tl VET & | TITSHITNaS 7 " (UR1) R SR oA ® 3R a7 ol Y B pratera # famRef= 2

39 919, fS9Td HeeT T 28.03.2017 BT AT (U1 10041 db H, AHA R R I fAaR fHar iR vHemesdeass
BI IR AR TR FERIAT IR IRATSTRI TR TS a9l R B FAE |

TEIAR a7 a9 2018—19 H TAATSAITHSNS = a1 HSTIdT URATSTIS UR, dd aul # SR wrer &1, fa<q a9 2018—19
H THRMSHITHRE o 5 &Il &)1 R 91y 91 &1 off, 9@ IR &Tol &1 TUFT aiRkdd MR R &I AR gaD
IR, 31.03.2018 T 3R & a9 2018—19 & fory T RIS & U_® FEEd # favesd =t v &, 9
TR

TeI9R, fact af 201819 & THRMEATHTE F e wergar gt iR, i auf § vHensiivaens 7 R s
R W AR ST P I, IHD FTAR TSl DI IO IR R R DI AR §Hb AR, 31.03.2018 T Hafed
GRITSTAT & YdP derdrd H faWed 1ol Uar fhar Sl fdl 4766.01 oG %. & (AT GAbTT URATSHIS § 1414.74
ARG %, 3R F A Gl URATSTIS § 3351.27 TG %) |

fUSE! oraT Hraferd, 93 | AMG-Il / Rep PSU/DAP/9993/NICSI / D—2024 &I 14.01.2020 & AITH W, "26.36 BRIS
JUAT BT BIM SR A AeRIAT URIISHIRA # @l 3R 2@l &1 uTde 81 R d BRI SAGIRAT H 78.38 BRIS
JUAT B B A TR THALATHTS BT gIUe iifee urT (SUq) fear | orkardier &1 R g @ & uasrsiivasns
q I 9ul 3 g WERAT RIS § &5 | B dlell e WR 3T S arel SRUNS HR BT HF B AT ©
IR I &1 B arodl B & QIRM, S Ugel A BT ST g DIRUNES PR bl =T [ iR gAfoy 54, usel
YA Y ST g PRURS PR DI a0l & Fag H A9t DI AIKICT /3 R [T9RT & A IR AT @12 |
TSGR 7 f&AId 04.12.2019 T 3197 3fffee 79 4. 12 R f&AIF 09.12.2019 &1 JY IR & ARIA A WS
Jiffee wrafera & Jrd far & Ffd dRURE TR RA AR A1 M dR T & o a9 2012—13 ¥ AR
f&=am T JET 2, $9lely s AMe Bl AT PR TN & AT IR ol (AT Rifh TANSHAITHE Pl HIRURS R
QO B B d1e A, 3 R § IRT ISR (A1 1aT Feemsii) &I fhR | arud HA1 81977 |

56. YR U

THATSHIVEIS WRA WRDHR TG ISAT /g Uid ueel & faf= darerdy / faumt /el | udie 9¥ a1 g 3
TS URATSTIRI BT BRI BT 2 | FAFT a7 F) (STTheiR) @& aem™l & S 9R, I YR HIgHans &l fau
ST Tl 3AH DI 40% IT VAT RO e d AT HRd &, STald b Al 3 g w0 I SIS BeddR Bl WIS
& A H, TTMEHITHINE BT T & H HT MM SR BT Bl © MR VA gl o feefiady / ufowermos & 9%,
TSRS BT 1 e  SfeaiRad yirdr ordl & SR fAsbareil &1 Yd HRAT 81T 8 | 3 IR, I8, ATIR
o Blal 2, faxig oAl &) A 6. 10 # faavor g, 31 A1 2020 T& 27,422.87 ad 3. (Uoel ay 27,287.68 <G %)
S FUR YT GRIRT BT, TIRATSHAIVHAE THI—HI R $9d] U 5 AT [S9RT /|3l & U el I8l © |

57. 541, e U, Reeht & fog @l g [euer

TAIMSHITARAE =1 591 T, ARA U & forg MaRes FooT o w1 A TR forfd. &1 3 on | &M & w1 8
@ 916 39 a1 WR a7 99 2016—17 ¥ B YO 8 Fbl © | Blelilh, TIAACHNS § H9d el faff. & aifom
T =T 99 2018—19 H fdbar | TR, <7 a9 2016—17 3MR 2017—18 & U 455.22 G 3. BT JeIE Bl fd<
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I 2018—19 H =Y 3fdacT & ded IR far ar 2|

58. wfawy Feor AR et aweh o wae T 8, N awn

BT BT AGIHA AT B AR, Joid e I R 3 99 F 1fdd T99 | IHR-T AR U R 5% BT TR BT AGETT
2| Nisd 3fffee 7 urar ® fb wuel 7 Gfever o & aven & fow S T 3ruATE © S9E Al B

e SifSe & TWRRH Sl WR 3R TRRsHIvHss gRT Uwel ay & Wl W e QU S @1 a@d gy,
THIMSHITRNS § Hie &=+ iR o9 dferyr g=rifdr & urd 819 &) §9ra=T 8l 8 S9a forg fa<r av 2019—20 &
Tl H T & R T vg U | 9918 T8 oY |

foT o 2019—20 & foIT TRRMSHITHRTS & @Tdl d O Fiewe gvRIfT & U 81 &7 AU 98] & S9d oy ‘Ja=eT’
39 UBR DI Te:

(et %)
afy JHHT Y ufeera § wraem | fa=T af 201920 # | fa<T af 2018—19 #
TR ATaET

10 a8t ¥ a1 5,410.02 100 5,410.02 5,105.01
59 10 q¥ 4,389.95 50 2,194.98 3,926.59
39 5 q¥ 3,321.39 25 8,30.35 858.00
3 avf q 14301.51 NIL NIL NIL
ART 27,422.87 8435.35 9,889.60

59.  3Myfiwaiall o AR 3G WEEH

ford a¥ 2017—18 & oIy oRATMRIE HRd F9Y YN @ruie = 9 & smgfdaarsll &1 fay S arelm 984.16 @
SUIT BT ARH 3 9§ W Afdd RN @Y B ol 71 3 9¥ ¥ A RE BN & AW 59 Gy H waw fhar S
FRY AT | W= &1 fby M & SR IdAH IRAURRT B e IR Jraem=l & Ted a4l F & Bl 9¢T
PR et |

YIUES] @RIl & SWRIh fewoll &1 e H I@ §U UHeNSHIvHalTs H JMgfidbdia & MM el g fey
S B FAE 8l B, DI FHIET R AR gD oY g91¢ S dTel UTae=i 0 fdaR R 3R T o & oy
T AAfT g9 18 T8 o |

31.032020 % 3 AV ¥ 3AMH THY ¥ IHAT GRINT b o a7 a9 2019—20 & @@l H MYfcidpdia & forg s
D FARIT B TG H 131916 AT 3. (2018—19 H 171220 oG T, & YA & [JUNI) B FaRT Bl T3, TADTA

aRATSTIRI BT BIS &Y | a7 99 2019—20 & SRM, 58.27 G 3. Bl TR IGell T FAGY IMYfTpaisl & A
& forq fhy TTQ g WTaem™ 31—03—2020 Bl 1260.88 AT 5. o |

60. URGURM! T ITRINAT BT qor Td AR—acrar # afieor
SUHT I AT H, el @b H ageddl /YU & A B IAER GR YRAURTN R aTa1Ral o aaqr’ 3R
IR—adAE # Ffed w2

61. PRUNC WMIfTH STRSIRGT (THAIR) W @4

TARMSHITHRNS o a7 99 2019—20 (AT 176.00 TRI T.) H, 29.06.2020 BT TANSHITHI’NS & (4% HEA Bl 8
11341 Sod ¥ & TS WP & JAR, DRUNS AHIGTH IRENIE (HITHMR) WR W9 B 40 ARG, B, B NG
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2T, I AR 26—06—2020 BT HIVHIR AT BT g5 541 d8F & RABIRT W T T oY |

62. SIS WA URAGIG
3T R URATSTI31 & ol Wigpd Fradi iR @l & AFAR, HU VA T URITSTISH & kAT Bl AETaRIe
AN HUT A PRI IE 2| aodd a¥ B forg, |l g FErRil uRATSHIS & @l B S@ruRIe BT el TS & |

63. f¥Rgae 20 — Rrea fear s o1 W o= & forg e srEvivaeT &1 Hae=

e Hea 7 28 AIE 2017 @I 8% AUAI 10041 S H, YRAGHT WR faaR fHar 3R =aRU— | & U fet 9,900 I
3. & URGY Bl HoRl A RIa] G el YHsMsHIVHRNS U "3 Refd /FAdha fRferd M | &wft | grenfe
IRATSIHT | "3 /IO’ 81 B8R R 388 TSl @& 8 NIl dal @ STSHIC! Jqava-l &I dHad Haed
fopar ST 2| 9 39 aRaTeHT # IS ee w2 gl ok 9iE TS |uRy 7 O yHensivaend @ gl ik 9 &
IH TR UASHIVHRATE BT AMTBR BN, SHGTY TANRHITHINE 7 ¥ & AR 39 A H @d B dTell T 26.79 ARG
%. (ol ¥ 5804.99 ARG T.) B &R B W & ©Y H T Ud @ @ § ST far 2

64. A PN UG e R fe &1 way=

faT a9 2017—18 & foIU IATORIETT PRy FHY Qv 3fifSe = yrm fb fad a¥  2007—08 & 2014—15 & AT 2,281.03
ARG 5. BT SISIY /3T HR 1o Aot arell gF-RIfT 8 X faWRT & U @ifdd © | SURRh &I 3 a9 9 31fd®
Y W AT B, PU DI g9 Ha H B DHIAT ANV AT | BIAifh, $G (Y B o1 [HaT AT | $7 g=RIRT ¥ Hafed
HTH T8l Y S F IdA aREURRIT BT A gar SR Wil &l Taqadr | 3He Bl 96T $R forar 11 |

YIUET] JiifeT & SWRIRD fCWoll T &I H I §U, UAATGHITHATS H 31 HR URIE, [T BR a9el! iR SR g
R ERIvE, RN e fhy ST @S9 B8 ©, 9 Fdfed o=RIfr @ forv faxr 9 2018—19 # fby 10 graqerm=i &1
T F MR IR < 2g T AART T T2 off | 39 AR DY ST B AR W UAS LS & @l i
ford af 2019—20 H FF=THAR W@e™ by MU —

(et #)

faa=or 31 919 2020 BT | 31 A/ 2019 BI

AT g a9y AT gorr a9
S 1802.91 1,646.55
R &= /e /S 117.91 117.70
G 3TEY W SIS 2.54 2.34
Ll 1923.36 1,766.59

65. 3Eferd IMser

31.032020 dF BUAI & U Tl URGURT B HB WE yaferd awqy (emsewd) off | o av 2017—18 & forg
TS HITAATE WAl IR FHIE B & SR UINSS! @rRier S| &I gl gl b 31 719 dd aferd avgsii &
BINIT e 919 3R 9@ AT b Joa & a9 & 3R &l 99 & oa—wirdl H 78l Q@ 7 o7 | d8g9R,
31.03.2019 T& I a9 2017—18 & foly 3wEferd awgall & 2RI Hod A 3R IFd AT [ o & 919 &
AR Bl Q@ & Y B T drell e’ Bl S BRI 3R U FRAT <1 Bg AMART a1 T8 off | |AfAfa o
31.03.2019 T Ml HURT a3l & EINIT oA AT 49.89 G %. BT JAFANT bl Hed AN S DI RIAT
@1 3R gAY, 39 99 @ fory @l § falt geR @) Savern fHy I @ srawadar T8 7| g yeR, gReufry
@ WIfds AT & AR W, 31.03.2020 AP Tl HURTl BT 2TRT g 3.13 @ 3. (Uwel av 40.42 A )
AT AT 3R Ffh AT 7 T IR R 31.03.2020 TP ATl Ivgall & BTN Hed AT 3.13 AT 2. DI A
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fIep! Hog A B AT DI SN I q¥ & ol W1l H fh¥l JhR & Fawel U S @ faedaddl ol © |

66. U4 @y #E

THRMSHITHRNS Bl 31 A1 I 41 T8 Hamii iR da1aR fUed 9 # foy v =g & forg fasmhdmeil | A1 S o
% folg yeed gRT SrgHifad FRI—AMT €1 718 & | 31 AE dd &1 3@ & foy S ffor 9% g omg &1 341 fa auf
+ enfet famam Qe | degR, fa a9 2019—20 H e sraemen gHRET @ TE 7|

S F TAfrat AR gE BT gd Fafdy BT A ¥ | a9 F B ToAN T gH AL 2 3R gaAfg wE gd erafy
X AT A BT Soold el B |

67. PIdS—19 BT Y9G

PUN F TSI, A ST 3R o gRFUR / <RIl @ E—I@d AN W HIfds—19 TR I Geed S~
B Il A9Tfad wvTal &1 3Mberd fhar 8 | dfdasw anfefe uRRefodl § 39 A8™@R & SR GTfdd 91l Srf=ferdaraii
A HAT gROM g9 $ forg, AR @ [ T, 37 fa<iy doMi 4 oidRe Ud d1esl aar drdl & SUANT
AT € | o A T, Ul T spy Tl & b 39 AgAMl & AER W PIfAS—19 P Dls FedqUl Y9G e

2| HEMRI &I UPIAd & BRI, BUAl AT dlel THI H HEYUl AARATAIAT BT Uged R 5g [dbrd Bl IR SR

gAY Y |

68. fUBc ¥ & 3wl BT FAAMHOT
HUN | I IY & BRI DI e 7 Ueel a¥ & sl B GG BRI 5T 2 |

ame B Yy # g RuE & SR A SHRifcad dex afdfieT 56 @
AT VS R B forg v dea @ fog &R S e |
] AEThR /AeS BT
HYT GOITHRUT AT 002405%T

80/ — 80,/ — g0/ —
I A weTid AR e <. IO FAR
RIEEN geer fders areey
Al 9. 539439 SIRTSTH: 08710751 SITSTH: 02677079
80,/ — 80,/ —
| o P I
S AR THY /WY
THITE: 31700
M : A3 ol
f&TTd : 29.07.2020
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TS AFT-aAetes Bt Rue
ForaTe s Ter dce afdfor s & Tl & fou

RN AP AFD Il Fo A d@—ader R Rure

Farferergs N9 (Qualified Opinion)
I A3l ShiAferT Wex Afdd 36 (‘Bu’) & YRATT i A fa<iir werml & oiaroden fhar 8, R 31
A 2020 T& BT doi¥ 3ie, iR I vd =g @rdn, sfaadl 3 gRadd & $HU iR FATK gU 99 H Adha ydls b gd

AEYUl i@ AR & AR Ud 31 ARATHS a1l FHd HRARI of@id] A I SeFl & fewofy off |

AR AR ¥ iR AR SMeR! & IJ9R Td &4 AT MU WIS & MR W, 3aR1 Rurd # qarfersrre iifufem
e B AMR H T AWl & J9El & AT SURIh A<l HUF AMaTIH dRIdb | HU-1 A9 2013 (“rfaf=+”)
% d8d AMER) Y JeH Al & AR IR H I w0 9 Wier odied NGl & 31wy, 31 719 2020 d6
HU B AFA Ud IFD o, Sfaaet § uRad iR 39 fafY #1 @A 8¢ a9 & fo s9@ Ads yarE & A<l gd
e SR el B

Faferprre AT &1 SR

1.

HU T 01 SelTs 2017 ¥ 31 ™ 2020 Tdb, 9N WA Yordl gRT Red $iffSe @Ry a1 ERP @S
AMFedTR BT YANT AT | 39 Jomell @) F9Ifad Bl & SR YR i AME HE1 (Ind AS Financial
Statements) # 9dT¢ Y IRFURT / HSIRAT SIR /AT M /= WR W49, JfS HIg B, a1 aad § SHBT gall
T U 9T T8 B

AR foaR @, WuRy, T35 U9 SUGRT, IO SffFeRgH, WRIE IWeld, HHARAT &l fau v 1fim / famdreit
DI Y /IUANTHA Y BT A9, [dshel Y& dob TRE SIRI BR DI Alshal, ST /AT = AedH &

SIRY UTEd §RT AIY d6 H ST HRAT UG bR DI a-ell, B Hifdd FATUT & Fdg § BUAT § gaa MR
Iz, 396 HaTeT @ MBR Td TP & ATAR BT AT | (3rdy "B <)

IR I (A1 19), WTUR U (ATE 10), IUARHRI A Fe aret AR (e Aerar I aRITSTHIAT F37d)
(A 21), SAFT g9 ST WIS (IS 20), GRET ST < (A 18) 3IR amgfdamarell & ¥ (A 9 3R 15) &
HERT 2, 99 & FEIW B R U By S/ 9T B9 SR /A1 IR S a9 o @1 gfie @ fawamdE
21 W0 gfic vd weag &, aREufrl / <AeiiRal ofiR /31 oma /&g W ¥1d, If $IS 8, a1 adde § SAdT
TdT ST U AW TR

UTEDHT A YT B dTel 1,24,647.66 ARG UL & AW H MR oGidhd AFG o< & § Ale 9. 21 & forg
Ted T fabar ST € | fkpTa @rdl @l AHIET | UdT el fh U ®s Ued © 09 W, 99 & A '
TR, 3 9 A |l F F IHRT 7 | TTH A IR AH AEoid 83 & SUHAl (T AR IRT WWBR &
ATl W forT TAT § IR HUAl gRT A= dbi # STeT—a1enT <ot &)1 Ud HgRE UIhigdl W AEe ST H
forarer a) faar i 7

o9 2T Bl & H VT B B SuARhT & Ao arer 1 &7 v T8 fhar war ik 9 Arafy o # fader
PR &1 T, gdEE B U8 IS AR UG 90N B, B UP SUNRDT & A1 U Y ey & i vd el
@ IR TR AT B B MILIDHAT 2 | T &R VS IR & Hfa awarasil, srgdelf ok ARl & 9 8 w
gaad] IRT § A Al @1, 39 9RE @ (AR & gRUImREawY UR\URMET / SARIRAT 3R /A7 & /& W
TS ITl] THY Y9I BT IIdaE | UdT < U1 9d T8l B |

fhy U BRI W R ord, e folv 496.91 g $9Y & Wd fhU U 9, faT 99 2019—20 H ¥ U4
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o G & A= Agi # ford U 9, g% onTel fad av (@ 2020—21) # &St far oIS BROT e
AR BT YTl Tl & b |

TIPT o8 |, BR P oTU 531.69 TRI BUY DI AT TG FaTold I Xod H 531,69 R BUI &I HHI fexars
TS |

6. M Ud I WT B AIC . 66 ® HaH H, fahdmell gRT Areid ST 7 fbu 51 /R | 94T fhU SH & BRoT
foxT a9—2019—20 & IRAI—IEIH- AFH B+ H Gof el {HU T Wd & fJavor B ao8 F He—3ih
fhamall &1 UTerd 181 T ST 9T | §9 ISR & [dell BT |etd ARHRI §RT 916 H Foldl Ay M & 918 R
Rarfér srafy # ool fhar ar | uREuRRT / <9eRal 3R /A1 3 /T R AT & X I o [BU S & YT
BT, T IRATSHRT 1R, RUe & S drell fafer R fasbdrert gr1 faa o =81 fow 991 & ROy, uar
T T ST FhaT B |

7. BU A HEAQUl Eid AT (@ A 2 (VII) & Fed H Frem a9 99, A & eRiaReT & §Hd Ugdr
fPT ST @7 qoly sl &1 [9ep! W e arel o &1 Tad dId 9 UgdM O @ G949 H BuAl (RIS
@i A1) | 2015 gRT FEiRT "SUGRBISAT & A1 fgae ¥ A aTel G IR AR oI A
(Ind AS) 115 &T Ul =gl fdar| RUIE @1 18 e, B IR U+l & gRAURMET /SeIRal iR, ARA™
GIhT JFd 115 & AeH H VoRd & Ugdrd § g9 U9 BT Ioadd § UdT ¥ U=l 994 81 2 |

IWR QY MY arees (1) ¥ (7) A SfealRad AHal &1 a9 H aRFuRl / SaIRal iR /A1 31 /<9 Ud o™/
BN R YT T T el TR ST Aehd |

AT DU SMAIH, 2013 DI TRT 143(10) & Ted MIAT WS ADI & ITAR FART RITIRIET BT © | I
AM$T & ded 9N T eIRA @7 AR Rl @ RGN oididd 996 i o9 ©$ & o@maNieT & oy
RGTORIETd B RTERY H fIdR | /T 7 € | 89, YRR 99<) oRGThR GRI gRT STRT SR Sfdr 3R
HUAT JRAFTIH, 2013 & UG U9 9D A & T8 ARG oIGidhd AG O SOl B AR SRR
& forg oI A Tawaddrell & JJHR HUN ¥ Wad © IR BAT $9 AELIHARI Td ER Aigdl &
SRR (T 3= Afciep FSTARIRET Bl 9 g1 fobar € | &9 79 € b g9 ST oIaTuiel e Seg € g9
FATfermTaS N & MR g yaia vd 3Ifd € |

fava w® T (Emphasis of Matter)

1. Al | 50 & forg dev AT fhar mar 2 RO a¥ @ SR golagimdl Ud a1 HRiNTa! HaTerd, g
wrenfrer faurT & e R o 99 2018—19 | UMY BUAT &I FATAT ARSI &l dgddg fHar a1 iR vd
JMUSUA Ed Td FATal /JAMEHICT EEAAT & I=1I9 dNTd & 7% WX AN fBar 11| gda aRumasy
Y & IR AT UM T Ya-IdR e ST HeR Bl ol § U & FaTerd AT H BT HHI 375 3R
SIHT YU 99 P 3T Ud T Wi & oy R Y fewr|

2. B IRG—oIgid Ad O o9 & A 9. 44 R &9 R g s Wiarosh a1 o, 78 el &
99 & I H 93150 NG IUI & HAET /WA o (ST SI8) 99 & FAIG Bl O UolldRUl 7g afdd
o |

SR & Ageee (1) 9 (2) ¥ Rurd by 7y AWl & ded # AR I 81 9eelt 2

IRA AGiH AF R T U4 ar@mRies RuiE & dmar 37 JIHaR

BT BT YD Ao I STHGIRAT & folv Y SRR B | 30 SH&IRAT # e 28— fders a1 Ruie (effd=
s I S U9 8N olamiiietsds @1 RUIe enfiel 181 8ill) | 39 ofariesd Ruie &l f[fy & 9rg g4 fFeee &
Raré Suater wRv o @ 9= 2
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foiT ®oFT R ART fIaR ® & I8 37 STHaIRAT BT A 8l HRal 3R 89 &l TR 6T e sy =gl
=l

YRAT oI dih AP [T U P BART IGTURIET & Fae H, 9Nl TR 2 {6 SUciel $RIv o9 TR 89 IR
qdTe TS T WHDHRNI BT Ul AR U B F9I, 39 91d R IR a1 {6 ar g6 &) T8 o= SIHeR fa-ig sl

T STETURIET I B4 A dTell SR & A1 T © IT I=IAT IR<d H Teld fowars ¢ W&l 2|

WetF U9 AR a@ied AMe ki deFl & e wRal 1 R

HUHT BT 9P Hed Ul &1 foxig Rfa, foxig e[, aaue smHeHl, sfdad! & uRad+d Ud ddg Jde & ax §
IRA H A w0 ¥ WPpd ARA™ ofdidd AE Ud 31 oiRkdid (Agidl & §eal Ud aRdiad @y o & folg
TR oI AMG I BT Bl TAR BRA B daeT H Hul 1fSf=gH, 2013 (A7) o a1 134(5) # SfeaRaa
Al BT SRS €| 39 STRAIIE H HUAl & URAURRT &1 YR Ud gIErel Ud 37 UHR Bl STfafiadmal
DI AP T ITBT UAT S B ARRH & Waem=l & SR I oRkdidhd Rbls 3G SFaa odid Afadl &
I Ud IDBT TANT HRARI I Ud fAdehyol h¥el A1 Ud STH S AT NidRe faxig fizor &1 f$arg,
BRI Td WIRAT BAT Al WA 2 S ofdich] Repfsl &I FEIHhdl Td Yoiar &I Ekad ok & oy s
WD F PH BT 81, IR okdidhd A9 AR HUF HT TIR U6 Iqd 3 & foy arifiies 81 iR i 921 d
a8 3R SRRl AT TN & RN B dTell IR Teld—he ¥ b 8 |

IRARI oGl A AR B IR PR H, TdGT HUA & DRI AT & U H B B B JRAAT BT ATHAT
PR, AMBRI AN H HET AT BT UHTIDHRYT, ST AR] B AR T4 T JdG BT SIIGT U Bl d2 T IHHD]
AT 98 HRA BT 7 B, I VA IR @ a1 BIs aRafad ddhed 7 991 81, AT & AMSNI HRIT IR &l
TANT &R BT IOREHT T |

I e Hso wudl &1 faxia RafdT ufshar o g & 9 SRR &

IR d@ie 7ae faxfa dum 3 e 8g saes @ ey
TART Seed T RN WRA @i AS A $UF g% 4 b ©, 918 98 dIErRS] & RO 81 AT T & HROT

B IR H ST T U HRAT UG AR IR enfie &)+ arelm oiarasieia Ruie SR &)AT © | Sferd simeara
Ied TR BT AT & ol 39 91 DI TRET 81 & b THUUH & AR DI T8 @Ol SHLN aRdidd g hl
AT ST o |

T fqeRor gRaTers) A1 JE & BRYN fIIT ST APl © 3R S qd I A1 Sral 2 Afe, I8 AR 81 AT AHfed
®T I fhar A1 81, 39 IRA oRgidd e a7 HUHl ® JMUR TR SYANTHARI gRT fhU S arol 3nfeie Bl
BT 3P gRT JARIT yaifdd e @) SHEE &1 O Tl 2 |

THYUH & SR JGRIeT & R & wU H, 89 URIAR o o € 3R olamuRie & SR URIaR Hag g9y e
g | 39 ATl TH:

* RN WWiHT AMG (ORI HUAI & IR Mol 9gl, 98 98 UIEEE] & HRUT 81 AT TeAdl & BRI, b
SIREAT BT UgaT 3R IAPI AThel B ©, 39 SIRGAl b Ui IRGRT A@RIeT ufsharsil &1 f&arg aiR
FTfed oRd 2 JI@Toier Wied UKl BRd & ol B4R [G9R /I & YR 2 Siod U 9Aie 81 | giemes! &
HRYT TR T I BT Ul =1 Il U BT SARGA T & DR DI S Tel] TR ITefd 9aT=1 | 37D
2 HIfh gRATES! H AT, SITEsTSll, SR B ST dTell Tefdl, el Sl a1 dRe F—HA0 &l <&
HRAT A BT Fhell & |

o URRURR & o R 3Ifd orar ufharsii &1 ST & & H9 # aren & forg arfie sifaRe o
DI AAST YT HRAT | HUAT AT, 2013 B &RT 143(3) (i) & q=8A 8H HUN & YN gATQ NdRes fa<ig o
YUl & B9 3R T R0 &7 el UMTddhIRdT & IR | 379 faoR & & @ 91 Sker) § |
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* TR &I S &I oI@id Al 1 SUGThell Td @i 3Tl SR Yaed gRT fhy T Hed Hdcarol ol

dhefieTdl BT bl B |

o JWHT D AMBRI HI B MR HT Yaed g§RT STANT &1 Iughal Bl epy e ok ure ge oo
THIOT & IMIR WR, 9T 6 =1 wrdspai a1 uRRAfoal & Hefd iReaar $o &) amMeNT | a9 T8
DI AT R HEAYYl TG STl Al © | A 89 I8 ey Miprerd € 16 awgera aiffReaaar &, a1 86 wRd
iR AFD O Boq # Gafdd THSIavor R R iamRieTd RUe # 39 IR § forg=r s8R a1 U7 Udhe
FRAT AT B AT BH FAR IR /I B FRRET B BN | g frshd g ekamiee @1 Ruie dar
g S @ fafy 9% e 1T SEraien yH W MIRT B | STetife, Wi & wridH a1 aRRefat wu
& AMHRI FRIT & WY H HH FBIAT 98 B DI Jolg 8l qhal! & |

*  UPIHRUI FHA ol IR[, HEAT 3R ARG @i D [T BT DI AHUT BT IATheA PRAT 3R I8
AT b 9T ARG @i A4S ORI B AAed dFad d BT Bl 7987 w0 I IKd B 8T o |

o fixfg wuml # «ferd vu & A1 A 9 & TE TAd gAF BT S}iaAT aRomE ® Hifdedr, R g8
FATIT g9 & b fa<ig dedl & Sfad STMeR SuwarTaar &1 e vt uwifad &1 daar 21 89 () 89R
T TNIET HR B SR H T 999 UG 8RB & IRV BT MTdhele dRd iR (i) faxiy west # faedt
A UHR & 1Y MY TAd FATT & J91d BT her B & oY AETHS HlfadhdT Ud IUMTHS HReI R fTaR
PR B |

T Y AWl @ AR YR @ JATRAT &I oamaNien & Faifed R gd 990 iR BRI olEroNIe & SR

rfaRe fd=zor # g4 e arell Aeayel Sl a9a oamRler & Agayel fspst & IR # gard 2

H IRAT J1frIRAT BT T faaRoT e Y Uer wrd & RO 9o € {6 897 Wd=dT & dee H 3R S a1 Hdrg

ax 7 Al Al vd o wEl #, g adadT W Sfd w9 ¥ AR fhar S aedr €, iR STt o 81, ddfed

RAT IR H UTERTE AfTh TaeISdrRil BT Ut fHaT 7 |

I BT Ud e saeassdre R Rure

1. WRd & &% WRGR §RT HUAT AT, 2013 & SU-GRT (1) & G H SR & T8 BU (TGRS DY
RUIE) amawr, 2016(MQTT) & AT 3 AR 4 ¥ M AW oig oo 98 o1 T2 2 Fifd o s,
2013 @1 GRT 8 & q8d HaTd og AT U &R & oIy HUl Bl fHell Bg R BT A< HU= W AN
&l I |
2. IR & gRT 143 (3) BT AATIHAT B ATAR, BF RUE o & o
F)  TAA I G GIAG UG SEEION Bl AR B R 9 BT S FAR dEroiie & foflt gANT SMeRT Ud
faear 4 arawas o
Q) [W FEHRIS NUFET Tgees g MR H affd AMe & U9Id &I BISaR, BRI - H, HUH o 374
qH B FRT U oRIT—SIET §9TY AT oF, RI—SIdT ] Sffd ¥ € T FeAdl &;

M 39 KU # 9 U gl ¥ie, 3 Ud g |@ral, fdad] # uRads @ B iR A YdIE HUH o]
gRAPT & ATAR T;

H)  gaforsrae NUfee & MR # aftfa Amel @ Bleax, R W™ H, SR SfealRad R odie=
A6 O $U9 A9 & 9RT 133 & ded afoid IR oT&ihd d9d 6T UTe- B &, 39 Hu-l
rfrfr (era) fm, 2014 & 9 7 & <11 UG IO,

) SR @B AMUMIT g &g MER ¥ afvid 9, BRI I H, HUHT & BHEGIS W Hiddd T9Td
ST Wb 8
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I U T IR HUA 2, S FReDl B [TIar & Gy § Hu= AT, 2013 B GORT 164
B IU—GRT (2), IAGAT H. GSR—463 (E) f&id 05.06.2015 & HEH H HUAI W ARL Al BKil;

Gl U9 3 AMell & IG—EE & Gdg 3 AFIdl & R § IR SfoeRad qaleThrie AU 3 MER
@ 3T H IATIT AT &,

FU 3 fRig Raifén w aiaRe fxig friEel @ gafaar vd 3o Fav & deres gvaeiar @
Hayr ¥, AN RUid &1 ‘Jged &' < | g9 Ruie # faxiig Ruifdy & suel & fiaRes foxig o
P TATAT T HaTel- YIGHIRTT IR F@lfeThias Ui aaxh fhar T &;

TR IR A iR 84 S SMeR U4 faavor 3T 17 o), I9& AR Ud RGN HUH 84 & AT HUl

R, SIEGAT . GSR—463 (E) faid 05.06.2015 & HEH # TGN HUN W GRT 197 & UG =T
IS @ SR V & AT QT G, AN e &
BT (CTETIRIET Ud oRaTIRIerd) 99, 2014 & 99 11 & AR d@TRIed $I Rarc H 2miie fby S

qrel I AMEl @ e H, AR I H AR FARI SMeRI Ud IuTel HRIY Y [JaRol & R

i U T U AR oI e ki BeAl | o ki Rerfd iR dfdd gaedl & y¥d &
IR H a7 8 (RN @i AFS (a4 Flc 9. 36 <%);

i. B BT I el (SRAfcT diacy) WA BIS SrHdIeld AJad Tl o foT9d B awTd
THA BT |

i. U gRT fAavre fafeeal Rrm v Wkeror A § B1E o9 gdiaRkd U S @Y magadar
Tl ol |

3. BUAl IAIH, 2013 BT ORT 143(5) & T8d IR & P UG HeTeld@l WRIeTdh §IRT SN (a9l IR EART 37T
Rare ergey @ # Aol 2 |
IRTATE §8 WA @ forg
NEERSEEICaN
(¥ TSRO AT 002405C)
XM : A3 Aol

faTiep : 29 GTg, 2020
Jerg W
BIEEIN

AT &7 : 539439
JRIAMSUT— 20539439AAAACN6992
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31 AT, 2020 Bt AATE a¥ B {0 a2eet SHiAcaR AeR AldfF=
S HRAI AFiDBal A AT BAA UR T AH1-UR121H Ul &1

3 ‘B’

@ T ot T8 RUI & wvs "o S iR Riffme sravadmare”
R R & dgd s A Hafia)

FU IR, 2013 (SRR P aRT 143 B SU-URT 3 B SuGEs () F TEd aR® R FHEFel w Rad
A 31 AE 2020 P A SHiHCad Hex AGHd 36, (Buei) @i faxig RuifdsT wr niaRe o< o &, g9
fafr &1 |9 gY 9¥ @ oIy U & WRAR oidh A i AT @] TANT oRATIRIeT & Haro § olarRiel
Gy

JiaR® i Frg=m &g Jeee &1 StRaa

BT BT TG BT gRT IRATT A1 TEIPpR R gRT SRy fa<ig RaféT wr anidRe faxia fizr wR arfee=
fewoll (ArfeeE el /eed Ae) ¥ SfoatRaa srdRe Al & JfFERl geal R 9 #=d gy g o<l
RUIfET AMES & MR W IAdRS FHF0N B RIMUAT TG = 9910 IH BT SARGRT © | 37 SRSy § onfie
2— DUl & HRIGR B JIRd Ud T ®U 4§ el HAad &3 arel qaid ffaRe fa<ia o o fesms,
BRI T @G BAT | 12T B B DI AR BT UTeld BRAT, SHD! IRAURTT BT GRET B, dRarers! gd
TSRSl DI AHT AR IHDT YdT T, ol@idh] Reble B FSIhdT Td Youidr Ud Hu=l AfR=F9 2013, =™ @
TEd AP [9gad-1g i TR 99T 1R dIR $HRAT |

AEIES T STRQIAT

ERT SRS & BARI oIETUNIe & MR W O RAIfeT ) ool & oriaRe foxiy fAa=oi R e four axh
PRAT| BA IMSUITIME §RT TR U ho=1 IR, 2013 &1 &RT 143(10) & T fRaiRd anfee= fewdf (e«
dIe) 3R oI AFDI & AR AR @TRIET B 8, RS faxii FRFv &1 oRamadie R ] AH1 a®, aFl
Bl MaR® o=l a0l @7 eRITIRIeT WR AR 81 & 3R QM1 & YR F94] oRaThR AR §RT oIRT fhy 17 € |
9 AMGI Ud AnteeE feuoh & IR BAR gRT Afdd Aaeadhdrsil &1 Urel= fhar SIem o v a1 fa<ig Rarfér 4
9T S7idRe faxi F=or wnfd ok 918 <l 718 off ud U9 FRIFoT 91 aira deHl # J9Tdl alies | |Tford
B 8, D IR H YA AT U B B GO B AT G Td oRATIRIE BT o |

AR o § faxig R wR enaRe faxfa f=or gormell @) gaiwar vd S9! Hares THaatRdr & 9 o
SGTYRIET 1&g U<l R B DI O arell afshar] enfie € | faxiia RAfér wR aniaRe iy Frazor yomell o gqr)
GO # wnfd g—facia ReiféT R niaRe i FRI=eT Jormell 'R |\t T -1, aa9 aqiTd B & SR
BT BT BIAT Td MM eTd SR & AR WR FARS RIF0T & (S8 Ud FATe YHEaHIRGT BT Hedidhd B |

T IS UihAT SErRIe & Ao R R ARl 2 | 39H AR ol AMd [RIg BAl $I agITd TAfadl, dre
IE YRATRTS! B golg I 8T AT oAl W, B SIRIH BT 3ol HRAT IMHA 2 |

g9 A & P g9 S oRarasier yHor urd fhv € 9 fakig RuiféT R wu & ondRe i fAi=or yomell wR
AN TGRS I & MR =g T vd Sfod 2

faxia Raifdn wR araRe faxia fR=or &1 et
o RUIféT )R vt w1 &1 faRe o fA=mr, foxia RuiféT & RQvaw-iaar & ey o Sfua smears= ueH
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& g fSoTe fBar a1 vd 9 Wigd ofdied NGl & R 98yl Sewl & foly WRAR™ ol@id Ad
foriT Ul Bl TR B T UfhAT B | Th duAl &l foxig RaifdT w snaRe fa<ia A= & 9 ifoat ik ufsharg
IfAe B € S (1) 3ifferal & ERETd |6 8, AR ¥, $u @ aRFuR & od-<d vd ueE o wdie
Tq werdr 9 SeIill 8l (2) W Wigd deie gl & STAR IRA™ odidh Ad I M1 Bl TR &R
& foTU 3MMaTId JMAIT UG BRal 8 3R gl 8 b Hu=l &l WfTAT Ud 0 dhadl Used Ud du-l & e
B AT & AR B AN T; iR (3) HUA 1 T uR<ufrat &1 Mg v & AfRIfRd, SuanT a1 e fag
ST @ RABT AT FHT TR Tal o1 fold S &7 Sfad mearas Ue™ ol 81 fb RNFdr aRA ogied amd fa<ia
HUAA TR FEEYT T TS AT B |

facia RaifT &R sialRe i Fasel i siafiRa g

focia Ruifé R ondRe faxia Frazen @1 siafifea Al o aoie 4, FRIF0 &1 € &= a1 Irfad Jaee &l
T A, Tl T GRITES] & BRI IR TeAd 9A 81 Fabell & AR IFDBT ual Al 81 ST ST A |
9@ IrerraT, viasy # i Ruifésr w aridRe =i FEavl &1 dig W eaied oA uRRefEl § 9T & SR
foirg R wR andRe faxiia FE=or s M ar il ar ufbaredl & srgured o [0 &9 81 & SIked &
e 21

FaferRe Nfafe

B4 & IS THPNI Td WETHRY & AR 3R FARI ETONIE & SR W, T F(eIRad AMall @ daer 4 31 A9
2020 P AT BT a¥ & o1y faxi dodl R s9RI Faiforergs siifse U R f&ar 8, RraH adqm oidiRe
=T @1 wored g S @ SravIddr &

®.  deX AN P G /Y R $HS BRUT IH1AT AY H HS@yYl TId AT 81 Fohall &

Q. de’l Bl UeeH db TR AU HRAT Rilfh $AD! I8 F QNI dU A JHAA Bl ARUTg 9 BR YN DI FHET
RHIRSER] %\r;

T IS A & FAd srual ST | 999 & v UTEdl / farT gRT BuAl & dd @I H AY / SoAdei b
AT 9ol T8 gAR1EN BT oRgidh;

g YD | 9HET Ud de:i | MR B Il gd BT Wil 31U HRAT i VAT F IR A TTEDI AR de:A B
IR & BRI < H AE@YUl TeAd FATT B Fahell ©; AR

T, uRy, S 3R USRI HT HIfTd T a1 ol@id, TFATHR0T Ud IURH & THSIHRYT TR Agdqol J91d
TS |l B |

g PHUA 7 AT UG I A B TS B GHI D 3% Ffharil g e auRer (AT Si<e) &7 arad el
forar 2|

o= Ruifsr w araRe fa<ia FiFor #§ anféfe gderar (material weakness)' U &H1 AT HHAAT BT FAGH & oI

5 59 a1 & g AWrET § {6 U b i AR d@ieT AHd [ Bl H B arell He@yul Teld gl

DI AGT 1 T D AT FHT R IADT T = ST ST b |

BAR fIaR 4, AV AFes & ST Bl U BRI IR JURRH aford 3 gderar & gwral /FHiidd J4mdl & e,
HU A, AT e gEggell H, faxia RuifdT wR uafq anidRe foxia fFior a9mq <@ 2 ok o< RaifdT w= &
JNaRe faxira FRIF0T 31 A1 2020 T% 99T ©U F &M $R T2 o, T§ WRAT 941 oI did v gRT oRT faxirg
Ruifd w anidR® faxia i & oreamaien @R Arfes™ Are # SfeaRad eiaRe 301 @ ifard geal ) foar
PR HU gRT o fadii Raifér o sraRe fu=or o= smanRd 2|
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A B DI 31 ATG 2020 TP Bl ARARI oRAIh AMG (AT BAAT BT FANT oRATIRIAT TR AR B dTell oIaTaRier
STl @1 Upid, T iR AMr & PR § SR ugad gd Ruid & 18 afdfe gdaransi R faar fHar g iR 3
3N THAy HUN B ARATI oAl AMG I HoHl W) AR aRT & gifad g1 &= |

IYATA US G & oy
NEEIRSEEICaN
(FRN002405C)
E : Ag ool
fa=ia : 29 g, 2020
e /A
RIEEN

TRl ¥ 539439
LIS : 20539439AAAACN6992
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31 FATd 2020 B JAAT gL AW @ {0 A FwiATeTR Aer

Al st g6 B HRA AFiDa Aed fahia Haa ©R TdA s

qiaies i RS &1 sieder ‘3

FHU AR, 2013 B GRT 143 (5) D Ted WRA @ AP YaH AT T — Wgd gR1 or e w Rad

T B & U IS Rived @ qregw A 4l i dF—ad d 9 e 27 afe €, o fa-ia fAfgart
I B, D ARI—ATT Tl P YHIORaT W) M) REH & I8 A@ihT eiFi—a 31 Uihamsil & YRIvhNT @& -
P AT ST GHeT 2 |

HUA & U S3RU (ERP) ol@idhd ATCdaR & HEaH | AT @i oii—a Ufhar \aiferd &xe &1 i
yorell & forY fUeel ad 01 TS 2017 & SR WANT H 1T AT o7 | Teifh, fUsel a¥ wART # oy Ty geiRul
(ERP) WfdedR &l fhddl 918t Wdd ol g§RT Rived 3fifSe &1 &R Fcamus F8] dxiar A7 o7 | 3ffde) &l
YHIOTRAT | 30 Rieed & Avifidd ol & $RY YR oRgied A9 oy sl | 9die v |ulky /
SHSIRAT 3R /AT M/ AT YHSIHROT R fHl UHR BT 99T, AfS 8, BT A H Gl el VT ST AT |
OB A, AT AURT H gy /FH /IeIe™ & Gag H oEied gl | (Hgerel) fhar Simar § ok iR 39
SRl (ERP) Rived # <relm Wirar € Jaifd SemRdl (ERP) # ifcre wAfsyel w81 81 SO g% & $HROT 8
el FHIfad Tt | g9 & foy Bida ufhan &1 STea—d—lea WAl 991Y S &1 Fellg &1 Sl 2 |

T fHE 9E %01 BT GRied a1 AT © AT FUN BN T GHIM D AT D DR RIKKT §RT H 0T/
Hol /TS 371 TR BT /T WAl H S <1 ST AW 37 IS &, O g0 R 7919 9 - 1 Faen B |
SN T8l BT Hifs 9§ 2019—20 & AR BU UR PIS F 0T IHIAT &1 T | TaJAR, HUH DI 0T Gl Pl
JETHAT & BRI QT §RT 0T/ Hol /TSl 3MMfE TR B /T WIAT § ST &1 BT Hlg AFAT el o |
dg /o Toitrl & Ry Aol g el /fiem arelt el &1, saa fewt iR wat @ sgaR s
TS UGN AT TR T A IR UGN qrel AR o A 99|

99 201920 & SR HUAl gRT Bl 1 DL /AT Toill | f’fl bR &1 o9 9 o ure fhar T =1
T a7 | SAIY STeb SfUA oldich-1 Ud SUINT T U el I3 |

AT TS qaaT @& g
JAET TETHR
(B¥ GolTeHRoT HEAT 002405C)

I ;A8 el
&=l : 29 g, 2020

T A

NIEE

HERIAT F.: 539439

FSITSYA : 20539439AAAACN6992
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31 A1d, 2020 Bt JAATA P I D AT e Fwtatea Ae Afatast
3%, B [Axiia Bt TR Haqeil iftrfer=at 2013 &t et 143(6) (Sit) B daga
HRA B fe=izIe vd AR A3 -utzie &t femiv=i

31 A/ 2020 I FATG Y 9N & forg Hu-l AfAFTH, 2013 (Iff=M) & dga foxi RuifdT Svar & oaR e
ShiHfcad Hex AfdeN &, (TIMESHITHRNS) @ O & R a”A &I TRl dU-l & Jda @ 2 | iff-aH
P GgRT 139 (5) & Ted ARA & IS UG HSIG@TNIAD §RT gh HAeT e oRal WRiefd / oRaTaRIeTa], ffafraH
DI IRT 143(10) & Ted FEiRT @MU A9®1 & JTAR WA THTINIET & UR R ARIH BT &RT 143 & d8d
fo<f oAl W 3o faaR <9 & STRerR €| qarr T ' {6 VA feAid 20.07.2020 @ SH@T dEmaRier Rad @
e | A T ¥

RA & [FRF® Td ASTGETIRIETd &l AR ¥, He, IIH &1 gRT 143(6)(T) & T8 31 ATE 2020 P AT BT IY &
forg TramgITEaS & g Homl &1 R IaTIero BT o1 | U8 qRep @I, JfG o wlierdl & BRiuS
@ 91 W@dd WU A B g oY R UB G WU dGITS AGIRIETD] Td HUH b HHATRAT A YBATS AR HB oIl
arf¥eral & TS IO T A 2 |

R R QTRIET & MR WR, § TR B &aRT 143(6)(d) & Ted BB Aeayol AMA! TR HHTeT ST 2RI oTsi
W1 & BT fHar 3R W faer & o fxfi worl vd wedfda oamdier Rue! @1 Jgk wwst & fog afvart €

1. o9 o
IREuRi- a9 gai—faia Jua]

MR < (Al 9. 19)— 24408.60 AT TUU

Y 201920 P SRIF d% I U B S dTell Fareil F Hafeld Wl &l oRg—sikgl el 89 & SUR Id1¢ ¢ A4 §
1118.02 IR ¥UY HH B & 91T TAT| $HH @9 &) A=ferlRad a1 sifvr €

P) 67596 IR BUYY DI Ha e oIy 28 HRARN 2020 3R 31 A 2020 & 44 et I by ¢ o |
W) 442,06 ORI BYY DI Ha fSTD fo1g 01 A 2020 3MR 23 S 2020 $ 44 fdeT yga by ¢ o |

gAd URUTHERRY &1 aade SIarsl (TR ) Td &g H 1118.02 AR JUYAT BT BT SR TS |

YRd @ EA® v AeeNr wEs
@ forg ok S5 7ah TR A

g0/ —

(1Y FAR )
U TETIRIETT feerd

(foT va ¥R )
fafers 23—10—2020
IIH: T3 faeolt
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(As on 31-03-2020)

Chairman : Shri S. Gopalakrishnan, IAS,
Additional Secretary, MeitY

Director : Ms. Jyoti Arora, IAS,
SS & FA, MeitY

Shri Jaideep Mishra,
JS, MeitY

Dr. B. K. Murthy,
Scientist-G, MeitY

Smt. Geeta Kathpalia,
Scientist-G, MeitY & DG, ERNET India (as IT Specialist)

Shri Nagesh Shastri,
DDG, NIC

Mrs. Rachna Srivastava,
DDG, NIC

Shri Pawan Kumar Joshi,
DDG, NIC

Shri Shahid Ahmed,
Scientist-G, NIC

Shri K. Srinivasa Raghavan,
Scientist-G & SIO (TN), NIC

Shri Prakash Rao,
Scientist-F & SIO (MP), NIC

Shri Prashant Kumar Mittal,

MD, NICS|
Company Secretary : Shri Sunny Jain
Auditors : M/s. Agarwal & Saxena (CR0604),

Chartered Accountants,
I-79, 7th Floor, Himalaya House,
23, KG.Marg, New Delhi-110001

Registered Office : Hall No. 2 & 3, 6th Floor, NBCC Tower, 15th,
Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi-110066

Bankers : Union Bank of India, Bank of India, CGO Complex Lodhi
Road, Union Bank Of India, Punjab National Bank, State
Bank of India, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi and ICICI Bank
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Chairman

Director

Company Secretary

Auditors

Registered Office

Bankers

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(As on 30-09-2020)

Dr. Rajendra Kumar, IAS,
Additional Secretary, MeitY

Ms. Jyoti Arora, IAS,
SS & FA, MeitY

Shri Jaideep Mishra,
JS, MeitY

Dr. B. K. Murthy,
Scientist-G, MeitY

Smt. Geeta Kathpalia,
Scientist-G, MeitY & DG, ERNET India (as IT Specialist)

Shri Nagesh Shastri,
DDG, NIC
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NOTICE
25th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given to the Members of National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI) that its 25th Annual General
Meeting is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 30th December, 2020, at 03:00 PM at Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor,
Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics Niketan, 6, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, to
carry out the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the Income and Expenditure Account of
the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Directors’ Report along-with the Auditor’s Report and comments
of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon, and

To Fix the Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for Financial Year 2020-21 appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-

(Sunny Jain)

Company Secretary

(M, No. A31700)
Place: New-Delhi
Date: 18.12.2020

NOTE:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself.
2. As per rule 19(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a member of a company registered

under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (erstwhile section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956) shall not be entitled to
appoint any other person as his / her proxy unless such other person is also a member of such company.

3. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office of the company,
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-

(Sunny Jain)
Company Secretary
(M. No. A31700)

Place: New-Delhi
Date: 18.12.2020
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting of National Informatics Centre Services incorporated (NICSI) will
now be held at 05.00 PM on Wednesday 30th December 2020 at Conference Room No0.4009, 4th Floor, Ministry of Electronics
and Information Technology Electronics Niketan, 6, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, instead of on 30th December
2020, at 03.00 PM. All the Shareholders and Directors are requested to kindly note the change and make it convenient to attend
in the meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-

(Sunny Jain)
Company Secretary
(M.No.A 31700)

To:

The Chairman, NICSI
All the Members of the Board
All the Shareholders of NICSI
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the Twenty Fifth Annual Report on the business and operations of National
Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (“the Company”) with the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditors’ Report

thereon for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2020.

Your Company has successfully completed 25 years of services on August 29, 2020.

The Summarized Financial Results for the year ended 31st March 2020, as compared with the previous year 2018-19, are as

under:

Financial Highlights

(Rupees in Lakh)

S. No. Description 2019-20 2018-19
(A) |Income:

1 Sales 19,435.75 19,473.36
Services & Support 96,192.85 95,479.47
Interest / Other Income 10,302.89 9,080.50

Total (A) 125,931.49 124,033.33
(B) | Expenses:

1 Purchases* 17,829.00 24,139.51

2 Services & Support 79,126.55 85,252.84

3 Employees Remuneration and Benefits 856.31 1,092.63

4 Finance Cost 1,037.41

5 Depreciation 8,605.14 5,086.44

6 Other Expenses 5177.70 18,248.79

Total (B) 112,632.11 133,820.21

Income/(loss) before tax (A) — (B) 13,299.37 (9,786.87)

6 Tax expenses 422317 (1263.53)
7 Income/(loss) for the year 9076.20 (8523.35)

* Includes Rs.5,804.99 Lakhs in FY. 2018-19 & Rs.26.79 Lakhs in FY.2019-20 towards augmentation of NIC District
Infrastructure.

(1) Operating Margin

The Board of Directors in its 103rd meeting held on 29.09.2017 had approved the rates of NICSI's Operating Margin for all types

of Projects / Services as under:

Project Value

% of Project Value

Up to Rs. 50 Crore

7%

[While implementation of the project, if value of the project decreases or equivalent to Rs. 50
Crore, NICSI will charge Operating Margin with prospective effect @ 7% only]

Above Rs. 50 Crore

5%

[While implementation of the project, if value of the project increases Rs. 50 Crore, NICSI will
charge Operating Margin with prospective effect @ 5% only on the value in excess of Rs. 50

Crore]
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(2) Dividend

The Company is registered under (earlier Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956) Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
per the provisions of the Section, the Company is prohibited to pay any dividend to its members.

(3) Transfer to reserves
The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.

(4)  Grading By DPE

0] Process for Evaluation

° DPE issues Guidelines every year to the CPSE’s to enter into MoUs with Administrative Ministry (i.e. Ministry of Electronics
and Information Technology (MeitY) in case of NICSI).

° DPE set up Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC) on MoU consisting of the following:

1 Secretary, DPE Chairman

2 Secretary of concerned administrative Ministry / Department or his representative not | Member
below the rank of Joint Secretary.

3 Secretary, Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation or his representative | Member
not below the rank of Joint Secretary.

4 Additional Secretary, NITI Aayog or his representative not below the rank of Joint | Member
Secretary.

Secretary DPE may co-opt any officer who is a Finance Expert in case the need is felt.

Joint Secretary / Adviser (MoU), DPE would provide secretarial support to the committee.

o Draft MoU, consisting of Financial and Non-Financial Parameters, is submitted by NICSI to its Board of Directors for
approval before forwarding through MeitY to DPE.

] IMC negotiates the Parameters and fix the targets in the MoU in the meetings, in which JS Level Officer from MeitY/
NIC and NICSI officials are present.

. MoU is signed between NICSI and MeitY.

. After closure of Financial Year, the Audited Accounts, duly approved by the Board, are submitted to DPE along with
the details in the prescribed proforma.

° Based on above, DPE evaluates actual performance of NICSI against targets in the MOU and declare grading.

(i)  Grading of NICSI by DPE

Financial Year Grading by DPE as per
MoU Composite Score based on Audited Data

2018-19 Poor

2017-18 Fair

2016-17 Excellent
2015-16 Excellent
2014-15 Excellent
2013-14 Very Good
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(iii)  Actual Performance on optional parameters against targets - MoU for F.Y. 2019-20
. Increase in number of Projects in difficult states like N/E, J & K, Uttarakhand, HP over previous years (%age) (8
Marks) : (-) 6.74%
(180 Projects received in 2019-20 against 193 in 2018-19)

o Introduction of New products and Services (Nos.) (8 Marks) .8

° % age increase in Number of e-Governance Projects from Central/ State/UT Governments/QOrganizations over
previous year (%) : (10 Marks) : (-) 18.24%

(1958 projects received in 2019-20, against 2395 in 2018-19)
° Trade receivables (Net) as number of days of Revenue from Operations (Gross) (No. of Days) (8 Marks) : 60
o Revenue from Centre of Excellence for Data Analytics as % of Revenue from operations (10 Marks) : 0.17%

(5) Ongoing Activities in F.Y.2019-20
National Knowledge Network (NKN Project)

Initiated in March, 2010, NKN Project is approved by the Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology (MeitY) for
a period of 10 years at a cost of around Rs.5990 crore. NIC is the Implementing Agency for this project, while NICSI is
assisting in procurement and providing IT Support. The Project is to establish high speed data communication network
which would inter-connect institutions of higher learning and research to enable creation, acquisition and establishing
of knowledge resources amongst them. It would also facilitate collaborative research, countrywide classrooms etc by
commissioning links to the institutions connectivity to NIC District Centres, setting up Centres in the States/UTs. During
FY.2019-20, NICSI has received Rs.274.64 crore from MeitY for this project, with total fund received till 31.03.2020 being
Rs.4050.70 crore. However NKN Project has been extended by MeitY by one year ie. up to March, 2021 within same
financial outlay.

NICSI Data Centre (NDC) at Shastri Park, Delhi

NDC at Shastri Park, Delhi has been providing the services with disaster management facility to the Government
Departments and their Organizations with State-of-art tier-lll facility. The activities continued to function smoothly
and successfully during the year. NICSI has upgraded some of the racks at the centre with Cloud facility, on which the

expenditure of around Rs. 178.81 crore has been incurred in previous 4 years, out of the total approved outlay of Rs.
191.81 crore.

Data Centre at Laxmi Nagar, Delhi

NICSI has its own Data Centre at Laxmi Nagar with 62 racks out of which 45 racks are leased to end-users and remaining
racks are for internal requirement. It is providing services to various government Ministries / Departments and their
organizations in maintaining their data. Around 16-20 racks on lease are being upgraded by NICSI with cloud infrastructure
at a cost of around Rs.53 crore (i.e. Rs.45 crore CAPEX & Rs.8 crore OPEX in 5 years.)

National Data Centre, Bhubaneswar, Odisha

NIC is having Data Centre Bhubaneswar with 50 racks. NICSI has provided Cloud facility on 14 racks thereat at a cost of Rs.
97.76 crore, with Rs. 45.52 crore incurred in FY.2019-20, Rs. 5.29 crore in previous year and the balance of Rs. 35.95 crore
to be incurred in future. Remaining 36 racks are also being upgraded by NICSI with cloud infrastructure at a cost of around
Rs.228 crore (i.e. Rs.211 crore CAPEX & Rs.17 crore OPEX in 3 phases involving 5 years.

NICSI Development Centre

The Development Centre on the 2nd floor at DMRC's IT Park, Shastri Park, Delhi with 417 workstations continued to
provide services to the users towards implementation of the projects smoothly and satisfactorily.

(6) Other Projects
During FY. 2019-20, NICSI had received 1958 new projects for implementation, some of which are as under:
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(i)  Projects From MeitY

During the year, NICSI continued the activities under various projects from MeitY, as under:

Project Name

Aadhar Enabled Biometric Attendance System (AEBAS)

Development of Common Minimum Framework (CMF)

Security Enhancement of NICNET

Establishing Security Evaluation Research & Exploratory Testing Centre joining by STQC Centre

Augmentation of facilities for Cyber Security Product Assurance

Website Quality Evaluation to support e- Governance Implementation in India

Web Internationalization, Standardization and W3C India Initiative.

Pro-Active Governance and Time Implementation (PRAGATI)

e-Mail Solution for Government of India

Securing the e-Mail Infrastructure for Government of India

Roll-out and Promotion of Open Government Data Platform for NDSAP.

National e-Gov AppStore at National Data Centre.

e-Hospital under Digital India Programme Training.

e-Taal

an

Projects from Departments / Organizations (Other than MeitY)

Department / Organization

NICSI Project Code

Description

Supreme Court C190040NWND Procurement of N/W items for Supreme court Project
additional Office Complex executed by CPWD

Department of Justice C190396GNND Procurement of Various items at eCourts MMP

Jaipur Vidhut Vitran Nigam Ltd (e-Power) S190787GNRJ Procurement of Various items at Jaipur Vidhut Vitran
Nigam Ltd

Office of Comptroller and Auditor General | C191325GNND Procurement of Network Items by Comptroller and

of India (CAG) Auditor General of India (CAG)

IT Department South Delhi Municipal C191481GNND Procurement of Various items for IT Department South

Corporation Delhi Municipal Corporation

National Testing Agency C191593GNND Councelling for National Testing Agency

RajComp Info Services Ltd. S191733MPRJ Hiring of Manpower by RajComp Info Services Ltd.

Data Harmonization for Realtime Insights C191952GNND Procurement of Various items at National Cyber Security

and Security Threat (DHRISTI), National Co-ordinator, National Security Council Secretariat

Cyber Security Co-ordinator, National (NSCS)

Security Council Secretariat (NSCS)

Ministry of Road Transport and Highways C191856GNND Procurement of Various items at Ministry of Road

(Integrated Road Accident Database)

Transport and Highways
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(7)  Setting-up of new Business Divisions in NICSI.

Products Business Division (PBD)

PBD aims to facilitate Productization, Standardization & Promotion of NIC/NICSI software applications at national & international
market in South Asean, African, Latin American etc. MEA consent to be obtained for each foreign project. Cost to be flexible as
its development is met out of NIC Budget.

Central of Excellence for Data Analytics (CEDA)

Kick starting & fast tracking adoption of advanced analytic /machine learning capabilities by making it locus of expertise &
excellence in Data Analytics field. It would provide quality data analytic services to Government Departments at all levels by
identifying appropriate tools, technologies, deploying people with right expertise & help in solving complex policy issues.

Cloud Services & Data Centre Business Division

NICSlis implementing Cloud services from NDCs at Shastri Park, Pune & Bhubaneswar. New division has been set up to ensure
more efficient & effective management of existing Cloud services & for future.

(8) Highlights for F.Y. 2019-20

01.04.2019 to 01.04.2018 to
31.03.2020 (in No.) | 31.03.2019 (in No.)
(a) Segment - wise-| 1. Hardware ltems 5 35
E[(e)jaekcut[s) rece(i)\fe d new 2. Website / Software Development 135 66
3. Manpower 677 1120
4. Network 45 72
5. General Projects (combined of Hardware, 400 492
Software, and Manpower etc.)
6. Other projects (SMS/BAS/e-mail etc.) 653 610
Total 1915 2395
(b) Segment-wise Work 01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020 01.04.2018 t0 31.03.2019
Orders (WOs) Details: No.of WOs | Amount(Rs. | No.of WOs | Amount (Rs.
issued in Crore) issued in Crore)
Manpower 6743 738.19 7348 785.96
Miscellaneous 135 58.36 100 176.60
Network 259 35.55 369 5423
NKN 26 181.41 28 8.64
Roll Out 147 10.19 121 583
Security Audit 152 4.38 133 297
SMS 674 47.84 442 39.23
Website Development 167 71.78 150 100.58
GeM 327 109.97 347 213.73
LPC and Other 156 23.18 122 19.15
Total 8786 1280.85 9160 1406.92
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(c) Segment-wise

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019

Proforma Invoice (Pls) No.ofPls | Amount(Rs. | No.ofPls | Amount (Rs.
Details: issued in Crore) issued in Crore)

Manpower 3989 718.62 5227 949.08

Miscellaneous 60 49.40 49 94.07

Network 239 40.98 446 130.42

NKN 6 4.69 3 0.90

Roll Out 68 9.44 65 5.94

Security Audit 161 5.49 156 7.64

SMS 2130 109.17 1596 136.09

Website Development 236 115.08 205 124.73

GeM 77 173.63 98 129.99

Total 6966 1226.50 7845 1578.86
(d) Tenders Floated 01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020 01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019

(in No.) (in No.)

No. of Open Tenders 10 19

No. of Limited Tenders 00 01

Total 10 20

(e) MoU's / Agreements

01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020
(in No.)

01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019
(in No.)

Entered into by NICSI with
different Departments /
Organisations

55

51

(9) Manpower

As per the manpower profile approved by the government through notification in the Gazette of India dated 03.03.1998,
manpower in NICSI will be on temporary rotational deputation basis along with their posts from NIC.

The total staff strength in NICSI from NIC as on 371st March 2020 was 29.

(10) Particulars of Employees

None of the employees of the Company was in receipt of remuneration in excess of limits prescribed under rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

(11) Corporate Social Responsibility

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICS) is a Section 8 Company (Erstwhile Section 25 Company). NICSI's objective is to
promote ICT Solutions and Technology and to apply its profits, if any, or other income in promoting its objects and prohibited to
pay any dividend to its members.

The Board in its 99th Meeting held on 26th December, 2016 had constituted the CSR Committee, with the terms of reference as

P

er below:
To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by NICSI as
per the Companies Act, 2013;
To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities to be undertaken by the company;
To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time;

Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors or as may be
directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.
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The Company Secretary to NICSI shall act as Secretary to the CSR Committee.

The quorum for the CSR Committee Meeting shall be one-third of its total strength (any fraction contained in that one third be
rounded off as one) or two members, whichever is higher.

The Board in its 112th Meeting held on January 28, 2020 had re-constituted the CSR Committee, comprising the following
members:

Sr. No. Name & designation Designation
1 Dr. Jaideep Mishra, Joint Secretary, MeitY Chairman

2 Shri Nagesh Shastry, DDG, NIC Member

3 Ms. Rachna Srivastava, DDG, NIC Member

4 Shri Pawan Joshi, DDG, NIC Member

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other provisions, as applicable, the amount to be incurred
on CSR activities for FY. 2019-20 by NICSI works out to Rs.40 Lakhs as per below:

(Rupees in Crore)

Financial year Net Profit Before Tax Average Net Profitin | 2% of Average Net Profit
preceding 3 years in preceding 3 years
2016-17 107.02 19.94 0.40
2017-18 50.65
2018-19 (97.86)

Itemn no. (viii) of the Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013, which enumerates activities that may be undertaken by companies
in discharge of their CSR obligations, inter alia provides that contribution to any fund set up by the Central Government for socio-
economic development and relief qualifies as CSR expenditure.

In view of the spread of novel Corona Virus (COVID-19) in India, its declaration as pandemic by the World Health Organization
(WHO), and decision of Government of India to treat this as a notified disaster, Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide General Circular
No.10/2020 dated March 23, 2020, clarified that spending of CSR funds for COVID-19 is eligible for CSR activity.

Further, the Government of India has set up the Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund (PM
CARES Fund) to provide relief to those affected by any kind of emergency or distress situation. Accordingly, any contribution
made to the PM CARES Fund shall qualify as CSR expenditure under the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, Shri Injeti Srinivas, Secretary of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*Government Authority”) has made an Appeal through
website of Ministry of Corporate affairs to contribute generously to the PM CARES Fund, which may also include any unspent
CSR amount, if applicable.

In addition to the above, the Government Authority has given the below relaxation/exemption/tax benefit to the Companies by
contribution the funds to PM CARES Fund:

(a) If any company contributes to PM CARES Fund over and above the minimum prescribed amount, which can later be offset
against the CSR obligation arising in subsequent years. And

(b) Any contribution made to PM CARES Fund by March 31, 2020 would also qualify for 80G exemption as applicable under the
Income Tax Act, 1961. From April 1, 2020, only those companies that have chosen to remain in the old tax structure will get the
said benefit.

In view of the above, the Company has contributed Rs.0.40 crore to PM CARES Fund on 31.03.2020 and the same is ratify by
members of CSR Committee in their meeting held on June 26, 2020 and members of the Board of Directors in their meeting held
on June 29, 2020.
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(12) Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values aimed at enhancing an organization’s
brand and reputation. This is ensured by taking ethical business decisions and conducting business with a firm commitment to
values. At NICS, it is imperative that our company affairs are managed in a fair and transparent manner. This is vital to gain and
retain the trust of our stakeholders.

Number of Board Meetings and General Meetings Convened in Financial Year 2019-20
Sr. No. F.Y.2018-19 Date Venue

1 110th Board Meeting 30-07-2019 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4th
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003.

2 111th Board Meeting 25-09-2019 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4th
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003.

3 112th Board Meeting 28-01-2020 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4th
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003.

4 24th Annual General Meeting 26-09-2019 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4th
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003.

5 Adjourned 24th Annual 30-09-2019 | Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
General Meeting Electronics Niketan, Conference Room No. 4009, 4th
Floor, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003.

6 Extra Ordinary General Meeting| 30-10-2019 | National Informatics Centre, A-Block, CGO Complex,
Lodhi Road, New Delhi—110003.

7 Extra Ordinary General Meeting | 10-12-2019 | National Informatics Centre, A-Block, CGO Complex,
Lodhi Road, New Delhi —110003.

Note: 113th Board Meeting was scheduled to be held on Tuesday, March 31st, 2020 but could not be held due to sudden lock
down in the Country w.e.f. March 25, 2020 due to spread of COVID-19 in the Country.

(13) Audit Committee

The Company, being a wholly owned Government Private Limited Company was not required to constitute an Audit Committee
under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014. However, the Board of Directors in its 99th meeting held on 26th December, 2016, keeping in view of good governance
practices, had constituted the Audit Committee in NICSI to review its Financial and Audit matters and ensure that NICSI follows
prescribed financial rules and regulations. The Company Secretary to NICSI shall act as Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The Board inits 112th meeting held on 28.01.2020, had re-constituted the Audit Committee, comprising the following members:

Sr. No. | Name & designation Designation
1 Smt. Jyoti Arora, SS & FA , MeitY Chairperson
2 Dr. Jaideep Mishra, Joint Secretary, MeitY Member

3 Shri Nagesh Shastry, DDG, NIC Member

4 Shri Shahid Ahmed, DDG, NIC Member
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The 5th meeting of the Audit Committee was held on 24-07-2020, in which the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March,
2020 were considered and recommended for submission to the Board of Directors and the Shareholders.

(14) Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company was not required to appoint Independent Directors under Section 149(4) and Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 hence no declaration has been obtained.

(15) Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of
section 178

The Company, being a wholly owned Government Private Limited Company was not required to constitute a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee under Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Stakeholders Relationship Committee under Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(16) Extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014. Form MGT 9 i.e. Extract of Annual Return is placed at Annexure.

(17) Material Changes and Commitments affecting financial position between the end of financial year and date
of the Board report

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the
report.

(18) Change in the nature of business

There is no change in the nature of business of the company.

(19) Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2019-20 as per Ind AS
Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2019-20 have been prepared as per Ind AS.

(20) The Conservation of Energy, Technological Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The information on Conservation of Energy and Technological Absorption is NIL. Foreign Exchange earnings was NIL and outgo
of the company during the year was also NIL.

(21) Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans/ given guarantees/ made investments.

(22) Related Party Transactions

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 in the form AOC-2 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary
course of business.

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Nil

(23) Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and company’s operations in future

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.
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(24) Subsidiary Company
As on March 31, 2020, the Company does not have any subsidiary.

(25) Auditors

M/s. Agarwal & Saxena (CR0604), Chartered Accountants, I-79, 7th Floor, Himalaya House, 23, K.G.Marg, New Delhi-110001 were
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India as Statutory Auditors of the Company u/s 139 of the Companies Act,
2013, to audit the accounts of NICSI for the year ended 31st March 2020.

(26) Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the company hereby
state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures,

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

o) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
otherirreqularities;

d the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

(27) Acknowledgement

The Board places on record its gratitude to acknowledge the cooperation, assistance and guidance extended to the Company by
Central and State Government Ministries/Departments / Organizations and PSUs etc. including NIC and MeitY. The Directors are
also grateful to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India and Auditors for their cooperation. The Board expresses its sincere
gratitude to the members, bankers and clients for their continued support. The Board also wholeheartedly acknowledges with
thanks the dedicated efforts of all the staff and employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairman

Place: New Delhi
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

D) CIN U74899DL1995NPLO72045

in Registration Date 29.08.1995

il | Name of the Company National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated

iv) | Category / Sub-Category of the Company Private Limited Section 25 (Now Section 8 Company) Company

under National Informatics Centre, Department of Electronics
and Information Technology, Ministry of Communications and
Information Technology, Government of India.

V) Address of the Registered office and contact details | Hall No. 2 & 3, 6™ Floor, NBCC Tower, 15, Bhikaji Cama Place,
New Delhi-110066

Tel:91-11-26105054, 26105193

vi) | Whether listed company Yes / No No

vii) | Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and | Nil
Transfer Agent, if any

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sr. No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product/Service | % to total turnover of the
products / services company

1 ICT Solutions — Hardware and Software | ----- 16.81

2 Manpower, Network and Others | ----- 83.19

11l. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr.No. NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of shares Applicable
ADDRESS OF SUBSUDUARY/ held Section
THE COMPANY ASSOCIATES

1 NIL
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
() Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of %
Shareholders beginning of the year the year Change

Demat | Physical | Total % of Demat | Physical | Total %of | during
Total Total |theyear
Shares Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt NIL 200000 | 200000 100 NIL 200000 | 200000 100 NIL
¢) State Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / Fl

f) Any Other....
Sub-total (A) (1)
(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -Individuals
b) Other Individuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / Fl

e) Any Other....
Sub-total (A) (2)
Total shareholding NIL 200000 | 200000 100 NIL 200000 | 200000 100 NIL
of Promoter (A) =
(A)(D+(A)(2)

B. Public
Shareholding
Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / Fl

) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds Not Applicable
f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flis

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1)

2 .Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas

110



b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto

Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual

shareholders Not Applicable

holding

nominal share

capitalin

excess of Rs 1

lakh

c) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(2)

Total Public

Shareholding Not Applicable

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by

Custodian for Not Applicable

GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total NIL 200000 | 200000 100 NIL 200000 | 200000 100 NIL
(A+B+C)
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the end of the year

No. Name of the year

No. of % of %of Shares No. of % of %of Shares %
Shares total Pledged / Shares total Pledged / Changein
Shares encumbered Shares encumbered share holding
of the to total of the to total during the year
company shares company shares
1 President of 200000 100 NIL 200000 100 NIL NIL
through NIC
Total 200000 100 NIL 200000 100 NIL NIL

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

4 | Atthe End of the year

SL. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
1 No. of % of total No.of | % of total shares
shares shares of the shares | of the company
company
2 | Atthe beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease No Change
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

ADRs):
SL. Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year
For Each of the Top 10 No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shareholders shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / Not Applicable
bonus / sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year ( or on the date of
separation, if separated during the year)
(v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. Beginning of the year during the Year
For Each of No. of % of total No.of |% of total shares of
the Directors shares shares of the shares the company
and KMP company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase NIL

/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer
/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the End of the year

V.INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

financial year
i) Principal Amount

Indebtedness at the beginning of ASQ the

i) Interest due but not paid
i) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

® Addition
® Reduction

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

Not Applicable
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Net Change

Indebtedness at the

end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Not Applicable

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

NICSl is promoted by Government of India through National Informatics Centre (NIC), as a Private Limited Section 25 Company
(Now Section 8 Company). As per Article 59() of the Articles of Association of the company, the Managing Director shall be
appointed by the Director General, NIC on behalf of the President of India by deputing suitable officer of NIC.

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
No. (inRs.)
Shri Manoj Kumar | Shri Prashant Kumar
Mishra Mittal
(01.04.2019 to (14.02.2020 to
13.02.2020) 31.03.2020)
1 Gross salary Rs.36.81 Lakh Rs.4.10 Lakh Rs.40.91 Lakh
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
-as % of proﬂ.t Not Applicable
- others, specify...
5 Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act
B. Remuneration to other directors
Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
No. 777 7 1" __71T 71T _— 0 -
1. Independent Directors
e Fee for attending board / committee meetings
* Commission Not Applicable
® Others, please specify
Total (1)
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2. Other Non-Executive Directors

e Fee for attending board / committee Meetings
® Commission

® Qthers, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Not Applicable

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No. Company Secretary

Shri Girish Kumar Shri Sunny Jain Total
(01.04.2019 to 04.08.2019) (16.12.2019 to
31.03.2020)
1 Gross salary Rs.3.48 Lakh Rs.2.87 Lakh Rs.6.35 Lakh
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(o) Profitsin lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income tax
Act, 1961
2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
-as % Of proﬂt Not Appllcable
- others, specify...
5 Others, please
specify
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Compounding

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority | Appeal made,

the Description Penalty / [RD/ if any
Companies Punishment/ NCLT/ (give Details)
Act Compounding COURT]
fees imposed

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment NIL

Place: New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairperson
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National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI)
Addendum to the Directors Report for Financial Year 2019-20

Replies to the Observations of the Statutory Auditors Report
from M/s. Agarwal & Saxena, Chartered Accountants
on the Accounts of NICSI for F.Y.2019-20

AUDIT OBSERVATION

NICSI REPLY

Basis for Qualified Opinion.

1. The Company implemented the ERP accounting software
wee.fJuly 01,2017 FY 2017-18 till March, 31, 2020 without
being validated by a Systems Audit carried out by an
external independent agency. Impact, if any, on the assets/
liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure as disclosed in the
Ind AS Financial Statements on account of possible system
weakness in the data integrity is presently not ascertainable.

As per Audit advise on NICSI Accounts for FY. 2018-19, NICSI had taken
up the matter with STQC Directorate, vide letter dated 14.11.2019, to
undertake the assignment towards ERP validation and to intimate the
fee to be charged for the same. Subsequently, the reminders have been
sent to STQC Directorate on emails dated 13.02.2020 & 08.05.2020
towards the same. However, no reply from STQC Directorate is yet
received and therefore, a Committee has been set-up in NICSI, vide
office order No. 3 (1)/2020-Admn. dated 07.07.2020, to examine the
matter of ERP Accounting Software Validation by an External Agency.
The Committee is in process to examine the same.

2. In our opinion, the internal controls existing in the
Company with respect to physical verification of Property
Plant & Equipment, revenue recording, purchases recording,
settlement of advances to employees reconciliation/
confirmation of vendor/user balances, process of releasing
the Vendors Performance Bank Guarantees, direct deposits
by clients into the bank account through e-payment/
otherwise and recovery of dues should be commensurate
with the size and nature of its operations. (Refer to Annexure
A"

The existing internal control systems towards Property Plant &
Equipment, revenue recording, purchases recording, settlement
of advances to employees reconciliation/confirmation of vendor/
user balances, process of releasing the Vendors Performance Bank
Guarantees, direct deposits by clients into the bank account through
e-payment/ otherwise and recovery of dues have been strengthened
during the year. However, due to COVID-19 lockdown, the progress has
been relatively slow in following up these items with the concerned.
All these activities would again be taken up vigorously, as soon as
situation improves in the near future.

3. Balances relating to Trade Payables (Note 19), Trade
Receivables (Note 10), Advances received from customers
(Note 21), Earnest Money Deposits receipts (Note 20),
Security deposits Payable (Note18), Advances to Suppliers
(note no. 9 & 15) and Grants-in-aid received from customers
(Note 21) are subject to the confirmations having been
obtained/ received and/ or the consequential reconciliation
being drawn up as at the year end. Impact, if any, on the
assets/ liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure consequent
to such confirmation and reconciliation is presently not
ascertainable.

Balance Confirmation Letters have been issued towards the balances
as on 31.03.2020. It is regular feature that such letters are issued to
the Departments / Organisations etc. but very negligible response
is received against the same. NICSI is in the process of getting it
automated in its ERP system, so that such activities are immediately
and properly implemented.
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4, Reference is invited to Note No. 21 of the Ind AS financial
statement with respect to the Advances received from
customers amounting to Rs. 1,24,647.66 lakhs. Review of
individual accounts reveals numerous customers wherein
the balances have remained outstanding for more than 3
year as at the year end. These advances received mostly
from Public Sector Undertakings (PSUs) and Government of
India Ministries have been invested by the Company in Fixed
deposits with various banks at varied rates of interest and
maturity profiles.

In view of the fact that such idle funds with respect to the
Advance from Customers have remained unutilised and
invested in Fixed Deposits, the management needs to
review each such Advance and return the same based on
the corresponding terms and conditions of the contract with
each of the customer. In the absence of the documents,
contracts and details being available in respect of each such
Advance, the overall impact of matters referred to in the
preceding paras on the assets/ liabilities and/ or income/
expenditure consequent to such details being available is
presently not ascertainable.

NICSI receives thousands of new Purchase Orders from the various
Government Departments / Organisations / Public Sector Enterprises.
After completion of the activities against those orders, NICSI prepares
the Final Settlement of Accounts statement and send the same to
the concerned user, to reimburse the amount against the excess
expenditure or to intimate the Bank details for refund of the unspent
balances therein. While some of the users provide the Bank details, in
many cases these are not received and thus, the unspent amounts
remain with NICSI. However, as per Audit Observation, NICSI would
take further efforts on priority to review such cases and to refund the
unspent amounts to the users at the earliest.

5. The corresponding revenue of the work done for which
the expenses incurred of Rs 49691 lakhs were booked
under various heads of Income and Expenditure Account in
FY 2019-20 are recorded in the next financial year (i.e 2020-
21) resulting into the non-compliance of matching concept.

Consequently, that results in the understatement of Income
before tax by Rs 531.69 lakhs and Revenue from Operations
Rs. 531.69 lakhs respectively.

Against the amounts identified in the Report, NICSI has generated
its income in FY. 2020-21. Audit advice has been noted for future
compliance.

6. With reference to the note no. 66 of Income & Expenditure
Account, the expenditure that is not recorded in the Ind-
AS Financials of FY 2019-20 due to non-submission/
late submission of the invoices by the vendors has resultant
into non-compliance of cut off procedures.

Such bills are recorded in the subsequent reporting periods
after post-approval by the competent authority. Impact,
of such late recording of expenditures on the assets/
liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure on aid projects
cannot be ascertained reliably due to non-availability of
quantum of bills that were not submitted by vendors as on
reporting date.

Fixing of a cut-off date to receive invoices from the vendors towards
services rendered in previous year becomes necessary due to deposit
of GST and filing of return there-against in time.
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7. The Company has not complied with Ind AS 115 on
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” prescribed by
the Companies (India Accounting Standards) Rules 2015
with respect to erroneously recognising revenue on Sales of
goods at the time of generating the invoice in terms of the
Significant Accounting Policy (Refer to Note 2 (vii)) instead
of recognising the same at the time of transfer of “control”
i.e. on acceptance of goods by the customer. Impact of the
same on the reported income, loss and assets/ liabilities of
the Company consequent to recognising revenue in terms
of Ind AS 115 is presently not ascertainable.

As per NICSI Policy, it has been recognising its revenue at the time of
generation of Invoice towards Sale of Goods. The company has duly
complied with all the provisions and requirements of applicable Ind
AS, while preparing the financials for FY.2019-20 and as per matching
concept described by Ind AS 18 on Revenue recognition. NICSI is in
the process of getting it automated in its ERP system, so that such
activities are immediately and properly implemented.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Reference is invited to note no. 46 whereby on account
of the direction of the Ministry of Electronics & Information
Technology during the year, the Company's Operating
Margin with effect from FY 2018-19 was co-related and
approved at 7% of the O&M expenditure and up-gradation
cost of the basic/ ICT infrastructure. This has resulted in a
substantial decrease in the operating margin accruing to the
Company during the year with respect to the Shastri Park
and Bhubaneswar National Data Centre with a resultant
impact on the loss reported in the Income & Expenditure
Account for the year.

The matter had been considered by NICSI Board of Directors, inits 108"
meeting held on 27.12.2018. The Board after detailed deliberations
had approved as under:

» NICSI may create a separate project pool account for NDCSP,

Delhi and NDC, Bhubaneswar, Odisha;

Income generated through Data Centre collocation services at
NDC, SP, Delhi and NDC, Bhubaneswar, Odisha, shall be pooled
under the proposed project head(s);

>

This income shall be used for meeting the O&M expenditure
and upgradation of both the National Data Centres basic
infrastructure;

In addition to existing 60 racks being used for co-location service
at NDCSP by NICSI, NIC may add more racks to generate enough
funds to meet the O & M expenses for years to come and also for
upgrading of the basic infrastructure.

NICSI would not incur Rs. 8 Crore per annum towards O & M
expenditure of NDCSP from FY 2018-19 onwards. The revenue
generated per annum through said 60 Racks and more racks
to be added by NIC, would be utilized for meeting the O & M
expenditure and upgradation of respective National Data Centres
basic infrastructure.

NICSI as per their norms would charge @7% Operating Margin
and Taxes as applicable from FY 2018-19 onwards on the above
mentioned O & M expenditure and expenditure to be incurred on
up-gradation of respective National Data Centers basic and / or
ICT infrastructure.

NICSI has been charging its Operating Margin plus applicable taxes
thereon accordingly since 01.04.2018 as per the said approved
process by the Board

2. We draw attention to the note No. 40 of the Ind-AS
Financial Statements whereby the conveyance/ title deed
in respect of the building at Bhikaji Cama place, New Delhi
amounting to Rs. 931.50 lakhs is pending for registration as
at the year end.

NICSI has been following up with NBCC to get the conveyance/ title
deed registered in respect of Hall No’s 2 & 3 at the 6" floor of NBCC
Tower, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi purchased by NICSI in the years
2003 & 2000 respectively. In this regard, MD, NICSI has again referred
the matter to CMD, NBCC, vide letter dated 17.07.2020. NICSI would
however, continue to follow-up the matter with NBCC in future.
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Qualified Opinion on Report towards Internal Financial Controls

a. Reconciliation/confirmation of vendor balances as the
same could potentially result in material misstatement of
the outstanding balances;

Balance Confirmation Letters have been issued towards the balances
as on 31.03.2020. It is regular feature that such letters are issued to
the Departments / Organisations etc. but very negligible response is
received against the same.

b. Release of the Performance Bank Guarantees of the
vendors as it could potentially result in non-recovery of
damages from defaulting vendors;

The audit observation has been noted and the status towards
outstanding Performance Bank Guarantees (PBGs) would be reviewed.
Based on the same, the amounts against the PBGs, for which the
empanelment periodicity is over, would be refunded / released. NICSI
isin the process of getting it automated in its ERP system, so that such
activities are immediately and properly implemented.

c. Accounting of the amounts directly deposited/
electronically transferred in the bank account of the
Company by the clients/departments to avoid possible
inefficient utilization of the available funds;

The user departments/ organisations transfer the funds to NICSI
through electronic mode. While most of such receipts are linked to
the Purchase Orders, some of them remain un-identified despite
various efforts. The audit observation has been noted and more
efforts would be put-in in future to reconcile such amounts. Also, the
concerned banks have been instructed to provide the links to identify
the sources of fund received so that the matter could be taken up by
NICSI with those customers. However, since 21.07.2020, this aspect
would automatically be taken care of in the cases where the funds
are being received through PFMS and for the other amounts, NICSI
would be pursuing with the concerned banks in which the amounts
are received.

d. Recovery and follow up of the dues from clients and
advance to vendors as this could possibly result in a material
misstatement of the outstanding dues from the Clients and
Advance to Vendors; and

The audit observation has been noted and more efforts would be
made in future to pursue with the clients and the vendors towards
recovery or settlement of such amounts.

e. Physical verification of Property Plant & Equipment which
could materially impact the accounting, classification and
disclosure of the aforesaid.

Asset details are now being maintained in prescribed register with
proper details towards their issue / disposal etc. Also, Physical
Verification of all Assets is being carried out by a 3 member Committee
each for NICSI HQ. (including SP & LNDC) and its State Units at the
close of each financial year. Further, a Committee has been set-up in
NICSI and the Asset items declared as obsolete/ unserviceable as on
31.03.2020 are in process for their auction / disposal as per provisions
in the GFRs.

f. Company have not complied with cut off procedures and
matching concept at the time of recording the income and
expense bill.

Fixing of a cut-off date to receive invoices from the vendors towards
services rendered in previous year becomes necessary due to deposit
of GST and filing of return there-against in time.

Place : New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairperson
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise
Under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPL0O72045
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

¥ in lakhs
SL.  Particulars Note As at As at
No. No 31-03-2020  31-03-2019
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 4,692.75 5,405.80
Right of use assets 4 18,924.70
Other Intangible assets 5 4,356.78 7,065.05
Financial assets:
(a) Loans 6 107.08 701.43
(b) Others Financial Assets 7 494.59 458.50
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8 4,309.46 3,516.83
Other non-current assets 9 1,164.64 1,677.48
2 Current assets
Financial assets:
(a) Trade receivables 10 18,987.52 17,398.08
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 11 74,608.42 62,678.42
(c) Bank balances other than '(b)' above 12 76,137.47 87,350.17
(d) Others Financial Assets 13 4,060.72 4,479.16
Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 14,148.29 14,034.31
Other current assets 15 29,515.90 24,984.22
Total Assets 2,51,508.32  2,29,749.45
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 16 200.00 200.00
Other Equity 17 59,014.02 49937.82
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T in lakhs

SlL.  Particulars Note As at As at
No. No 31-03-2020 31-03-2019

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

(@) Other financial liabilities 18 16,669.42 40.46

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities:

(a) Trade payables 19

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 817.14 466.66

Enterprises

Total outstanding dues of Other Than Micro Enterprises and 23,591.47 34,465.51

Small Enterprises

(b) Other financial liabilities 20 3,804.85 1,466.94
Other current liabilities 21 1,47,336.90 1,43,097.54
Provisions 22 74.52 74.52
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,51,508.32  2,29,749.45

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Agarwal & Saxena National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002405C

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Akshay Sethi Prashant Kumar Mittal  Dr. Rajendra Kumar
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership N0.539439 DIN: 08710751 DIN:02677079
Sd/- Sd/-
Sunny Jain Deepak Saxena
Company Secretary FA&CA
ACS: 31700

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise
Under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPLO72045
Income and Expenditure for the year ended 31.03.2020

Particulars

INCOME

Revenue From Operations

Other Income

Total Income (I+11)

EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Services Support Expenses
Employee benefits expenses
Finance Cost

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses

Total Expenses (IV)
Income/(loss) before tax (llI-1V)
Tax expense:

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

(3) Tax for Earlier Years adjusted/(Written back)

Note
No.

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Income/ (Loss) for the year from continuing operations (V-VI)

Year ended
31-03-2020

1,15,628.59
10,302.89

1,25,931.48

17,829.00
79,126.55
856.31
1,037.41
8,605.14
5177.70
1,12,632.11
13,299.37
4,223.17
4,820.17
(792.63)
195.63

9,076.20

Zin lakhs

Year ended
31-03-2019

1,14,952.83
9,080.50

1,24,033.33

24,139.51
85,252.84

1,092.63

5,086.44
18,248.79
1,33,820.21
(9,786.87)
(1,263.53)
752.37
(3,662.45)
1,646.55

(8,523.35)
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T in lakhs

SL.  Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. No. 31-03-2020 31-03-2019
VIII Other Comprehensive Income - -
IX  Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising Income/ 9,076.20 (8,523.35)
(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)
X Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share Rs.100):
(1) Basic 30 4,538.10 (4,261.67)
(2) Diluted 30 4,538.10 (4,261.67)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Agarwal & Saxena National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
Chartered Accountants
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Akshay Sethi Prashant Kumar Mittal Dr. Rajendra Kumar
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership N0.539439 DIN: 08710751 DIN:02677079
Sd/- Sd/-
Sunny Jain Deepak Saxena
Company Secretary FA&CA

ACS: 31700

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise
Under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPLO72045
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Surplus /(Deficit) before tax and extraordinary items
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization Expenses

Profit/(Loss) on sale of Property Plant & Equipment

Finance Cost

Interest income

Provision/(Recoverable) for Doubtful Debts
Provision/(Recoverable) against Advances

Provision against Sales Tax & TDS & WCT

Operating Surplus /(Deficit) before Working Capital changes
Adjustments for :

(Increase) /Decrease in trade receivables

(Increase) /Decrease in loans and advances and other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable & other liabilities

Cash Generated from Operations

Income tax Paid

Income tax for Previous Years

Interest of Earlier Year related to GIA Project

Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Operating activities (A)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets

Investment in FDR

Sale of fixed assets

Intangible Asset under Development

Interest received

Year ended

March 31, 2020

13,299.37

8,605.14
2.37)
1,037.41
(8,161.28)
(1,454.25)
(451.32)
0.41
12,873.11

(135.20)
(4,322.32)
(8,405.61)

9.98
(4,820.17)
(195.63)

(5,005.82)
(2,823.15)
11,212.70

2.63

8,543.63

T in lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2019

(9,786.87)

5,086.44
(1.49)

(6,644.77)
9,588.17
1,7112.20

120.04
73.71

1,848.91
(546.63)
2,7126.05
4,102.04
(752.37)
(1,646.55)
(4,766.01)
(3,062.88)

(8,582.47)
27,574.20

6.59

6,644.77
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Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Investing activities (B) 16,935.82

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Interest paid

Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Financing activities (C)

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 11,930.00
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 62,678.42
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the closing of the year 74,608.42
Notes

25,443.10

22,380.22
40,298.21
62,678.42

1) Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the year consist of Cash and Balances with Banks. The detail of these is

as follows:

Particulars

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks
Imprest Account
Other Bank Balances

Fixed Deposits

As per our report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002405C

Sd/-

Akshay Sethi

Partner

Membership N0.539439

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020

As at March 31, As at March 31,

2020 2019
32,287.27 28,595.00
0.50 0.50
42,320.65 34,282.92
74,608.42 62,678.42

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/- Sd/-
Prashant Kumar Mittal  Dr. Rajendra Kumar
Managing Director Chairman
DIN: 08710751 DIN:02677079
Sd/- Sd/-
Sunny Jain Deepak Saxena
Company Secretary FA&CA
ACS: 31700

| 125



National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013)

(A Government of India Enterprise

CIN: U74899DL1995NPL0O72045

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

A. Equity share capital for issued, subscribed and paid up equity share of Re. 100/- each

Particulars

As at 1 April 2018
Changes during the year
As at March 31 2019
Changes during the year
As at March 31 2020

B. Other equity (Refer note 17)

As at March 312018

Note

Reserves and Surplus
Retained earnings

Interest related to GIA Project other than NKN (Refer Note No. 54)
Interest related to GIA Project NKN (Refer Note No. 54)
Depreciation for earlier years (Refer Note No. 57)

As at March 31 2018 (Restated)
Surplus/(Deficiency) for the year
As at March 312019
Surplus/(Deficiency) for the year
As at March 312020

As per our report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002405C

Sd/-

Akshay Sethi

Partner

Membership N0.539439

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of

63,682.39
(3,351.27)
(1,414.74)

(455.22)
58,461.16
(8,523.35)
49,937.82

9,076.20
59,014.02

National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Prashant Kumar Mittal
Managing Director
DIN: 08710751

Sd/-
Sunny Jain
Company Secretary
FCS: 31700

Sd/-

Sd/-

16

16

16

Dr. Rajendra Kumar
Chairman
DIN:02677079

Deepak Saxena
FA&CA

Tin lakhs
Amount
200.00

200.00

200.00

Rin lakhs

Total other
equity

63,682.39
(3,351.27)
(1,414.74)

(455.22)
58,461.16
(8,523.35)
49,937.82

9,076.20
59,014.02
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
1. Corporate Information

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (The Corporation) was incorporated on August 29, 1995 under Section-25
of the Companies Act, 1956 (Now section 8 of Companies Act, 2013) under National Informatics Centre (NIC), Ministry of
Communications & Information Technology, Government of India. The Corporation is engaged to provide Total IT Solutions to the
Government Ministries/Departments/Organizations.

The Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated July 29, 2020.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
i Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting standards(herein after
refer to 'Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA'") under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which
have been measured at fair value:

. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest to lakhs rupees as per the
requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated. Rounding of errors has been ignored.

ii. Current Vs Non-Current Classification of Assets & Liabilities:
An Asset is treated as Current when it is:

. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
] Expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period;

. Cash or Cash Equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A Liability is treated as Current when:

° It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

. It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period, or
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. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Current.
Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are classified as Non-Current Assets & Liabilities.

The Operating Cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing & their realization in cash & cash
equivalents. The Corporation has identified 12 months as its operating cycle.

Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) & Depreciation
(@) Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind-AS, the company had elected to
measure all of its property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP carrying value (deemed cost)

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebate are deducted in arriving
at the purchase price. Subsequent cost is included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the company.
When significant parts of plant and machinery are required to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates them
separately based on their useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment are replacement if the recognition criteria is satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

(b) Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful live)

Depreciation on the items of PPE has been provided on the Written Down Value Method & at the rates as prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The Corporation has determined the useful life of all the items of PPE in alignment
with Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
(c) Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the income statement when the asset is derecognised. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Intangible Assets and Amortization

The intangible assets have been initially measured at costs. The intangibles assets have been subsequently measured at
costs less accumulated amortization & accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of the intangible assets may be
finite or infinite. Intangible assets with finite lives have been amortized over their useful economic life as per the Written
Down Value Method. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of Income and Expenditure unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.
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As per companies act, costs relating to computer software and server are capitalized and amortized on straight line
method over their estimated useful economic life of three years and six years respectively. Costs relating to ERP software
are capitalized and amortized on straight line method over its estimated useful economic life of ten years.

Financial instruments

a financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
(reqular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Allfinancial liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through income or loss are added to the fair value on
initial recognition. After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to
P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL s a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
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In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such electionis allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirerin a business combination to which Ind AS103 (Business Combinations)
applies are classified as at FVTPL. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of
investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The respective company has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset or have assumed the obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass- through’ arrangement And

Either the Company:
(@  hastransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b)  hasneither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but have transferred control
of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the continuing involvement of Company. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to

repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g,, loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balances.

The company recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L).
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vi.  Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
] In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. The fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

° Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy

At each reporting date, the management of the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the accounting policies of the Company.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

This note summarises the accounting policy for determination of fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes as following:

° Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions
. Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
° Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

vii. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
before revenue is recognised: -
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Revenue in respect of sale of goods/service

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Corporation & the revenue can
be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account the
contractually defined terms of payment & excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Revenue in respect of sale of goods/stock & sale items is recognized at the time of generation of invoice or at the time when
controls of the goods have passed to the buyers, usually on delivery of the goods and proof of delivery. Revenue from the sale
of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns & allowances, trade discounts &
volume rebates.

Revenue in respect of sale of service is recognized at the time of generation of invoice or at the time when service completed
to the buyers, usually on proof of service. Revenue from the sale of service is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

The Corporation recognizes operating margin at the slab rates prescribed from time to time depending upon the project costs.
Usually the operating margin rates are inversely proportionate to the project costs i.e. higher the project costs, lower the operating
margin rate. Any subsequent decrease in operating margin rate on account of an increase in project costs is accounted for by
issuing corresponding credit notes at the yearend or at the time of project closing. The Credit Notes so issued are netted off from
the respective heads of income.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income
is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance
income in the statement of profit and loss.

viii. Advance for Grant- in- project from different Ministries/Departments of Government.

NICSI received advance for Sales of good and service from different Ministries/ Departments of Government. These transactions
are normal trading transaction of the entity. Advance received for Ministries disclosure in the financial statements has been
made separately under the head ‘Other Current Liabilities’ as ‘Grant in Aid received from Customers’, as these are normal trading
transactions. These advances are utilized for the purposes of execution of respective projects and if there is balance available with
NICSI at the close of the respective Project, the same is refunded to the Grantor Institution along with the interest (if any). All the
grant in aid amounts are received for the Projects only.

NICSIimplements various orders from the government departments/ organizations towards procurement of hardware/ software
and providing manpower. It takes Operating Margin on the Total cost of each order, as per the rates approved by its Board of
Directors from time to time. NICS| receives fund against those orders from the departments/ organizations as advances. No other
form of government assistance is received by NICSI, from which it is directly benefited. There is no grant of monetary or non-
monetary asset given to NICSI at concessional rate or free of cost.

NICSI fulfils all the terms & conditions attached to the administrative approvals/ sanctions towards release of grants-in-aid by the
Ministries/ Departments.

iX. Inventories

The Cost of Inventories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Inventories (including inventory of software’s) have been valued at cost or net realizable
value, whichever is lower on the First-In-First-Out (FIFO) method. Consumable stores have been charged to revenue in the year
of purchase, being negligible.
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X. Retirement Benefits

As per arrangement with NIC, the amount towards leave salary and pension contribution are calculated on basic pay and grade
pay of the respective employee based on the percentage prescribed by Government of India and passed on to NIC. The Company
is not liable to pay any other retirement benefits to employees, which shall entirely be borne by NIC in future.

xi. Prior Period Items

Prior Period items are omissions/misstatements in an entity’s earlier period financial statements, including balance sheet
misclassifications. Ind AS 8 requires the rectification of prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of financial statements
approved, after their discovery, by restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred.
However, if such restatement is impracticable i.e. when an entity can't apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so, then
Ind AS doesn'’t require restatement of such prior period items in comparatives of earlier periods.

xii.  Events after the Reporting Period

The Corporation, in each year, is in receipt of a few expenditure invoices pertaining to the reporting period, after the reporting
period. The expenditure invoices, pertaining to a reporting period, which are received by the Corporation after the reporting
period but before the management approved cut-off date or the approval of audited financial statements by the Corporation’s
Board of Directors are considered as adjusting events after the reporting period & are accounted for in the reporting period to
which they pertain. The corresponding income on such expenditure invoices is also accounted for in the same reporting period.
The expenditure invoices, pertaining to a reporting period, which are received by the Corporation after the reporting period &
even after the management approved cut-off date or the approval of audited financial statements by the Corporation’s Board of
Directors, are considered as non-adjusting events after the reporting period & are accounted for in the reporting period in which
they are received. The corresponding income is also accounted for in the reporting period in which the expenditure invoices are
received & accounted for.

xiii. Leases

The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has
not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17.

As a lessee

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets
are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate (i.e. average interest rate of government bond -7.75%).

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

- Variable lease paymentsthatdepend onanindexor arate, initially measured using the index orrate as at the commencement
date;

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.
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The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and
equipment” and lease liabilities in ‘other financial liabilities” in the Balance Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shortterm leases of real estate properties
that have a lease term of 12 months. The company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. Finance leases are capitalised at the
commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized
in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified
in an arrangement.

Arrangements containing a lease have been evaluated as on the date of transition i.e. 1st April 2016 in accordance with Ind-AS
101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards for classification as finance or operating lease as at the date of transition
to Ind AS basis the facts and circumstances existing as at that date.

xiv. Income taxes
Current income tax

Currentincome tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted,
at the reporting date in India.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off these.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

In situations where company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961, enacted in India, no deferred tax
(asset or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period.

Deferred taxes in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period are recognized in the yearin
which the temporary differences originate.

However, the company restricts the recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in OCI or equity).
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will
pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that future
economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

xv. Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assess, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimate the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre -tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.
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For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the
asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated
as an increase in revaluation.

xvi. Impairment of Financial Assets/Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts
A provision @5% is recognized towards Trade Receivables which are outstanding for more than three years at Balance Sheet date.

xvii. Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed
by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (ie. the average market value of the outstanding
equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issue data later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any
share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board
of Directors."

xviii. Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Long term provisions may
be discounted to their present values at an appropriate risk adjusted discounted rate. Short term provisions are not required to be
discounted. The provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.
Provisions are also required to be created in respect of constructive obligations. However, the Corporation was not having any
constructive obligations in the reporting period.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

xix. Cash and Cash-Equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts are form an integral part of Company's cash management."

2.1 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated
and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and assumptions are
required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various accounting policies are described below
and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal,
contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future
events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the
exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

(a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

(b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required
in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

() Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Company uses judgments in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the
probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.
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2.2 Recent accounting pronouncements Ind AS 116:
Issue of Ind AS 117 — Insurance Contracts

Ind AS 117 supersedes Ind AS 104 Insurance contracts. It establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. Under the Ind AS 117 model,
insurance contract liabilities will be calculated as the present value of future insurance cash flows with a provision for risk.
Application of this standard is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to existing Standards
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has carried out amendments of the following accounting standards:

1. Ind AS 103 — Business Combination

2. Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors

3. Ind AS 40 — Investment Property

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the new amendments issued but not yet effective.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

X in Lakhs

Particulars Buildings Furniture Vehicles Office Computers Total

and Fixtures Equipments
Cost
As at April 1,2018 1,985.85 563.70 7.02 3977.22 6,940.44 13,474.23
Additions - 1,028.01 339.72 7783 1,445.56
Disposals - - 18.35 88.72 107.07
As at March 31,2019 1,985.85 1,591.71 7.02 4,298.59 6,929.55 | 14,812.72
Additions - 7.96 37.06 70.52 11555
Disposals - - 0.46 492 537
As at March 31, 2020 1,985.85 1,599.67 7.02 4,335.20 6,995.16 | 14,922.90
Depreciation
As at April 1,2018 1,012.65 471.07 6.27 2,167.18 4,075.65 7,732.76
Depreciation charge for the year 47.61 288.55 0.25 771.73 212.76 1,320.91
Depreciation for earlier years (Refer 45522 455.22
Note No. 57)
Impairment Loss - -
Disposals - - 17.43 84.54 101.97
As at March 31,2019 1,060.26 1,214.79 6.52 2,921.47 4,203.88 9,406.92
Depreciation charge for the year 45.28 97.33 017 545.78 139.78 82834
Impairment Loss - - - - -
Disposals - - - 043 4.68 5.11
As at March 31,2020 1,105.55 1,312.12 6.68 3,466.82 4,338.98 | 10,230.15
Net book value :
As at March 31, 2020 880.31 287.55 0.33 868.38 2,656.18 4,692.75
As at March 31,2019 925.59 37692 0.50 1,377.12 2,7125.67 5,405.80
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4, Right of use assets

X in Lakhs

Particulars Right of use assets Total
As at April 01,2019 21,285.61 21,285.61
Additions

Disposals
As at March 31,2020 21,285.61 21,285.61
Amortisation
Amortisation charge for the year 2,360.92 2,360.92
As at March 31,2020 2,360.92 2,360.92
Net book value:

As at March 31,2020 18,924.70 18,924.70

5 - Other Intangible Assets
X in Lakhs

Particulars Software Total
Cost

As at April 1,2018 7,738.80 7,738.80
Additions 7,136.91 7,136.91
Disposals

As at March 31,2019 14,875.70 14,875.70
Additions 2,707.60 2,707.60
Disposals

As at March 31,2020 17,583.31 17,583.31
Amortisation

As at April 1, 2018 4,045.12 4,045.12
Amortisation charge for the year 3,/65.53 3,765.53
Impairment Loss

Disposals

As at March 31,2019 7,810.65 7,810.65
Amortisation charge for the year 5,415.88 5,415.88
Impairment Loss

Disposals

As at March 31, 2020 13,226.53 13,226.53
Net book value:

As at March 31,2020 4,556.78 4,356.78
As at March 31,2019 7,065.06 7,065.06
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Note No.-6 - Loans

X in Lakhs
Particulars Non-current
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 107.08 70143
TOTAL 107.08 701.43

Note: - Non-current Security Deposit have been discounted to their present value using a pre-tax undiscount rate of NIL (PY

10.85%) per annum.

Note No. - 7 - Other Financial Assets

T in Lakhs

Particulars

Non-current

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31,2019

Fixed Deposits

Bank Deposit with remaining maturity more than 12 months* 291.60 291.60
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits
Interest Accured 202.99 166.90
TOTAL 494.59 458.50
* Fixed Deposit mortgaged against Bank Guarantee.
8. Deferred Tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year.
A.Income and Expenditure Account:
X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
(i) | Income or Loss Section
Current income tax charge 4816.73 752.37
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 195.63 1,646.55
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (792.63) (3,662.45)
Income tax expense reported in the Income and Expenditure 4,223.17 (1,263.53)
Account
(ii) | Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
TOTAL 4,223.17 (1,263.53)
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B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for FY ended 31

March 2019 and 31 March 2020:

X in Lakhs
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31 2020 March 312019
Accounting Income before tax from continuing operations 13,299.37 (9,786.87)
Income before tax from a discontinued operation
Accounting Income before income tax 13,299.37 (9,786.87)
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 34.944% (31 March 2019: 34.944%) 4,647.33 (3.419.93)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 195.63 1,646.55
Government grants exempted from tax
Exemptincome
Other Assets (646.70)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 26.90 509.85
At the effective income tax rate of 31.75% (31 March 2019: 12.91%) 422317 (1,263.53)
Income tax expense reported in income and expenditure account 422317 (1,263.53)
Income tax attributable to a discontinued operation - -
Total 4,223.17 (1,263.53)
C. Deferred tax:
Deferred tax relates to the following: %in Lakhs
Particulars Balance sheet Statement of Income &
Expenditure
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 455.88 (20.10) (475.98) (304.80)
Provision for Doubtful Debts 3,387.86 3,455.43 67.56 (3,351.11)
Provision for Employee benefits -
Right to use asstes net of Lease Liabilities 465.72 (465.72)
Present valuation of Security Deposits (assets) - 81.51 81.51 (6.54)
Deferred tax expense/(income) (792.63) (3,662.45)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 4,509.46 3,516.83
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows: X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Deferred tax assets 4,309.46 3,536.93
Deferred tax liabilities 20.10
Deferred tax Assets/(liabilities), net 4,309.46 3,516.83
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Note No. - 9 - Other Non-Current Assets

Zin Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31,2019

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Deferred Lease Expense - 640.41
Advances to Suppliers 1,164.64 1,037.07
Total 1,164.64 1,677.48
10 - Trade Receivables
T in Lakhs
Particular As at As at
articutars March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Unsecured, considered good 18,987.52 17,398.08
Unsecured, considered doubtful* 8,435.35 9,889.60
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (8,435.35) (9,889.60)
Total 18,987.52 17,398.08

* Provision for Doubtful Debts amounting to Rs.9,889.60 Lakhs of F Y 2018-19 has been reversed during FY 2019-20.
Further, during FY 2019-20 provision for doubtful debts has been made for Rs.8,435.35 Lakhs instead of @ 5% towards
which are outstanding for more than 3 years at Balance Sheet date refer Note No. 58.

11 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

T in Lakhs

Particulars

Current Assets

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31,2019

Balances with banks

Saving Account 32,287.27 28,395.00
Others
Imprest Account 0.50 0.50
Fixed Deposit (original maturity less than 3 months)* 42,320.65 34,282.92
Total 74,608.42 62,678.42

* Includes Bank Balances of Sweep Deposit Accounts.
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Note No. - 12 - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

T in Lakhs
Particulars Current Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Fixed Deposit 73,239.18 83,073.38
Fixed Deposit mortgaged against Bank Guarantee 2,898.29 4,276.79
Total 76,137.47 87,350.17
Note No. - 13 - Other Financial Assets
T in Lakhs
Particulars Current
As at As at

March 31, 2020

March 31,2019

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits

Interest Accured 4,060.72 447916
Total 4,060.72 4,479.16
14 - Current Tax Assets (Net)
T in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Income tax paid (Net of provision Rs.7877.62 Lakhs (Previous Year
Rs.10454.36 Lakhs) 15,951.21 15,680.86
Less: -
Provision for Income Tax (Refund Not Received) (1,80291) (1,646.55)
(Refer Note No. 64 )
Total 14,148.29 14,034.31
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15 - Other Current Assets

X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Other than Capital Advance
Advances to Employees

Unsecured, considered good 33.12 36.11
Total (A) 33.12 36.11
Other advances
Unsecured, considered good

GST on Advances and Others 28,559.12 21,103.62

Prepaid expenses 2.41 336.28

Taxes Recoverable* - 3.21
Total(B) 28,561.53 21,443.11
Advances to Suppliers 2,182.13 5217.21
Less: -
Provision for Advances to Suppliers (not adjusted/settled) 1,260.88 1,712.20
(Refer Notes No. 59)
Total (C) 921.25 3,505.01
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 29,515.90 24,984.22

* Break-up of Taxes Recoverable
X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Sales Tax/DVAT Recoverable (1996-97 to 2013-14) 117.91 120.71
TDS On Works Contract 2000-2001 2.54 2.54
Less: -
Provision for Sales Tax/ VAT (Not refunded back) 117.91 117.70
Provision for TDS on WCT (Not refunded back) 2.54 2.34

(Refer Notes No. 64)
Total - 3.21
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16 - Equity Share Capital

T in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Authorised

200,000 (Previous Year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 200.00 200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

200,000 (Previous Year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 200.00 200.00
TOTAL 200.00 200.00

a. Information on shareholders* (Including Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares)

Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019
No.of Equity | Percentage (%) | No.of Equity | Percentage (%)
shares held shares held
President of India through DG, NIC 199,995 99.9975 1,99,995 99.9975
Sh. Shyam Bihari Singh 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Sh. Nagesh Shastry 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Sh. Deepak Chandra Misra 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Sh. Vishnu Chandra 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Sh.R'S Mani 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Total 200,000.00 100.00 200,000.00 100.00

* Held on behalf of Government of India

b. Reconciliation of the paid up shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

%in Lakhs
Particluars As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 200,000.00 200.00 200,000.00 200.00
Add: - Shares Issued/ (buy back) during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 200,000.00 200.00 200,000.00 200.00
C. Rights, Preference and Restriction attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to

one vote per share.

d. Over the period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2020, neither any bonus shares were issued nor any shares were
allotted for consideration other than cash. Further, no shares were brought back during the said period.
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17 - Other Equity

X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Surplus as per Income and Expenditure Account
Opening balance 49,937.82 63,682.39
Effece of Prior Period Error
Interest related to GIA Project other than NKN (Refer Note No. 54) (3,351.27)
Interest related to GIA Project NKN (Refer Note No. 54) (1,414.74)
Depreciation for earlier years (Refer Note No. 57) (455.22)
Opening Balance Restated 49,937.82 58,461.16
Add: - Surplus/(Deficiency) for the year 9,079.64 (8,523.35)
TOTAL 59,014.02 49,937.82
18 - Other Financial Liabilities
X in Lakhs
Particulars Non-current
As at As at

March 31, 2020

March 31,2019

Security Deposits Payable 39.46 40.46
Lease Liabilities 16,629.96
Total 16,669.42 40.46
19 - Trade Payables
%in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31,2019

Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises* 817.14 466.66
Total outstanding dues of Other Than Micro Enterprises and Small

Enterprises 23,591.47 34,465.51
Total 24,408.60 34,932.17

* Refer Note No. 46
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20 - Other Financial Liabilities

X in Lakhs
Particulars Current
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Earnest Money Deposit Payable 1,193.26 931.11
Employee Benefits Payable 207.87 274.45
Expenses Payable 0.00 19.00
Lease Liabilities 2,161.34 -
Retention Money (Performance Bank Guarantee)* 242.38 24238
Total 3,804.85 1,466.94
* Retention from vendor against performance bank guarantee.
21 - Other Current Liabilities
X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Others
Statutory Dues and Taxes 8,587.10 1,450.60
Advances received from customers 1,24,647.66 1,11,852.71
Grants-in-Aid received from customers 14,102.14 29,518.24
Corporate Social Responsibilities - 276.00
Total 1,47,336.90 1,43,097.54
22 - Provisions
X in Lakhs
Current
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020

March 31,2019

Provision for Stamp Duty (Refer Note No. 44)

7452

74.52

Total

74.52

74.52
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23 Revenue From Operations

X in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Revenue from operations
Sale of Products 18,908.56 19,433.70
Sale of Service 96,192.85 95,479.47
Total (A) 1,15,101.41 1,14,913.17
Other Operating Revenue
Administrative Charges 527.19 39.66
Total (B) 527.19 39.66
Total Revenue from operations (A)+(B) 1,15,628.59 1,14,952.83
24 Other Income
X in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Interest Income 8,530.90 9,094.45
Less: -
Interest on Grants-in-Aid Projects (other than NKN) 397.49 587.22
Interest on NKN Projects (Grants-in-Aid) 27.87 77.45
Unwinding of discount on security deposits - 51.96
Other non-operating income 291.78 598.77
Doubtful Debts (Refer Note No. 58) 1,454.25
Advances to Suppliers (not adjusted/settled) (Refer Note No. 59) 45132
10,302.89 9,080.50
25 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
% in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Purchases: -
Hardware 16,476.12 17,145.55
Software 1,326.09 1,188.97
Augmentation of District Infrastructure 26.79 5,804.99
Total 17,829.00 24,139.51
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26 Employee Benefits Expense

Zin Lakhs

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

Year Ended
March 31,2019

Salaries and incentives 824.43 1,057.11
Staff Welfare 31.87 35.52
Total 856.31 1,092.63
27 Finance Cost
Tin Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Interest Expenses on Unbinding of Lease Liability 1,037.41 -
Total 1,037.41 -
28 Depreciation and amortization Expenses
Zin Lakhs
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31,2019

Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note No. 3) 828.34 1,320.91
Right of use assets (Refer Note No. 4) 2,360.92 -
Other Intangible assets (Refer Note No. 5) 5,415.88 3,765.53
Total 8,605.14 5,086.44

150 |



29 Other Expenses

%in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Audit Fees (Reference Note No. 39) 8.06 7.22
Bank Charges 12.00 429
Board Meeting Expenses 043 0.20
Books & Periodicals 2.67 14.94
Business Promotion 8.15 8.22
GST (Non-Cenvatable) 18.95 28.42
Conference Seminar W/Shop Expenses 41.28 133.99
Consumable Stores 48.29 41.14
Conveyance Expenses 5.85 7.71
Corporate Social Responsibilities Expenses 40.00 176.00
Diesel for DG. Set 1.7 2.29
Doubtful Debts 9,588.17
Electricity & Water Charges 706.78 561.75
Hire Charges 3.08 7.04
House Keeping & Cleaning Charges 377.24 327.70
House Lease Charges 4.40 437
Krishi Kalyan Cess & Swachch Bharat Cess (Non-Cenvatable) 1.28
Membership & Subscription Charges 1.03 143
Miscelleneous Expenses 9.70 8.83
Office Expenses 2,569.28 1,804.48
Office Rent 30.21 2,186.94
Printing & Stationery 5.71 6.98
Professional & Consultancy Charges 23433 221.08
Rent Rates & Taxes 994 9.94
Repairs & Maintenance 363.73 597.97
Service Tax (Non - Cenvatable) 30.49
Taxi Hire Charges 308.27 273.37
Telephone Expenses 38.70 42.72
Travelling Expenses 326.46 315.92
Vehicle - Petrol 1.59 1.69
Advances to Suppliers (not adjusted/settled) 1,712.20
Provision Sales Tax/ VAT 0.21 117.70
Provision TDS on WCT 0.20 2.34
Total 5,177.70 18,248.79

The figures under the head Electricity & Water Charges and Housekeeping & Cleaning Charges are shown after net of

reimbursement.
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30 - Earning per Share

X in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Earning per share
Surplus attributable to Equity shareholders 9,076.20 (8,523.35)
Weighted average number of equity shares 2,00,000 2,00,000
Basic earning per share (Amount in Rs.) 4,538.10 (4,261.67)
Diluted earning per share (Amount in Rs.) 4,538.10 (4,261.67)
Face value per share 100.00 100.00
31. Fair values measurements
(i) Financial instruments by category
Zin Lakhs
Particulars Note No. As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
cost cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 - 18,987.52 17,398.08
Cash and cash equivalents 11 - 74,608.42 62,678.42
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 - 76,137.47 87,350.17
Interest Accrued (current) 13 - 4,060.72 4,479.16
Security deposits 6 - 107.08 701.43
Fixed deposits 7 - 291.60 291.60
Interest Accrued (non-current) 7 - 20299 166.90
Total financial assets -| 1,74,395.80 -| 1,73,065.76
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 19 - 24,408.60 3493217
Other financial liabilities (current) 18 - 3,804.85 1,466.94
Other financial liabilities (non-current) 20 - 16,669.42 40.46
Total financial liabilities - 44,882.88 - 36,439.56

(i)  Fair value hierarchy
All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the
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Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are
observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : valuation technigues for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on fair value measurement is not
based on observable market data.

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

For cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, short term borrowing, trade payables and other current
financial liabilities the management assessed that their fair value is approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the Company’s long-term interest free security deposits are determined by applying discounted cash flows
(DCF) method, using discount rate that reflects the market borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. They are classified
as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

32. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables, security deposits, earnest money deposits and employee
liabilities. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade receivables, security deposits, fixed deposits, cash and bank
balances that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management
of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by the Board of Directors that advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance to the Company’s management
that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The management reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

l. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include fixed deposits.

A. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
investment in fixed deposits with banks. The company’s fixed deposits are carried at fixed rate. Therefore not subject to interest
rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change
in market interest rates.

B. Foreign currency sensitivity

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
exchange rates. Foreign currency risk senstivity is the impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities. The company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as it does not have any foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities.

Il. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit
risk controls.
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Credit risk management

The Company provides for expected credits loss based on the following

Credit risk

Basis of categorisation

Provision for expected credit loss

Low credit risk

bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents, banks deposit and other

12 month expected credit loss

Moderate credit risk

Trade receivables, loan and other financial assets

Life time expected credit loss or 12 month
expected credit loss

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter

party fails to make.

R in Lakhs

Credit rating

Particulars

As at 31 As at 31
March 2020 March 2019

Low credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, banks deposit and other bank

balances

1,51,240.48 1,50,487.09

Moderate credit risk

Trade receivables, Loan and other financial assets

23,155.32 22,578.66

Concentration of trade receivables
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers spread across various states in India with no significant concentration

of credit risk.

Credit risk exposure Provision for expected credit losses The Company provides for 12 month expected credit losses for following

financial —
Zin Lakhs
Particulars Gross carrying Expected credit Carring amount net of
amount losses expected

As at 31 March 2020

Trade Receivables 27,422.87 (8,435.35) 18,987.52
As at 31 March 2019

Trade Receivables 27,287.68 (9,889.60) 17,398.08
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Reconciliation of loss provision — lifetime expected credit losses

Zin Lakhs

Reconciliation of loss allowance Trade Receivables
Loss allowance As at March 31,2018 303.28
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) during the year 9,586.32
Amounts written of

Loss allowance As at March 31,2019 9,889.60
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) during the year (1,454.25)
Amounts written of

Loss allowance As at March 31, 2020 8,435.35

I11. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far
as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. Management monitors rolling forecasts
of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into
account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments.

Zin Lakhs
Ondemand |Lessthan3| 3to12 1to5 > 5 years Total
months months years

Year ended

As at March 31, 2020

Trade payables 24,408.60 -| 24,408.60
Other financial liabilities 1,643.51 540.33 162100 6,479.55| 10,189.87 | 20474.27
Total 26,052.11 540.33 1,621.00 | 6,479.55| 10,189.87 | 44,882.88
Year ended

As at March 31,2019

Trade payables 34,465.51 - -| 3446551
Other financial liabilities 1,466.94 40.46 - 1,507.39
Total 35,932.45 - - 40.46 -| 35,972.91
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33. Capital Management

The objective ofthe Company’s capitalmanagement structureisto ensure that there remains sufficientliquidity withinthe Company
to carry out committed work programme requirements. The Company monitors the long term cash flow requirements of the
business in order to assess the requirement for changes to the capital structure to meet that objective and to maintain flexibility.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital, issue
new shares for cash, repay debt, put in place new debt facilities or undertake other such restructuring activities as appropriate.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Borrowings

Trade payables 24,408.60 34932.17
Other payables 1,67,885.69 1,44,679.46
Less: Cash & cash equivalents (74,608.42) (62,678.42)
Net Debt 1,17,685.88 1,16,933.21
Total equity 59,214.02 50,137.82
Capital and Net debt 1,76,899.89 1,67,071.02
Gearing ratio (%) 66.53% 69.99%
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34. Change in Accounting Policy

Except as specified below, the company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in this financial
statement. The company has applied Ind AS 116 with the date of initial application of 1st April, 2019. As a result, the company
has changed its accounting policy for lease contracts as detailed below.

The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial
application is recognized in retained earnings at 1st April, 2019.

% in Lakhs
Lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 28,674.62
Add/(less): contracts reassessed as lease contracts -
Add/(less): adjustments on account of extension/termination 874.32
Lease liabilities as on 1 April 2019 29,548.94
Current lease liability 2,296.97
Non current lease liabilities 2725197

Right of use assets of Rs. 21,285.61 Lakhs and lease liabilities of Rs. 20,050.86 Lakhs have been recognised as on 1 April 2019.




The impact of change in accounting policy on account on adoption of Ind AS 116 is as follows :

Decrease in Property Plant and equipment by

Increase in lease liability by 18,791.30
Increase in rights of use by 18,924.70
Increase/Decrease in Deferred tax assets by 465.72
Increase/Decrease in finance cost by 1,037.41
Increase/Decrease in depreciation by 2,560.92
35 Leases
As Lessee
(A) Additions to right of use assets
% in Lakhs
Particulars As at
March 31, 2020
Right-of-use assets, except for investment property 18,924.70
(B) Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period by class T in Lakhs
Particulars Class 1 Class 2 Total
Balance at 1 April 2019 21,285.61 21,285.61
Depreciation charge for the year 2,360.92 2,560.92
Balance at 31 March 2020 18,924.70 18,924.70
(©)  Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
X in Lakhs

Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows

March 31, 2020

Less than one year 2,161.34
One to five years 9,552.17
More than five years 15,021.93
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 26,735.44
Lease liabilities included in Balance Sheet

Current 2,161.34
Non-Current 16,629.96
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(D) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

T in Lakhs
Particulars 2019-20
Interest on lease liabilities 1,037.41
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets
Expenses relating to short-term leases 30.21
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of low value assets

(E) Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
Total cash outflow for leases of Rs.2,296.97 Lakhs.

36. Contingent Liabilities

As at Balance Sheet date, the contingent liability in respect of offsite warranty provided by the company to the users is not
considered since all the equipments supplied towards projects are covered under AMC from the vendors/suppliers from time to
time, after warranty period.

Contingent liabilities, other than the above, not provided for are as under: -

T in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts. 104.58 99.66
Guarantees 1864.94 1848.84
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2012-13) 14.89
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2015-16) 350.60 350.60
Total 2335.01 2299.10

No provision against the above has been made as management believes that there would not be any actual payable/demand in
future also.

37. Commitments

The Company has made commitment to procure the trading goods and to avail the services in the subsequent period based
on the purchase orders and agreements made with suppliers. Those commitments can be amended as per the agreed terms.
However, the amount of such revenue commitments towards internal projects of the company is Rs.116.68 Lakhs (PY Rs.23.23
Lakhs) as at March 31, 2020. In addition, Commitment towards capital expenditure out of “Reserves” is as follows:-
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T in Lakhs

SL. | Particulars As at As at
No. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1 National Data Centre, Bhubaneswar 3594.88 4,696.00
2 Enhancement of NIC Cloud Services 3779.52 5,386.00
3 District 2.0-Augmentation of Digital India Initiative 1380.21 1,407.00
Total 8754.61 11,489.00

38.  Information pursuant to Para 5(viii) of the General Instructions for preparation to the Income & Expenditure Account given

under schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.
Value of Imports on C.IF Basis: NIL (PY Rs. NIL)

i Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis):

X in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2020 31,2019
Travelling - Staff (Foreign) NIL NIL
Total NIL NIL
il Earnings in foreign currency (on accrual basis): Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil)
39. Auditor Remuneration*
X in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2020 31,2019
Auditor Fee including Tax Audit Fee 6.36 6.36
Income Tax Audit 0.85 0.85
GST Audit 0.85
For Reimbursement of expenses 1.91 1.91
Total 9.97 9.12

* Exclusive of applicable taxes. Further, Rs. 1.91 Lakhs (PY Rs.3.20 Lakhs) are paid for certification work for various projects which

are directly debited in the respective projects.

40. Disclosure pursuant to Ind-As 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’
i. Contribution to Provident Fund

The company is not having any Provident Fund scheme as the employees of the company are on deputation from
NIC, along-with their posts, as per the Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998. The Provident Fund is
deducted from their salary every month as per the rates prescribed for the purpose and government guidelines thereon
subsequently, passed on to NIC as its entire account is maintained by them. There is thus, no liability of the company

towards any payment to the employees on Provident Fund Account.
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Leave Salary

Since the employees are on deputation from NIC as per the Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998, the
leave salary contribution (as per the prescribed rates to the salary of the respective employee), is calculated / provided by
the company in its account every month and subsequently, passed on to NIC. No liability is thus, there on the company
towards payment of leave salary/encashment.

Pension Contribution

Since the employee are on deputation from NIC as per the said Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998,
the pension contribution (as per the prescribed rates to the salary of the respective employee), is calculated / provided by
the company in its account every month and subsequently, passed on to NIC. No liability is thus, there on the company
towards payment of Pensionery benefits.

iv.  Gratuity
Since the employees are on deputation from NIC as per the said Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998,
the company is not liable to pay any Gratuity, as the same shall entirely be borne by NIC.
41. Related Party disclosures
List of related parties
Name of the Party Relationship
Shri Manoj Kumar Mishra (Managing Director) Key Managerial Personnel (Upto 14.02.2020)
Sh. Prashant Kumar Mittal (Managing Director) Key Managerial Personnel from 17.02.2020
Sh. Girish Kumar (Company Secretary) Key Managerial Personnel (Upto 04.08.2019)
Sh. Sunny Jain (Company Secretary) Key Managerial Personnel from 16.12.2019
Transactions with Related Parties: -
% in Lakhs
Name of Party Nature of Transaction Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2020 31,2019
Sh. Manoj Kumar Mishra Managerial Remuneration 36.81 38.61
Sh. Prashant Kumar Mittal Managerial Remuneration 4.10 NIL
Sh. Girish Kumar Managerial Remuneration 3.48 9.33
Sh. Sunny Jain Managerial Remuneration 2.87 NIL
Total 47.26 47.94

Balance payable as on March 31, 2020 to Related Parties: Rs. 2.19 Lakhs (PY Rs.2.59 Lakhs)

42.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS— 108 ‘Operating Segments’

The company is providing services in ‘Information Technology’ segment only from a centralized office in Delhi. Considering
the same as one segment only, no disclosure according to Ind AS— 108 ‘Operating Segments’ have been made in the financial
statements.

43,

Balance Confirmation

The balance confirmation letters have been issued under various heads. The response there against is awaited.

44,

Non-execution of Conveyance/Title Deed

The Company had purchased Hall No’s 2&3 at 6th Floor, NBCC Towers, Bhikaiji Cama Place, New Delhi from M/s. NBCC Limited in
the year 2003 and 2001 respectively. However, the Conveyance Deeds / Title Deeds towards the same amounting to Rs. 931.50
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lakhs (PY 931.50 lakhs) have not yet been got registered by NBCC despite several requests from the company. M/s. NBCC is
being reminded reqularly in the matter by the company. Hence, the initial provision of Rs 74.51 lakhs (PY Rs 74.51 lakhs) towards
amount of Stamp Duty has been kept in the financial statements and the differential amount, if any, shall be provided for in the
year the same is got registered.

45. Inthe opinion of the Management, the current assets, loans and advances & trade receivable have a value on
realization in ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

46. Disclosure u/s 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006

X in Lakhs
SL. | Particulars As at As at
No. March 31,2020 March 31,2019
1 The Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 817.14 466.66
to any supplier.
2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the NIL NIL
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier.
3 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in NIL NIL
making payment but without adding the interest specified under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. NIL NIL
5 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the NIL NIL
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance
of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

47. Disclosure pursuant to IND AS — 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’

As per IND AS — 36 'Impairment of Assets’, the assessment of impairment of Assets has been carried out during the FY 2019-20in
respect of Data Centre at Laxmi Nagar, National Data Centre at Shastri Park towards investment on "Enhancement of NIC Cloud
Services” and Development Centre at Shastri Park locations, which are cash generating units of the company and no impairment
loss has been identified thereon.

48. Revenue Generation (GR/ AGR) towards VSAT Projects against DOT License No. 815-100/NICSI1/2009-DS
dated 20.11.2009 (surrendered by NICSI on 31.03.2017 and accepted by DoT) and payment of License Fee and
Spectrum Charges to DOT thereon.

NICSI had surrendered the DoT License on 31.03.2017 and accepted by DoT. As per the mandate given by DoT, NICSI has since
paid entire amount towards License Fee / Spectrum Charges till 31.03.2017 on the revenue related to this activity only. Also, the
amounts from MHA/NDRF are received. However, the O/0 the Pr. CCA Office, DoT has levied interest / penalty on NICSI by taking
revenue of entire company, for which MeitY had taken up the matter with DoT.

0/0 the Pr. CCA DoT, vide letter dated 17.07.2020, has withdrawn all Demand Notices against NICSI towards License Fee and
Spectrum Usage Charges (based on Hon'ble Supreme Court of India Judgement dated 11.06.2020 and DoT OM No. 12-25/2019-
LFP dated 17.07.2020. The P&T Audit Office has accordingly, been informed by NICSI, vide letter dated 20.07.2020.

49. Operating Margin (Administrative Charges) on NKN Project

As per the minutes of the High Level Committee meeting held on 19/07/2011 towards NKN Project, specific approval from
Integrated Finance Division (IFD) of Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY) towards levying 1% Operating
Margin on the expenditure under NKN Project was required. The matter had been discussed by NICSI NICSI Audit Committee, in
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its 4th meeting held on 26.07.2019, under the Chairmanship of the then Additional Secretary & Financial Advisor, MeitY and it
was felt that since the NKN Proposal involving Rs.5990 crore was initially concurred-in by IFD, MeitY (including 1% Administrative
Charge to NICSI and approve by the CCl based on MeitY’s recommendations, there appeared no need to get the matter re-
examined for IFD Concurrence. It was subsequently noted by NICSI Board of Directors, in its 110th meeting held on 30.07.2019.

50. Income/Expenditure on National Data Centre Project, Shastri Park, Delhi

National Data Centre, Shastri Park, Delhihad been set up with financial assistance from MeitY and NIC and had become operational
in July, 2011. As per approval by the Standing Finance Committee, NICSI was to bear Operational Expenditure thereon @ Rs.800
Lakhs per annum for initial 2 years. To meet its Operational Expenditure, NICSI was to get income from 60 Racks allotted to
it. While NICSI continued to meet Operational Expenditure thereon even after 2 years, MeitY had approved that from 01-04-
2014 onwards, NICSI would be incurring operational expenditure head-wise on the National Data Centre, Shastri Park, Delhi
upto Rs.800 Lakhs on the heads Rent & Maintenance/ Basic Infrastructure Maintenance/ Basic Infrastructure O & M Manpower
and NIC would reimburse the expenditure from its Budgetary Provision to NICSI towards Electricity & Diesel Charges/ Physical
Security & Housekeeping Charges/ Water Charges/ Logistics Support/ Contingency Charges upto 3% of all these charges, after
these expenditure are initially incurred by NICSI. With the setting-up of National Data Centre at Bhubaneswar, NICSI and NIC
had worked out an arrangement for operation and management of the same and also, for National Data Centre at Shastri Park,
Delhi. NICSI Board of Directors, in its 108th meeting held on 27.12.2018, had considered the same and approved as under with
retrospective effect from 01 April 2018: -

° NICSI may create a separate project pool account for Shastri Park and Bhubaneswar Data Centers

° Income generated through Co-location Services at both these Data Centers shall be pooled under the proposed project
heads.

° Income shall be used for meeting the O&M expenditure and up-gradation of basic infrastructure at both these Data
Centers.

. In addition to existing 60 Racks being used for co-location service at Shastri Park by NICSI, NIC may add more Racks to

generate enough funds to meet O&M expenses for years to come and also for upgrading the basic infrastructure.

. NICSI would not incur Rs.800 Lakhs per annum towards O&M Expenditure at Shastri park from FY.2018-19 and onwards.
Revenue generated per annum through said 60 Racks and more Racks to be added by NIC, would be utilized for meeting
O&M expenditure and up-gradation of basic infrastructure.

° NICSI would charge its 726 Operating Margin and Taxes thereon as per Board approval from FY.2018-19 and onwards on
the said O&M Expenditure.

NICSI has accordingly booked its Income & Expenditure in FY.2019-20 at National Data Centres.

51. LTCto NICSI employees on deputation from NIC

The company had reimbursed anamount of Rs. 189 Lakhs towards LTC, based on the Service Rules of NICSI to the NICSIemployees
deputed from NIC during the Financial Years 2010-11 to 2013-14. This amount had been reimbursed by the Company based
on the Service Rules approved by the Board of Directors in its 49th meeting held on 17.05.2006 and amended in 69th meeting
held on 24.09.2010, which were not in line with DPE/ DOPT guidelines & CCS LTC Rules. These Service Rules had thereafter,
been sent by NICSI to NIC/MeitY on 11.11.2014 for ratification. As per Board approval that the recovery be made in installments,
NICSI had recovered the amount from the salary of employees in May, 2015. Against the same, the employees had filed a Writ
Petition in the Hon'ble Delhi High Court against the recovery and the Court, vide "Order” dated 09.06.2015, had granted the
"Stay” on the recovery of amount from the employees, pending the final decision by the Court in the matter. Finally, the Hon'ble
Delhi High Court, in its judgment dated 18.03.2016, had decided that "Service conditions which induce the present appellants to
apply for NICSI for deputation and continue their held out a liberalized LTC option. That option was availed of continuously. The
LTC regulations were amended further-it is not in dispute that the original regulations of NICSI and the amendments continue
in force. In these circumstances, the recovery sought to be made without altering the conditions of service could not have been
upheld. Accordingly, the respondents are permitted to recover only amounts paid in excess of the deputation terms either pre-
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2010 as existing with some of the employees joined the organization or those which are contrary to the 2010 amendments. The
Appeal is allowed to that extent”.

MeitY, vide letter dated 14.07.2016, had directed NICSI to continue recovery of over-payment to the employees who had
irregularly drawn LTC. NICSI, vide letter dated 29.07.2016, informed MeitY that in view of the current directives, NICSI has re-
started the process of recovery of over-payment made to the employees on account of LTC and an Office Memorandum was also
issued towards the same on 29.07.2016 itself, informing that the recovery would start from the salary for the month of August,
2016. The matter was simultaneously submitted by NICSI to MeitY on 16.08.2016.

The affected employees had then gone to Hon'’ble Delhi High Court by filing a contempt petition against the re-started process
of recovery as per the said NICSI O.M. dated 29.07.2016, in which NICSI and MeitY were both made Respondents. MeitY had
re-considered the matter and advised NICSI, vide note dated 17.03.2017, to adhere to the said decision dated 18.03.2016
from Hon’ble Delhi High Court in the matter. Based on MeitY directive, NICSI issued O.M. dated 21.03.2017 mentioning “not to
effect recovery of LTC claims by NIC/ NICSI employees and further, the recovery of amounts already made to be paid back to
concerned officers in due course. The Respondents accordingly, informed the decision to Hon'ble Delhi High Court in its hearing
on 23.03.2017 by handing over a photocopy of the O.M. dated 21.03.2017. The contempt petition was thus treated as disposed
off as satisfied and the respondents were directed to forthwith give effect to the O.M. dated 21.03.2017. NICSI had accordingly
taken action and refunded the recovered amount to each individual.

In the meantime, the matter was included by the C&AG Office in its "Report for the year ended March, 2014 — Union Government
(Communications & IT Sector) — No. 55 of 2015” presented to Parliament. It is currently with Public Accounts Committee (PAC)
of Parliament.

MeitY had informed the C&AG Office as per above, including the said Hon'ble Delhi High Court decision. The C&AG Office had
thereafter, desired the copy of the Hon'ble Court decision and also, the Government approval towards ratification of NICSI Service
Rules. While the copy of Hon'ble Court decision was provided to the C&AG Office, it was informed that the matter towards
ratification of NICSI Service Rules was still under consideration of the Government. The para is thus, still under consideration of
the PAC for want of ratification of NICSI Service Rules from the Government. The status in the matter is same as in previous year.

52. Project Incentive to NICSI employees on deputation from NIC

Based on an Audit Observation from the P&T Audit office, NICSI had sent its “Project Incentive Guidelines” in November, 2014
to NIC / MeitY for ratification. As the approval thereon was not received, NICSI has not been paying Project Incentive to its
employees after FY.2013-14. Hence, no provision has been made related thereto in its Accounts for FY.2019-20.

53. Transport Allowance and House Rent Allowance to NICSI employees on deputation from NIC

The Company has paid an excess amount of Rs. 49 Lakhs towards Transport Allowance and Rs. 17 Lakhs towards House Rent
Allowance to the NICSI employees deputed from NIC during the period from 01.07.2007 to 31.03.2014. This amount has been
paid by the Company based on the Service Rules approved by the Board of Directors in its 49th meeting held on 17.05.2006
which is not in line with GOI Rules. These Service Rules have been sent by NICSI to NIC/ MeitY on 11.11.2014 for ratification.
Further feedback in the matter is awaited. However, as per approval by the Board of Directors, NICSI has followed Government
Rules towards these allowances in FY.2018-19. The status in the matter is same as in previous year.

54. Interest on Un-utilized fund of Grant in Aid projects.

NICSI has worked out the interest in GIA Projects in FY 2019-20 on actual basis as per the interest rates on which NICSI had made
FDs in the year and in FY.2018-19 it had also provided the differential interest in each ledger of the respective project for the
period upto 31.03.2018, FY.2018-19 and FY. 2019-20, as per below:

% in Lakhs
Period NKN Project Other GIA Projects Total
For the period upto 31.03.2018 1414.74 3351.27 4766.01
For FY.2018-19 77.45 535.60 613.05
For FY.2019-20 27.87 397.49 42536
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55. Draft Audit Para from P&T Audit Office on Refund of Interest in GIA Projects.

TilLFY.2011-2012, the Company was treating the amount received from Grantor Institution for execution of projects as ‘Advances
received from customer’ instead of treating them as Grant in Aid receipt and accordingly, no interest was provided on un-utilized
fund to Grantor Institution.

Board of Directors, vide meeting dated 21-12-2011, had approved to calculate and refund the interest earned on un-utilized fund
available in Grant in Aid Projects from time to time as per the rate of interest applicable in the Saving Bank Accounts in the Public
Sector Banks. Accordingly, the Company had calculated and refunded the amount of interest to the Grantor institution i.e. rate
of interest applicable in the Saving Bank Accounts in the Public Sector Banks, whereas as per terms and conditions laid down by
the Grantor Institution, the actual interest earned on un-utilized balance of Grant in Aid projects is to be refunded. The grantor
departments have accepted the interest as credited to the individual project till FY.2016-17 and most of these projects are since
completed and their accounts settled. However, a para is continuing from the C&AG Office towards less refund of interest in GIA
Projects by the company to the Government. NICSI had provided the reply on the para and it is still under consideration of the
C&AG Office.

In the meantime, the Board of Directors, in its 100th meeting held on 28.03.2017, had re-considered the matter and advised
NICSI to refund the interest on Grants-in-Aid Projects on actual basis.

Accordingly, in F. Y. 2018-19, NICSI has worked out the interest in GIA Projects on actual basis as per the interest rates on which
NICSI had made FDs in the past and also, in FY.2018-19 and based on that, has provided the differential interest in each ledger of
the respective project for the period upto 31.03.2018 and for FY.2018-19, as per below:

Accordingly, in F. Y. 2018-19, NICSI has worked out the interest in GIA Projects on actual basis as per the interest rates on which
NICSI had made FDs in the past and based on that, has provided the differential interest in each ledger of the respective project
for the period upto 31.03.2018 Totalling to Rs.4766.01 Lakh (i.e. Rs.1414.74 Lakh in NKN Project and Rs.3351.27 Lakh in other
GIA Projects.

P&T Audit Office, vide letter no. AMG-Il / Rep PSU / DAP / 9993 /NICSI / D-2024 dated 14.01.2020, has provided a Draft Audit
Para (DAP) to NICSI on “Loss of Rs.26.36 crore and understatement of liability by Rs.78.38 crore due to non-compliance of terms
& conditions governing grants in aid projects”. The Audit observation is that NICSI has deducted the Corporate Tax paid on its GIA
Interest Income during past years and while refunding the differential interest, it has deducted the Corporate Tax already paid and
thus, it should take-up the matter with CBDT / Income Tax Department regarding refund of Corporate Tax paid previously. NICS],
vide reply dated 09.12.2019 to their Audit Memo No. 12 dated 04.12.2019 and also, vide letter dated 12.06.2020 has informed
the P&T Audit office that since the Corporate Tax is paid to the Government of India i.e. Income Tax Department continuously
since FY.2012-13, it has not taken up the matter with the Income Tax Department, since even after refund of the Corporate Tax
to NICS], it would have to refund again to the Government of India (i.e. Grantor Departments).

56. Trade Receivables

NICSI implements a large number of new projects every year from various Ministries/ Departments / Organizations of the
Government of India and States / UTs. As per the provisions in the General Financial Rules (GFRs), they restrict the release of
advances to NICSI to 40% or so, whereas in many cases mainly related to procurement of ICT Hardware, NICSI has to release the
work orders to full extent and after delivery / installation of those items, NICSI has to release the payments to the vendors as
per the payment terms in the work orders. This, on many occasions, result in Trade Receivables, disclosed in note no. 10 of the
financial statements, amount of trade receivables of Rs. 27,422.87 Lakhs (PY Rs. 27,287.68 Lakhs) as at March 31, 2020, which is
followed up by NICSI from time to time with the concerned Departments /Organizations to recover the same.

57. Prior Period Depreciation towards 5th Floor, Shastri Park, Delhi

NICSI had given interior work to M/s NBCC Ltd. for 5th Floors, Shastri Park, Delhi after completion of works, the floors had become
operational during F Y 2016-17. However, the final payments to M/s NBCC Ltd. has been made by NICSI during FY 2018-19.
Accordingly, the Depreciation of Rs.455.22 Lakhs for FY 2016-17 & 2017-18 has been charged under other equity in FY 2018-19.

58. Provision for Doubtful Debt amounts un-likely to be recovered.
As per Accounting Policy of the Company, a provision @ 5% is recognized towards trade receivables which are outstanding for
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more than 3 years at balance sheet date. P&T Audit has observed that the adopted policy for provision for doubtful debts of the
company is deficient.

Considering the above observation of P&T Audit and assurance given by NICSI to that office on previous year's accounts, a
Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give their recommendations towards making provision in the Accounts for FY.2019-
20 for the doubtful amounts un-likely to be recovered.

The “Provision” has been made in NICSI Accounts for F. Y. 2019-20 towards doubtful amounts un-likely to be recovered as per

below: -

X in Lakhs

Duration Outstanding Provision in Provisionin Provisionin

amount %age F.Y.2019-20 F.Y.2018-19
More than 10 years 5,410.02 100 5,410.02 5,105.01
5to 10 years 4,389.95 50 2,194.98 3,926.59
3to 5years 3,321.39 25 8,30.35 858.00
Upto 3 years 14301.51 NIL NIL NIL
Total 27,422.87 8435.35 9,889.60

59. Provision for Advances to Suppliers.

P&T Audit while conducting the Audit for FY 2017-18 had observed that "Advances to Suppliers amounting to Rs.984.16 Lakhs
are more than 3 years old. Being more than 3 years old provisioning should have been created in this respect. Non-provision has
resulted into overstatement of current assets and understatement of provisions leading to overstatement of profit”.

Considering the above observation of P&T Audit, a Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give their recommendations to
consider and recommend the provision to be made towards Advances to Suppliers un-likely to be settled.

The provision towards Advances to Suppliers amounting to Rs.1319.16 Lakhs has been made in Accounts for F. Y. 2019-20 for
amounts outstanding for more than 3 years as on 31.03.2020 and un-likely to be settled (as against Rs.1712.20 lakh in PY 2018-
19), except for NKN Project. During the year FY 2019-20 an amount of Rs. 58.27 Lakhs has been recovered hence net provision
towards advances to suppliers is Rs.1260.88 Lakhs as on 31-03-2020.

60. Classification of Assets and Liabilities into current and non-current

The company provides the bifurcations of Assets & Liabilities into ‘Current” and ‘Non-Current’ in the financial statements on the
basis of estimation of recoverability/payment within operating cycle.

61. Expenditure of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

NICSI has made contribution of Rs. 40 Lakh in the Accounts for FY.2019-20 (PY 176.00 Lakhs) towards expenditure of Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) as ratified by NICSI Board of Directors in its 113th meeting held on 29.06.2020, based on CSR
Committee Recommendations, in its 5th meeting held on 26-06-2020.

62. Grants-in-Aid Projects

As per the terms & conditions stipulated in the sanctions towards grants in aid projects, the Company is getting the accounts of
all such projects audited from a CA firm. For the current year, the accounts of all the GIA Projects are since audited.

63. District 2.0 —- Augmentation of District Infrastructure to cater to Digital India Initiative”

The Board of Directors, in its 100th meeting held on March 28, 2017, had considered the project and approve at a Total outlay of
Rs.9,900 Lakhs for Phase-I to be met entirely by NICSI out of its “Cash Reserves”. However, there would be no “Revenue” income
in the project, as it involves augmentation only of ICT Infrastructure at NIC's some District Centers. Since, no income is there in

| 165



the project and the assets created neither belong to NICSI nor in its possession, NICSI has directly routed the entire expenditure
of Rs. 26.79 Lakhs (PY Rs.5804.99 Lakhs) towards it during the year to Income & Expenditure Account as an expense.

64. Provision towards Income Tax & Sales Tax etc.

P&T Audit while conducting the Audit for FY 2017-18 had observed that “an amount of Rs. 2,281.03 Lakhs on account of TDS/
Income Tax recoverable pertaining to FY 2007-08 to 2014-15 is pending from Income Tax Department. The above amount being
relating to more than 3 years old, provision in this regard should have been created by the company. However, no provision has
been created. Non provision of this amount has resulted into overstatement of current assets and understatement of provision
leading to overstatement of income™.

Considering the above observation of P&T Audit, a Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give recommendations on the
provision to be made in Accounts for FY.2018-19 for the amounts towards Income Tax refund, Sales Tax recoverable and TDS
on Work Contract un-likely to be recovered. Based on the Committee recommendations the provision has been made in NICSI
accounts for FY 2019-20 as per below: -

T in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2029
Income Tax 180291 1,646.55
Sales Tax/VAT/DVAT 117.97 117.70
TDS on Works Contract 2.54 2.34
Total 1923.36 1,766.59

65. Obsolete Items

The Company has certain obsolete items of Fixed Assets as on 31-03-2020. While conducting review on NICSI Accounts for
FY.2017-18, the P&T Audit team had observed that the provision was not made in Accounts for that year towards difference
between Depreciated Value of the Obsolete items as on 31st March and Estimated Sale Value against the same. Accordingly, a
Committee had been set up in NICSI to examine and recommend the “Provision” to be made in NICSI Accounts for FY.2018-19
towards obsolete items as on 31.03.2019 between the Depreciated Value and the Estimated Sale Value. The Committee had
recommended that the Depreciated Value of the Obsolete Asset items as on 31.03.2019 i.e. Rs.49.89 Lakhs be taken as the
Estimated Sale value and therefore, no Provision on this account was required to be made in the Accounts for that year. Similarly,
based on the physical verification of assets, the value of obsolete asset items as on 31.03.2020 has been worked out at Rs. 3.13
Lakhs (PY 49.42 Lakhs) and since a Committee has again recommended that the depreciated value of obsolete asset item as on
31.03.2020 i.e Rs. 3.13 Lakh be taken as the Estimated Sale value and therefore no Provision in this Accounts is required to be
made in the Accounts for that year.

66. Prior Period Items

NICSI has a cut-off date approved by Management upto which the invoices of the vendors are submitted for the services rendered
upto 31st March and accounted for accordingly as expenditure in previous year. Income realized till that date for the period upto
37st March is also accounted for in same financial year. Accordingly, matching concept has been ensured in FY.2019-20

The company has treated errors & omissions as prior period. In current year no error or omission is there and hence, no prior
period expense or income is there.

67. COVID-19 Impact

The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying
amounts of Receivables, Fixed Deposits and other assets / liabilities. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future
uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these
financial statements has used internal and external sources of information. As on current date, the Company has concluded
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that the impact of COVID — 19 is not material based on these estimates. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will
continue to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties in future periods, if any.

68. Previous year figure reclassification
The company has re-classified previous year figures to confirm current year classification.

As per our report of even date For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Agarwal & Saxena National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002405C

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Akshay Sethi Prashant Kumar Mittal  Dr. Rajendra Kumar
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership N0.539439 DIN: 08710751 DIN:02677079
Sd/- Sd/-
Sunny Jain Deepak Saxena
Company Secretary FA&CA
ACS: 31700

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC.
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of National Informatics Centre Services INC. (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, and Income and Expenditure account, the Statement of Changes in Equityand the
Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2020 and its profit,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.

The Company implemented the ERP accounting software w.e.f July 01, 2017 till March 31, 2020 without being validated
by a Systems Audit carried out by an external independent agency. Impact, if any, on the assets/ liabilities and/ orincome/
expenditure as disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements on account of possible system weakness in the data integrity
is presently not ascertainable.

In our opinion, the internal controls existing in the Company with respect to physical verification of Property Plant &
Equipment, revenue recording, purchases recording, settlement of advances to employeesreconciliation/ confirmation of
vendor/user balances, process of releasing the Vendors Performance Bank Guarantees, direct deposits by clients into the
bank account through e-payment/ otherwise and recovery of dues should be commensurate with the size and nature of
its operations. (Refer to Annexure “"A”)

Balances relating to Trade Payables (Note19), Trade Receivables(Note10), Advances received from customers (Including
Grants-in-aid project) (Note21), Earnest Money Deposits receipts(Note20), Security depositsPayable (Note18) and
Advances to Suppliers (Note 9 &15)are subject to the confirmations having been obtained/ received and/ or the
consequential reconciliation being drawn up as at the year end. Impact, if any, on the assets/ liabilities and/ or income/
expenditure consequent to such confirmation and reconciliation is presently not ascertainable.

Reference is invited to Note No. 21 of the Ind AS financial statement with respect to the Advances received from customers
amounting to Rs. 1,24,647.66 lakhs. Review of individual accounts reveal numerous customers wherein the balances
have remained outstanding for more than 3 year as at the year end. These advances received mostly from Public Sector
Undertakings (PSUs) and Government of India Ministries have been invested by the Company in Fixed deposits with
various banks at varied rates of interest and maturity profiles.

In view of the fact that such idle funds with respect to the Advance from Customers have remained unutilised and invested
in Fixed Deposits, the management needs to review each such Advance and return the same based on the corresponding
terms and conditions of the contract with each of the customer. In the absence of the documents, contracts and details
being available in respect of each such Advance, the overall impact of matters referred to in the preceding paras on the
assets/ liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure consequent to such details being available is presently not ascertainable.

The corresponding revenue of the work done for which the expenses incurred of Rs 496.91 lakhs were booked under
various heads of Income and Expenditure Account in FY 2019-20 are recorded in the next financial year (i.e 2020-21)
resulting into the non-compliance of matching concept.

Consequently, that results in the understatement of Income before tax by Rs 531.69 lakhs and Revenue from Operations
Rs. 531.69 lakhs respectively.
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6. With reference to the note no. 66 of Income & Expenditure Account, the expenditure that is not recorded in the Ind-AS
Financials of FY 2019-20 due to non-submission/late submission of the invoices by the vendors has resultant into non-
compliance of cut off procedures.

Such bills are recorded in the subsequent reporting periods after post-approval by the competent authority Impact, of
such late recording of expenditures on the assets/ liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure on aid projects cannot be
ascertained reliably due to non-availability of quantum of bills that were not submitted by vendors as on reporting date.

7. The Company has not complied with Ind AS 115 on “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” prescribed by the Companies
(India Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 with respect to erroneously recognising revenue on Sales of goods at the time
of generating the invoice in terms of the Significant Accounting Policy (Refer to Note 2 (vii) instead of recognising the
same at the time of transfer of “control” i.e. on acceptance of goods by the customer. Impact of the same on the reported
income, loss and assets/ liabilities of the Company consequent to recognising revenue in terms of Ind AS 115 is presently
not ascertainable.

The impact of matters referred to in the above paragraphs (1) to (7) on the assets/liabilities and/or income/expenditure and
profit/loss for the year is not ascertainable.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Reference is invited to note no. 50whereby on account of the direction of the Ministry of Electronics & Information
Technology, Department of Information Technology during the year, the Company’s Operating Margin with effect from FY
2018-19 was corelated and approved at 7% of the O&M expenditure and upgradation cost of the basic/ ICT infrastructure.
This has resulted in a substantial decrease in the operating margin accruing to the Company during the year with respect
to the Shastri Park and Bhubaneshwar National Data Centre with a resultant impact on the profit reported in the Income
& Expenditure Account for the year.

2. We draw attention to the note No. 44 of the Ind-AS Financial Statements whereby the conveyance/ title deed in respect of
the building at BhikajiCama place, New Delhi amounting to Rs. 931.50 lakhs is pending for registration as at the year end.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matters reported in paragraphs (1) to (2) above.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Director’'s Report
(but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon). The Directors Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
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performance, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind
AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it

probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
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the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 have not been commented
upon since the said order is not applicable to the Company in view of the exemption available to a company licensed to
operate under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion,
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination
of those books;

) The Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d Except for the matters described in basis of qualified opinion, in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e) The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the company;

f) Since the company is a Government company, sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013
regarding director’s disqualification, is not applicable to the Company in terms of Notification No. GSR-463 (E) dated
05.06.2015;

) The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above;

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses a
qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting;

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company being a Government
company, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Government
company in terms of Notification No. GSR-463 (E) dated 05.06.2015;

b) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:
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The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS financial
statements (Refer Note no. 36 to the Ind AS financial statements);

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

3. Our separate report on directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 is attached as Annexure B.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29 July 2020

For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
(FRN002405C)

AkshaySethi

Partner

Membership No.: 539439
UDIN:- 20539439AAAACN6992
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Annexure ‘A’to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the
Ind AS Financial Statements of National Informatics Centre
Services Inc. for the year ended 31st March 2020

(Referred to in paragraph under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
Section of our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act 2013,Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
IND AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance
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with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the IND AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, we have qualified our audit opinion on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 in respect of the following matters wherein the existing internal controls
need to be strengthened:

a. Reconciliation/confirmation of vendor balances as the same could potentially result in material misstatement of the
outstanding balances,

b. Release of the Performance Bank Guarantees of the vendors as it could potentially result in non-recovery of damages
from defaulting vendors;

C. Accounting of the amounts directly deposited/electronically transferred in the bank account of the Company by the
clients/departments to avoid possible inefficient utilization of the available funds;

d. Recovery and follow up of the dues from clients and advance to vendors as this could possibly result in a material
misstatement of the outstanding dues from the Clients and Advance to Vendors; and

e. Physical verification of Property Plant & Equipment which could materially impact the accounting, classification and
disclosure of the aforesaid.

f. Company have not complied with cut off procedures and matching concept at the time of recording the income and
expense bill.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual Ind AS financial statements will not
be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit
tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2020 Ind AS financial statements of the Company, and these material weaknesses do
not affect our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
(FRN002405C)

AkshaySethi
Partner
Membership No.: 539439
UDIN:- 20539439AAAACN6992
Place: New Delhi
Date: 29 July 2020
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the

Ind AS Financial Statements of National Informatics Centre

Services Inc. for the year ended March 31, 2020

Report on Directions issued by the comptroller and auditor general of India under section

143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

The Company has an accounting system in place to process all the accounting transactions through an ERP accounting
software which was implemented during the previous year wef. July 01, 2017. However, the ERP software was implemented
during the previous year without being validated by a Systems Audit by an external independent agency. Impact, if any, on the
assets/ liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure as disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements on account of possible system
weakness in the data integrity is presently not ascertainable.

Furthermore, Fixed Assets accounting with respect to addition/ deletion/ depreciation is currently being done manually and
thereafter uploaded into the ERP system as no automation module is available in the ERP. It is advisable that the said process
is also automated at the earliest to avoid possible errors on account of manual intervention

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interests etc.
made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated.

Not applicable as the company did not have any outstanding loan during the year 2019-20. Accordingly, therewas no case of
waiver/write offof debts/loans/interest etc. made by any lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the
loan.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from Central/State agencies were properly accounted
for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

During the year 2019-20 no funds were either received or receivable by the company from any Central/State agencies.
Hence the question of their proper accounting and utilisation does not arise.

For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
(FRN002405C)

AkshaySethi

Partner

Membership No.: 539439
UDIN:- 20539439AAAACN6992

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29 July 2020
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NATIONAL
INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC. (NICSI) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020.

The preparation of financial statements of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.(NICSI) for the year ended 31 March 2020
in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act,2013(Act) is the responsibility of the
Management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor/Auditors appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under
Section 139 (5) of the Act are /is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based
on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to
have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 29.07.2020

l, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements
of NICSI for the year ended 31 March 2020 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory
Auditors and company personal and selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under section 143(6)(b) of the Act which
have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and
the related audit report.

1. Balance Sheet

Assets-Current Liabilities-Financial liabilities

Trade payable (Note No 19)- ¥ 24408.60 lakh

The above head is understated by ¥ 1118.02 lakh due to the non accountal of expenditure related to the Services received from the
vendor during the year 2019-20. This includes the following two categories of expenditure:

a) The services worth ¥ 675.96 lakh for which invoices were raised between 28 February 2020 and 31 March 2020.

b) The services worth ¥ 442.06 lakh for which invoices were raised between 01 April 2020 and 23 June 2020.

This has resulted in understatement of Current Liabilities (Trade payable) and understatement of expenses by ¥ 1118.02 lakh.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Date: 23.10.2020
Place: New Delhi

Sd/-

(Manish Kumar)
Principal Director of Audit
(Finance & Communication)
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